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Who knew two years ago that Superior Bank would be where it is today?
Actually, a lot of us. The vision that Stan Bailey laid out for us in 2005 is
swiftly becoming a reality. By focusing on the core values of “Local,
Friendly, Superior,” we are filling a void in the market, resulting in
phenomenal success. In fact, our high-touch banking experience has

proven especially effective in today’s volatile market of banking mergers.

As we actively move forward on our plans for growth, we can truly say
that we are on our way. A few highlights of 2006 include:

Establishing bank partnerships with Community Bancshares of
lountsville, AL, and Kensington Bankshares of Tampa, FL.

hanging our corporate name from The Ban¢ Corporation to
Superior Bancorp.

Opening new branches in Alabama and Floriga.

he Right Bank at The Right Time

oday, Superior is the fourth {argest bank headquartered in Birmingham,
behind Regicns, Compass and First American. We attribute our rapid
success to the fact that we are a user-friendly bank. This means that

pur staff has been trained and equipped to not only pravide specialized
service, but to anticipate the future needs of our customers. Such a
positioning clearly distinguishes us from the “big bax” approach of our
arger competitors. While their approach is global, ours is persanal. While
heirs is high volume, ours is high touch. And while they try to sell what
hey want to sell, our needs-driven approach is focused on providing
onsumers with what they want.

xpanding into the Future

As we move into the next chapter in our history, we want {o;

ontinue our growth as a significant provider of consumer
inancial services.

Become more active in the commercial and business banking market.

ontinue to be a provider of real estate and mortgage services.

0 achieve these goals, we will focus on expansion in northeast Alabama,
orthwest Florida, and the Tampa Bay markets. Already, we have
1 new branches planned for these areas.

“I consider 2006 a very successful year, resulting
in the creation of a $2.4 hillion community bank with
60 banking offices from Huntsville, Alabama
to Tampa, Florida.”

> Stan Bailey, CEQ




.. H ATRANMAN

Dear Shareholders:

Superior's five-year strategic plan adopted in January 2005 outlined
a plan to take a $1.3 billion, 26 office, underperferming bank and
maximize shareholder value through the creation of 2 $3.0 billion
community bank with 70+ banking offices concentrated in North
Alahama and Florida. In our 2005 annual report, we summarized the
progress made from the vestiges of The Banc Corp (NASDAQ: TBNC)
to the creation of Superior Bancorp (NASDAQ: SUPR), a company
capable of supporting the dramatic growth planned during 2006.
Changes occurred from "the board room to the basement,” and our
shareholders were rewarded with a 37% increase in the stock price.

GROWTH YEAR

In the five-year plan, we identified 2006 as the company's growth
period. Through double-digit organic growth of the Bank’s deposit and
loan portfolios as well as through partnerships with other community
banks in Florida and Alabama, the Bank grew maore than 72% to

$2.4 billion whife returning the company to core profitability.

To set the tone for the type of partnerships and markets we desired,
we made our first partnership in March 20086, an all stock transaction,
with the $325 million First Kensington Bank of Tampa, Florida, led by
Gerald Archibald. Dewey Mitchell was added to our Board to represent
Tampa Bay.

In May 2006, we entered into a partnership with the $650 million
Community Bancshares in North Alabama, led by Pat Frawley. With its
18 banking offices and 15 consumer finance offices, it filled the "hole
in the donut” of Superior's north Alabama franchise. We added Glynn
Debter and R. B. Jackson, veteran Community directors, to our Board.

And in January 2007, we announced a partnership with the $333
million People’s Community Bank of Sarasota, Florida, led by Neil
McCurry and his management team.

On the home front, we announced an 11 branch expansion plan in
north Alabama and Florida through 2007. We opened new branch
offices in Athens and Huntsville, Alabama, Tallahassee, Florida,
and three new finance company offices in Cullman, Jasper and
Oxford, Alabama, as Superior Financial Services. These efforts
resulted in 21% loan and 11% deposit growth during 2006.

>

PERFORMANCE EXCELLENCE

Our Tennessee Valtey Market Group, led by Vernon Bice, had an
outstanding year. Loans grew 47% organicaily to $206 million
and deposits grew 15% organicaily to $127 million.

Our Mortgage Banking Group, led by Frank Pritchard, became the
market leader in mortgage loan originations of all banks operating
in the Birmingham MSA with more than 33% growth compared to
2005 and $381 mitlion in martgage loan originations.

Our Commercial Real Estate Group, led by Ken Pomeroy and
Bill McKinnon, had an outstanding year growing loans over 21%
to $156.7 million.

Our Private Banking Group, led by Billy Forbes, was started during
2005 and grew to $76 million in assets under management.

Our Residential Construction Group, led by John Alexander and Larry
Turner, also had an outstanding year, growing 41% to $155 million.

MERGER CHAQS

In 2005, the probability that the “Big Four” — AmSouth, Compass,
SouthTrust, Regions — would continue to operate independently was
considerad highly unlikely. Today, none of the “Big Four” exist as they
did then. Superior stands to benefit from the mergers. We don't think
a Canadian bank, a Spanish bank, a Memphis stock brokerage nor a
“Top 10" bank are the banking organizations many Southerners seek
for their banking needs.

Ultimately, customers seek stability and consistency with their
financial and banking relationships. Personnel eliminations,
downsizings, branch closings, branch divestitures, customer
divestitures, consolidations, technology conversions, and
reducing decision authorities contribute to customer concems
and dissatisfaction. “Big” does not mean “good.”




CHALLENGING ENVIRONMENT

Rising interest rates, an inverted yield curve, slowing economic
growth and declining real estate values and sales are just a few of the
external factors we have no ability to influence or control. While not
our first experience with these factors, quality of management, proper
risk management and monitoring systems, and balance sheet quality
are essential to weathering these challenges. The diversity created

by our market expansion strategy during 2006 has already proven
beneficial in today's challenging environment,

LOOKING FORWARD

As we look towards a bright future, it is appropriate to recognize our
legacy with the recent retirement of James A. Taylor, the founder and
former Chairman of The Banc Corp. We wouldn't be where we are
today without his vision and foresight in 1998 and we wish him and
Martha well.

In evaluating our strategic progress of creating shareholder value, we
are on schedule toward our ultimate five-year goals. With a valuable
franchise, clean balance sheet, diverse markets and an expanded
customer base, 2007 and 2008 are focused on bank performance and
shareholder value enhancement.

We appreciate your support and encouragement.
Sincerely yours,

( By Bate,

G. Stanley Bailey
Chairman & CEQ

“ON OUR WAY
~

A journey on the road to success.

We're all trying to gat there, over the hurdles and challenges that
lie between points a and b. We can’t stop or siow down, because
point b is not our destination, but our vision. For us, it was a vision
of Superior Bank becoming part of great communities in Alabama
and Florida, fueling the journeys of people moving towards their
own visians of an education, a heme, a small business. 2006

saw us well on our way 10 [ulfilling this vision, with new branches
continuing to open and new records being set. While other banks
boast abeut arriving, we'll just say we're on our way. After all, isn't
helping our customers and cemmunities get on their way what
hanking is about?
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PART |

Item 1. Business.
General

We are a Delaware-chartered thrift holding compuny headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama. We offer a

broad range of banking and related services in 54 locations in Alabama and Florida through Superior Bank, our’

principal subsidiary. Superior Bank's consumer finance subsidiaries operate an additional 18 consumer finance
offices in North Alabama. We had assets of approximately $2.441 billion, loans of approximately $1.640 billion,
deposits of approximately $1.871 billion and stockholders’ equity of approximately $276 million at December 31,
2006. Our principal executive offices are located at 17 North 20th Street, Birmingham, Alabama 35203, and our
telephone number is (205} 327-1400.

We were founded in 1997 and completed our initial public offering in December 1998. Beginning in the fall of
1998, we grew through the acquisition of various financial institutions in Alabama and Florida.

In January 2005. we began the transition from our founding management team to a new senior management
team composed of veteran bankers with a strong operational track record and a history of enhancing stockholder
value. During the remainder of 2005, we completed that management transition, En addition, in November 2005 we
converted our principal subsidiary, now known as Superior Bank, from an Alabama state-chartered bank to a
federally chartered thrift regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”). We believe that this conversion
allows us greater flexibility in our operations, as well as allowing Superior Bank to operate under a single regulatory
system rather than the dual federal/state regulatory system that had been applicable to it.

During 2006, we expanded our franchise with two strategic acquisitions. On August 31, 2006, we entered the
Tampa, Florida market when we acquired Kensington Bankshares, Inc. (“Kensington™) and its subsidiary, First
Kensington Baak. On November 7, 2006, we increased our market presence in North Alabama by acquiring
Community Bancshares, Inc (“Community”) and its subsidiary, Community Bank.

Recently Announced Merger Agreement

On January 18, 2007, we announced that we had signed a definitive agreement to merge with People’s
Community Bancshares, Inc. (“People’s™). People’s is the holding company for People’s Community Bank of the
West Coast, a Florida state bank with three branches in Sarasota and Manatee Counties in Florida. Under the terms
of the merger agreement, we will issue 2.9036 shares of our common stock for each share of People’s stock. Based
on recent closing prices per share for our common stock, the transaction would be valued al approximately
$77.1 million. The actual value at consummation will be based on our share price at thal time. Completion of the
merger is subject to approval by the stockholders of People’s, to the receipt of required regulatory approvals, and to
the satisfaction of usual and customary closing conditions.

Stratepgy

Operations. We focus our services on small- to medium-sized businesses, as well as professionals and
individuals, emphasizing our local decision-making, effective response time and personalized service. As a result,
we conduct our business on a decentralized basis with respect to deposit gathering and most credit decisions,
utilizing locai knowledge and authority to make these decisions. We supplement this decentralized management
approach with centralized loan administration, policy oversight, credit review, audit. legal, asset/liability man-
agement, data processing, human resources and risk management systems. We implement these standardized
administrative and operational policies at each of our locations while retaining local management and advisory
directors to capitalize on their knowledge of the local community.

Products and Services.  Superior Bank provides a wide range of retail and small business services, including
noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing checking, savings and money market accounts, negotiable order of
withdrawal (“NOW™) accounts, certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts. In addition, Superior
Bank offers an extensive array of consumer, small business, residential real estate and commercial real estate loan
products. Other financial services include annuities, automated teller machines, debit cards, credit-related life and
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disability insurance, safety deposit boxes, Internet banking, bill payment and telephone banking. Superior Bank
attracts primary banking relationships through' the customer-oriented service environment created by Superior
Bank’s personnel combined with competitive financial products.

Superior Bank also owns two consumer finance companies, Superior Financial Services, LLC and 1™ Com-
munity Credit Corporation. The finance companies generally provide smaller loans to a market segment tradi-
tionally not pursued by Superior Bank. These loans typically involve greater risk and generate higher yields than
standard bank loans. We believe that, by conducting this business, we reach a customer base not served by our
banking operations.

Market Areas. 'We are headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama. Our primary markets are located in northern
and central Alabama, the panhandle of Florida and the Tampa, Florida area.:

Superior Bank has branches in:

Albertville Andalusia Altha

Athens Birmingham Apalachicola
Blountsville Boaz Blountstown
Childersburg Cleveland Bristol

Decatur Elkmont Carrabelle
Falkville Frisco City Clearwater
Gadsden Gardendale Mexico Beach
Guntersville Gurley New Port Richey
Haleyville Hamilton Palm Harbor
Hartselle ~ Huntsville Port Richey
Jones Valley Kinston Port St. Joe
Madison Meridianville Spring Hill
Monroeville New Hope "Sun City Center
Oneonta Opp Tallahassee
Rainbow City Rogersville Tampa

Samson Snead » Wesley Chapel
Sylacauga Uniontown

Warrior

In addition to our branches, we operate loan production offices in Montgomery, Alabama, and Panama City
and Tallahassee, Florida. Qur finance company subsidiaries have offices in Albertville, Arab, Athens, Boaz,
Culiman, Decatur, Fort Payne, Gadsden, Hartselle, Huntsville, Jasper, Oneonta, Oxford, Pell City and Talladega,
Alabama. ’ .

Growth.  Our future growth depends primarily on the expansion of the business of our primary wholly owned
subsidiary, Superior Bank. That expansion will depend on internal growth and the opening of new branch offices in
new and existing markets. Superior Bank may also continue to engage in the strategic acquisition of other financial
institutions and branches that have relatively high earings and low-cost deposits or that we believe to have
exceptional growth potential, such as the acquisitions completed in 2006 and the People’s acquisition described
above. Our ability to increase profitability and to grow internally depends primarily on our ability to attract and
retain low-cost core deposits while continuing to generate high-yielding, quality loans. Our ability to grow
profitably through the opening or acquisition of new branches will depend primarily on, among other things, our
ability to identify growing markets and branch locations within such markets that will enable us 1o attract the
necessary deposits (0 operate such branches profitably, and identify lending and investment opportunities within
such markets.




We periodically evaluate business combination opportunities and conduct discussions, due diligence activities
and negotiations in connection with those opportunities. As a result, we may pursue business combination
transactions involving cash, debt or equity securities from time to time. Any future business combination or
series of business combinations that we might undertake may be material to our business, financial condition or
results of operations in terms of assets acquired or labilities assumed. Any future acquisition is subject to approval
by the appropriate regulatory agencies. See “Supervision and Regulation.”

Lending Activities

General.  We offer various lending services, including real estate, consumer and commercial loans, primarily
10 individuals and businesses and other organizations that are located in or conduct a substantial portion of their
business in our market areas. Our total loans at December 31, 2006 were $1.640 billion, or 78.9% of total earning
assets. The interest rates we charge on loans vary with the risk, maturity and amount of the loan and are subject to
competitive pressures, money market rates, availability of funds and government regulations. We do not have any
foreign loans or loans for highly leveraged transactions.

The lending activities of Superior Bank are subject to the writien underwriting standards and loan origination
procedures established by Superior Bank’s Board of Directors and management. Loan originations are obtained
from a variety of sources, including referrals, existing customers, walk-in customers and advertising. Loan
applications are initially processed by loan officers who have approval authority up to designated limits.

We use generally recognized loan underwriting criteria, and attempt to minimize loan losses through various
means. In particular, on farger credits, we generally rely on the cash flow of a debtor as the primary source of
repayment and secondarily on the value of the underlying collateral. In addition, we attempt to utilize shorter loan
terms in order to reduce the risk of a decline in the value of such collateral. As of December 31, 2006, approximately
77.9% of our loan portfolio consisted of loans that had variable interest rates or matured within one year.

We address repayment nisks by adhering to internal credit policies and procedures that include officer and
customer lending limits, a multi-layered loan approval process that includes senior management of Superior Bank
and Superior Bancorp for larger loans, periodic documentation examination and follow-up procedures for any
exceptions to credit policies. The level in our loan approval process at which a loan is approved depends on the size
of the borrower’s overall credit relationship with Superior Bank.

Loan Portfolio

Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by real estate are a significant component of our loan portfolio,
constituting $1.413 billion, or 86.1% of total loans, at December 31, 2006. At that date, $456.3 million, or
27.8% of our total loan portfolio, consisted of single-family mortgage loans. Nonresidential mortgage loans include
commercial and industrial loans. At December 31, 2006, $409.4 million, or 24.9% of our total loan portfolio,
consisted of these loans, Our commercial real estate loans primarily provide financing for income-producing
properties such as shopping centers, multi-family complexes and office buildings and for owner-occupied
properties (primarily light industrial facilities and office buildings). These loans are underwritten with loan-to-value
ratios ranging, on averagé,‘ from 65% to 85% based upon the type of property being financed and the financial
strength of the borrower. For owner-occupied commercial buildings, we underwrite the financial capability of the
owner, with an 85% maximum loan-to-value ratio, For income-producing improved real estate, we underwrite the
strength of the leases, especially those of any anchor tenants, with minimum debt service coverage of 1.2:1 and an
85% maximum loan-to-value ratio. Whiie evaluation of collateral is an essentiat part of the underwriting process for
these loans, repayment ability is determined from analysis of the borrower’s earnings and cash flow. Terms are
typically three to five years and may have payments through the date of maturity based on a 15- to 30-year
amortization schedule. '

We make loans to finance the construction of and improvements to single-family and multi-family housing and
commercial structures as well as loans for land development. At December 31, 2006, $547.8 million, or 33.4% of
our total portfolio, consisted of such loans. Our construction lending is divided into three general categories: owner-
occupied commercial buildings; income-producing improved real estate; and single-family residential construc-
tion. For construction loans related to income-producing properties, the underwriting criteria are the same as
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outlined in the preceding paragraph. For single-family residential construction, we underwrite the financial strength
and reputation of the builder, factoring in the general state of the economy and interest rates and the location of the
home, with an 85% maximum loan-to-value ratio. The majority of land development toans consists of loans to
convert raw land into residential subdivisions,

Commercial and Industrial Loans. We make loans for commercial purposes in various lines of business.
These loans are typically made on terms up to five years at fixed or variable rates and are secured by eligible
accounts receivable, inventory or equipment. We attempt to reduce our credit risk on commercial loans by limiting
the loan to value ratio to 80% on loans secured by eligible accounts receivable, 50% on loans secured by inventory
and 75% on loans secured by equipment. Commercial and industrial loans constituted $172.9 million, or 10.5% of
our loan portfolio, at December 31, 2006. We also, from time to time, make unsecured commercial loans.

Consumer Loans. Our consumer portfolio includes installment loans to individuals in our market areas and
consists primarily of loans to purchase automobiles, recreational vehicles, mobile homes and consumer goods.
Consumer loans constituted $54.5 million, or 3.3% of our loan portfolic, at December 31, 2006. Consumer loans are
underwritten based on the borrower’s income, current debt, credit history and collateral. Terms generally range
from one 1o six years on automobile loans and one to three years on other consumer loans.

Credit Review and Procedures

There are credit risks associated with making any loan. These include repayment risks, risks resulting from
uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in economic and industry conditions and
risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. In particular, longer maturities increase the risk that economic
conditions will change and adversely affect collectibility.

We have a loan review process designed to promote early identification of credit quality problems. We employ
a risk rating system that assigns to each loan a rating that corresponds to the perceived credit risk. Risk ratings are
subject to independent review by a centralized loan review department, which also performs ongoing, independent
review of the risk management process, including underwriting, documentation and coliateral control. Regular
reports are made to senior management and the Board of Directors regarding credit quality as measured by assigned
risk ratings and other measures, including, but not limited to, the level of past due percentages and nonperforming
assets. The loan review function is centralized and independent of the lending function.

Deposits

Core deposits are our principal source of funds, constituting approximately 71.4% of our total deposits as of
December 31, 2006. Core deposits consist of demand deposits, interest-bearing transaction accounts, savings
deposits and certificates of deposit (excluding certificates of deposits over $100,000). Transaction accounts include
checking, money market and NOW accounts that provide Superior Bank with a source of fee income and cross-
marketing opportunities, as well as a low-cost source of funds. Time and savings accounts also provide a relatively
stable and low-cost source of funding. The largest source of funds for Superior Bank is certificates of deposit.
Certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 are approximately $534 million, or 28.5% of our deposits. Approx-
imately $149 million consist of wholesale, or “brokered”, certificates of deposits.

Our other primary source of funds is advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”). These advances
are secured by FHLB stock, agency securities and a blanket lien on certain residential and commercial real estate
loans. We also have available unused federal funds lines of credit with regional banks, subject to certain restrictions
and collateral requirements.

Deposit rates are set periodically by our internal Asset/Liability Management Committee, which includes
certain members of senior management. We believe our rates are competitive with those offered by competing
institutions in our market areas.

Competition

The banking industry is highly competitive, and our profitability depends principally upon our ability to
compete in our market areas. In cur market areas, we face competition from both super-regional banks and smaller
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community banks, as well as non-bank financial services companies. We encounter strong competition both in
making loans and attracting deposits. Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates offered
on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on loans and other credit and service charges. Customers also consider
the quality and scope of the services rendered, the convenience of banking facilities and, in the case of loans to
commercial borrowers, relative lending limits. Customers may also take into account the fact that other banks offer
different services. Many of the large super-regional banks against which we compete have significantly greater
lending limits and may offer additional products; however, we believe we have been able to compete effectively
with other financial institutions, regardless of their size, by emphasizing customer service and by providing a wide
array of services. In addition, most of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal
regulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured banks. See “Supervision and Regulation.”
Competition may further intensify if additional financial services companies enter markets in which we conduct
business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we employed approximately 711 full-time equivalent employees, primarily at
Superior Bank. We believe that our employee relations have been and continue to be good.

Supervision and Regulation

General.  Superior Bancorp, as a unitary savings and loan holding company, and Superior Bank, as'a federal
savings bank, are required by federal law to report to, and otherwise comply with the rules and regulations of, OTS,
We are subject to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by OTS, as our primary federai regulator, and
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC™), as the deposit insurer. We are a member of the Federal
Home Loan Bank System and, with respect to deposit insurance, of the Deposit Insurance Fund managed by the
FDIC. We must file reports with OTS and the FDIC concerning our activities and financial condition in addition to

obtaining regulatory approvals prior 1o entering into certain transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitions of,.

other financial institutions. QTS conducts periodic examinations to test our safety and soundness and compliance
with various regulatory requirements. This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of
activities in which a thrift can engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the insurance fund and
depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with
their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the
classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes. Any change in
such regulatory requirements and policies, whether by OTS, the FDIC or Congress, could have a material adverse
impact on us and our operations. Certain regulatory requirements applicable to us are referred to below or elsewhere
herein. The description of siatutory provisions and regulations applicable 1o thrifts and their holding companies set
forth below does not purport to be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on us and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual laws and regulations.

Holding Company Regulation. We are a nondiversified unitary savings and loan holding company within the
meaning of such terms under federal law. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 provides that no company may
acquire control of a savings institution after May 4, 1999, unless it engages only in the financial activities permitted
for financial holding companies under the law or for multiple savings and loan holding companies as described
below. Further, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act specifies that certain savings and loan holding companies may only
engage in such activities. Since we became a savings and loan holding company in 2005, we are limited to such
activities. Upon any non-supervisory acquisition by us of another savings institution or savings bank that meets the
qualified thrift lender test and is deemed to be a savings institution by OTS, we would become a multiple savings
and loan holding company (if the acquired institution is held as a separate subsidiary) and would generally be
limited to activities permissible for bank holding companies under Section 4(c)(8) of the Bank Holding Company
Act, subject to the prior approval of the OTS, and certain activities authorized by OTS regulation. However, OTS
has issued an interpretation concluding that the multiple savings and loan holding companies may also engage in
activities permitted for financial holding companies.

A savings and loan holding company is prohibited from directly or indirectly acquiring more than 5% of the
voting stock of another financial institution or savings and loan holding company without prior written approval of
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OTS and from acquiring or retaining control of a depository institution that is not insured by the FDIC. In evaluating
applications by holding companies to acquire other institutions, OTS considers, among other things, the financial
and managerial resources and future prospects of the institutions involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to
the deposit insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors.

Subject to certain exceptions, OTS may not approve any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and
loan holding company’s controlling savings institutions in more than one state.

Although savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific capital requirements or
specific restrictions on the payment of dividends or other capital distributions, federal regulations prescribe such
restrictions on subsidiary savings institutions, as described below. Superior Bank must notify OTS 30 days before
declaring any dividend to Superior Bancorp. In addition, the financial impact of a holding company on its subsidiary
institution is a matter that is evaluated by OTS, and OTS has authority to order cessation of activities or divestiture
of subsidiaries deemed to pose a threat to the safety and soundness of the institution.

Change in Bank Control Act.  Under the Federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notice must be submitted to
OTS if any person, or group acting in concert, seeks to acquire “control” of a savings and loan holding company ora
savings association. A change of control may occur, and prior notice may be required, upon the acquisition of more
than 10% of our outstanding voting stock, unless OTS has found that the acquisition will not result in a change of
control of Superior Bancorp. Under the Change in Bank Control Act, OTS generally has 60 days from the filing of a
complete notice to act, taking into consideration certain factors, including the financial and managerial resources of
the acquirer and the anti-trust effects of the acquisition.

Regulation of Business Activities. The activities of thrifts are governed by federal laws and regulations.
These laws and regulations delineate the nature and extent of the activities in which thrifts may engage. In
particular, certain lending authority for thrifts, e.g., commercial loans, non-residential real property loans and
consumer loans, is limited to a specified percentage of the institution’s capital or assets.

Capital Requirements. OTS capital regulations require savings institutions to meet three minimum capital
standards: a 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest
rating on the regulatory examination rating system} and an 8% risk-based capital ratio. In addition, the prompt
corrective action standards discussed below also establish, in effect, a minimum 2% tangible capital standard, a 4%
leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest examination rating), and, together with the risk-based
capital standard itself, a 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital standard.

The risk-based capital standard for savings institutions requires the maintenance of ratios of Tier 1 (core) and
total capital (which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and
8%, respectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet
assets, recourse obligations, residual interests and direct credit substitutes, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of
0% to 100%, assigned by OTS capital regulation based on the risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core
{Tier 1} capital includes, among other things, common stockholders’ equity (including retained earnings), certain
nencumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, and minority interests in equity accounts of consol-
idated subsidiaries. The components of supplementary capital currently include, among other things, cumulative
perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, and the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a
maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets. Overall, the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total
capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.

OTS also has authority o establish minimum capital requirements in appropriate cases upon a determination
that an institution’s capital level is or may become inadequate in light of the particular circumstances. At
December 31, 2006, Superior Bank met each of its capital requirements.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action.  OTS is required to take certain supervisory actions against under-
capitalized institutions, the severity of which depends upon the institution’s degree of undercapitalization.
Generally, a savings institution that has a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets of less than &%, a ratio
of Tier | {core) capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or a ratio of core capital to total assets of less than 4%
(less than 3% for institutions with the highest examination rating) is considered to be “undercapitalized.” A savings
institution that has a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6%, a Tier | capital ratio of less than 3% or a leverage
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ratio that is less than 3% is considered to be “significantly undercapitalized”, and a savings institution that has a
tangible capital to assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be “critically undercapitalized.” Subject to a
narrow exception, OTS is required to appoint a receiver or conservator within specified time frames for an
institution that is “critically undercapitalized.” The regulation also provides that a capital restoration plan must be
filed with OTS within 45 days of the date a savings institution receives notice that it is “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” Compliance with the plan must be guaranteed by
any parent holding company. In addition, numerous mandatory supervisory actions become immediately applicable
to an undercapitalized institution, including, but not limited to, increased monitoring by regulators and restrictions
on growth, capital distributions and expansion. OTS could also take any one of a number of discretionary
supervisory actions, including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers
and directors.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts.  Superior Bank is a member of the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. The
FDIC maintains a risk-based assessment system by which institutions are assigned to one of four categories based
upon a combination of their capitalization and examination ratings. An institution’s assessment depends upon the
category to which it is assigned. An institution assigned to the category with the lowest risk also has certain financial
ratios taken into account in determining assessment rates, unless it is a large institution with at least one long-term
debt issuer rating, in which case the rating will be taken into account in determining its assessment rate. Assessment
rates for Deposit Insurance Fund members currently range from five basis points for the healthiest institutions to
43 basis points of assessable deposits for the riskiest. The FDIC has the authority to increase insurance assessments.
A significant increase in Deposit Insurance Fund insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on the
operating expenses and results of operations of Superior Bank. Management cannot predict what insurance
assessment rates will be in the future,

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds issued
in the late 1980s by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance
Fund. During fiscal 2006, Financing Corporation payments for Savings Association Insurance Fund members
approximated 1.385 basis points of assessable deposits. l

Deposit insurance may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that thé institution has engaged in unsafe or
unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law,
regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or OTS. We do not know of any practice, condition or
violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Loans to One Borrower.  Federal law provides that savings institutions are generally subject to the limits on
loans to one borrower applicable to national banks. Generally, subject to certain exceptions, a savings institution
may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired
capital and surplus. An additional amount may be lent, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if secured by
specified readily-marketable collateral.

QOTL Test. Federal law requires savings institutions to meet a qualified thrift lender test. Under the test, a
savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan association” under the Internal
Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified liquid assets up to 20%
of total assets; (ii) intangibles, including goodwill; and (iii) the value of property used to conduct business) in certain
“qualified thrift investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments, including certain mortgage-
backed securities) in at least nine months out of each 12-month period.

A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operating restrictions and may
be required to convert to a bank charter. As of December 31, 2006, Superior Bank met the qualified thrift lender test.
Recent legislation has expanded the extent to which education loans, credit card loans and small business loans may
be considered “qualified thrift investments.”

Limitations on Capital Distributions. OTS regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions by a
savings institution, including cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares and payments to shareholders of
another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and prior approval of the OTS is
required prior to any capital distribution if the institution does not meet the criteria for “expedited treatment” of
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applications under OTS regulations, the total capital distributions (including the proposed capital distribution) for
the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two
years, the institution would be undercapitalized following the distribution or the distribution would otherwise be
contrary 1o a statute, regulation or agreement with OTS. If an application is not required, the institution must still
provide prior notice to OTS of the capital distribution if, like Superior Bank, it is a subsidiary of a holding company.
In the event Superior Bank’s capital fell below its regulatory requirements or OTS notified it that it was in need of
increased supervision, Superior Bank’s ability to make capital distributions could be restricted. In addition, OTS
could prohibit a proposed capital distribution by any institution, which would otherwise be permitted by the
regulation, if OTS determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice.

Transactions with Related Parties.  Superior Bank’s authority o engage in transactions with “affiliates” (i.e.,
any company that controls or is under common control with Superior Bank, including Superior Bancorp and its non-
savings institution subsidiaries) is limited by federal law. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with any
individual affiliate is limited to 10% of the capital and surplus of the savings institution. The aggregate amount of
covered transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of a savings institution’s capital and surplus. Certain
transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an amount and of a type described in federal
law. The purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is generally prohibited. The transactions with affiliates must
be on terms and under circumstances that'are at least as favorable to the institution as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies. In addition, savings institutions are prohibited from lending
to any affiliate that is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies, and no savings
institution may purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank to their
executive officers and directors. However, that act contains a specific exception for loans by a financial institution,
such as Superior Bank, to its exccutive officers and directors that are made in compliance with federal banking laws.
Under such laws, Superior Bank’s authority to exiend credit to executive officers, directors and 10% shareholders
{“insiders”), as well as enlities such persons control, is limited. The law limits both the individual and aggregate
amount of loans Superior Bank may make to insiders based, in part, on Superior Bank’s capital position and requires
certain board.approval procedures to be followed. Such loans are required to be made on terms substantially the
same as those offered to unaffiliated individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of repayment. There is an
exception for loans made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program that is widely available to all employees of
the institution and does not give preference to insiders over other employees.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies have adopted Interagency Guidelines
prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness. These guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that
the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital
becomes impaired. If OTS determines that a savings institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the
guidelines, OTS may require the institution to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard.

Enforcement. OTS has primary enforcement responsibility over savings institutions and has the authority to
bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties, including stockholders, and any attorneys,
appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse
effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance of a capital directive or
cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to institution of receive?shipz conservatorship or
termination of deposit insurance. Civil money penalties cover a wide range of violations and can amount to
$5,000 per day, or even $1 million per day in especially egregious cases. In addition, the FDIC has the authority to
recommend to the Director of OTS that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular savings institution.
If action is not taken by the Director, the FDIC has authority to take such action under certain circumstances.
Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations,

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Superior Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System,
which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System provides a central
credit facility primarily for member institutions. Superior Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank
System, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the applicable FHLB (Atlanta) in an amount at least
equal to 1.0% of the aggregate principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgage loans and similar obligations at
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the beginning of each year, or 1/20 of its advances (borrowings) from the applicable FHLB, whichever is greatet.
Superior Bank was in compliance with this requirement at December 31, 2006, with an investment in FHLB stock of
$12.4 million.

Federal Reserve System.  The Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings institutions to maintain non-
interest earning reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking accounts). The
regulations generally provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts as follows: a 3%
reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts up to and including $48.3 million; a 10% reserve ratio is applied
above $48.3 million. The first $7.8 million of otherwise reservable balances (subject to adjustments by the Federal
Reserve Board) are exempted from the reserve requirements. These amounts are adjusted annually. Superior Bank
complies with the foregoing requirements.

Community Reinvestment Act.  Superior Bank is subject to the CRA. The CRA and the regulations issued
thereunder are intended to encourage financial institutions to help meet the credit needs of their service areas,
including low and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operations of the financial
institutions. These regulations also provide for regulatory assessment of an institution’s record in meeting the needs
of its service area when considering applications to establish branches, merger applications, applications to engage
in new activities and applications to acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another institution. The Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA™) requires federal banking agencies to
make public a rating of an institution’s performance under the CRA. In the case of a holding company involved in a
proposed transaction, the CRA performance records of the banks involved are reviewed by federal banking agencies
in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of shares or assets of a bank or thrift or
to merge with any other bank holding company. An unsatisfactory record can substantially delay or block the
transaction. Superior Bank has a satisfactory CRA rating.

Confidentiality of Customer information. Federal laws and regulations, including the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act, require that financial institutions take certain steps to protect the security and confidentiality of customers’
non-public personal information. Among other things, these regulations restrict the ability of financial institutions
to share non-public customer information with non-affiliated third parties and require financial institutions to
provide customers with information about their privacy policies. Superior Bank has procedures in place that are
intended to comply with these requirements.

Bank Secrecy Act.  Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank are subject to the federal Bank Secrecy Act of 1970,
as amended, which establishes requirements for recordkeeping and reporting by banks and other financial
institutions designed to help identify the source, volume and movement of currency and monetary instruments
into and out of the United States in order to help detect and prevent money laundering and other illegal activities.
The Bank Secrecy Act requires financial institutions to develop and maintain a program reasonably designed to
ensure and monitor compliance with its requirements, to train employees in such program, and to test the
effectiveness of such program. Any failure to meet the requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act can involve substantial
penalties and adverse regulatory action. We have adopted policies and procedures intended to comply with the
requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act.

USA Patriot Act.  On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed into law the Uniting and Strengthening
America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA
Patriot Act”), which, among other things, amends the Bank Secrecy Act. The USA Patriot Act strengthened the
ability of the U.S. government to detect and prosecute international money laundering and the financing of
terrorism. Among its provisions, the USA Patriot Act requires that regulated financial institutions: (i) establish an
anti-money laundering program that includes training and audit componenis; (ii) comply with regulations regarding
the verification of the identity of any person secking to open an account; (iii) take additional required precautions
with non-U.S. owned accounts; and (iv) perform certain verification and certification of money laundering risk for
any foreign correspondent banking relationships. We have adopted policies, procedures and controls to address
compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act under the existing regulations and will continue 1o revise
and uvpdate our polictes, procedures and controls to reflect changes required by the USA Patriot Act and
implementing regulations, ‘




Consumer Laws and Regulations. In addition to the laws and regulations discussed herein, Superior Bank is
also subject 1o certain consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consumers in transactions with
banks. While the list set forth herein is not exhaustive, these laws and regulations include the Truth in Lending Act,
the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures
Act, among others. These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in
which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking depostts from, making loans to, or engaging in
other types of transactions with, such customers.

Instability of Regulatory Structure

Various bills are routinely introduced in the United States Congress and state legislatures with respect to the
regulation of financial institutions. Some of these proposals, if adopted, could significantly change the regulation of
banks and the financial services industry. We cannot predict whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if
adopted, how these proposals would affect us.

Effect on Economic Environment

The policies of regulatory authorities, especially the monetary policy of the Federal Reserve Board, have a
significant effect on the operating results of savings and loan holding companies and their subsidiaries. Among the
means available to the Federal Reserve Board to affect the money supply are open market operations in
U.S. Government securities, changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowings and changes in reserve
requirements against member bank deposits. These means are used in varying combinations to influence overall
growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposits, and their use may affect interest rates charged on
loans or paid for deposits,

Federal Reserve Board monetary policies have matenially affected the operating results of commercial banks
and thrifts in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The nature of future monetary policies and
the effect of such policies on our business and earnings cannot be predicted.

Available Information

We maintain an Internet website at www.superiorbank.com. We make available free of charge through our
website various reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports. These
reports are made available as soon as reasonably practicable after these reports are filed with, or furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission. From our home page at www.superiorbank.com, go to and click on “Investor
Relations™ and click on “SEC Filings” to access these reports.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our principal executive,
financial and accounting officers. A copy of our code of ethics is available on our website. We intend to disclose
information about any amendments to, or waivers from, our code of ethics that are required to be disclosed under
applicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations by providing appropriate information on our website.
If at any time our code of ethics is not available on our website, we will provide a copy of it free of charge upon
written request.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business, and an investment in our securities, involves risks. The following summary describes factors we
believe are material risks relating to our business and to the ownership of our securities. Our discussion of these risks
contains forward-looking statements, and our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated by such
forward-looking statements. In addition, financial condition and results of operations, and the market price of our
common stock, may be substantially affected by other risks, including risks we have not identified or that we may
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believe are immaterial or unlikely. This summary does not purport to describe all risks that might possibly affect our
business, financial condition or results of operations or the market price of our common stock.

Risks Relating To Our Business

If the interest pavinents we make on our depaosits increase relative to our interest income, we may be less
profitable.  Our profitability depends to a large extent on Superior Bank’s net interest income, which is the
difference between income from interest-earning assets, such as loans we make and investment securities we hold,
and interest we pay on deposits and our own borrowings. Our net interest income is affected not only by actions we
take, but by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic factors beyond our control. Our net
interest income may be reduced if (i) more interest-earning assets than interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature
at a time when interest rates are declining, or (ii) more interest-bearing liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice
or mature at a time when interest rates are rising.

In addition, we may be affected by changes in the difference between short- and long-term interest rates. For
example, short-term deposits may be used to support longer-term loans. If the difference between short-and long-
term interest rates becomes smaller, the spread between the rates we pay on deposits and borrowings and the rates
we receive on loans we make could narrow significantly, decreasing our net interest income.

Further, if market interest rates rise rapidly, interest rate adjustment caps may limit our ability to increase
interest rates on adjustable-rate mortgage loans, but we may have to pay higher interest rates on deposits and
borrowings. This could cause our net interest income to decrease.

An increase in loan prepayments may adversely affect our profitability. The rate at which borrowers prepay
loans is dependent on a number of factors outside our control, including changes in market interest rates, conditions
in the housing and financial markets and general economic conditions. We cannot always accurately predict
prepayment rates. If the prepayment rates with respect 1o our loans are greater than we anticipate, there may be a
negative impact on our profitability because we may not be able to reinvest prepayment proceeds at rates
comparable 1o those we recetved on the prepaid loans, particularly in a time of falling interest rates.

If our allowance for loan losses is inadequate, our profitability will be reduced. We are exposed to the risk
that our customers will be unable to repay their loans in accordance with their terms and that any collateral securing
such loans will be insufficient to ensure full repayment. Such credit risk is inherent in the lending business, and our
failure to adequately assess such credit risk could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operations. We evaluate the collectibility of our loan portfolio and review our evaluation on a regular basis, and
we provide an allowance for loan losses that we believe is adequate based on various factors that we believe may
affect the credit quality of our loans. However, there can be no assurance that actual loan losses will not exceed the
allowance that we have established, as such allowance is adjusted from time to time.,

If our allowance for loan losses is inadequate for the actual losses we experience, there could be a material
adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, if as a result of our perception of adverse trends, we
materially increase or allowance for loan losses in the future, such increase would also reduce our eamings.

_ Events in our geographic markets could adversely affect us.  Qur business is concentraied in a limited number

of markets in Alabama and Florida. Changes in general economic conditions and in the values of real estate in such
geographic markets could have an adverse impact on our ability to achieve our toan and deposit growth targets and
on our customers’ ability to repay existing loans. In addition, natural disasters, such as hurricanes and tornadoes, in
our geographic markets could adversely affect our business.

We face substantial competition. There are numerous competitors in our geographic markets, including
national, regional and local banks and thrifts and other financial services businesses, some of which have
substantially greater resources, higher brand visibility and a wider geographic presence than we have. Some of
these competitors may offer a greater range of services, more favorable pricing and greater customer convenience
than we are able to. In addition, in some of our markets, there are a significant number of new banks and other
financial institutions that have opened in the recent past or are expected to open in the near future, and such new
competitors may also seek to exploit our markets and customer base, If we are unable to maintain and grow our
market share in the face of such competition, our results of operations will be adversely affected.
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We are subject to extensive regulation. Our operations are subject to regulation by the Office of Thrift
Supervision and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. We are also subject 10 applicable regulations of the
Federal Home Loan Bank. Regulation by these entities is intended primarily for the protection of our depositors and
the deposit insurance fund and not for the benefit of our stockholders. We may incur substantial costs in complying
with such regulations, and our failure to comply with therm may expose us to substantial penalties.

In addition, we are subject to numerous consumer protection laws and other laws relating to the operation of
financial institutions. Our failure to comply with such laws could expose us to liability, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

We may require additional capital 1o fund our growth plans.  Our business strategy includes the expansion of
our business through the development of new locations and through the acquisition of other financial institutions
and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, complementary businesses as appropriate opportunities arise. In
order to finance such growth and to maintain required regulatory capital levels, we may require additional capital in
the future. There can be no assurance that such capital will be available upon favorable terms, or at all.

We are dependent upon the services of our management team. Our operations and strategy are directed by our
senior management team, most of whom have joined Superior Bancorp since January 2005. Any loss of the services
of members of our management team could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and our
ability to implement our business strategy.

Risks Related To an Investment.’in Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile due to limited trading volume. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ
Global Market. However, the average daily trading volume in our common stock is relatively small, historically
under 60,000 shares per day and sometimes less than that. With the increased number of outstanding shares, we
expect trading activity to increase. For the fourth quarter of 2006, the average daily trading volume increased to
109,000 shares. Notwithstanding this increase, trades involving a relatively small number of shares may have a
significant effect on the market price of our common stock, and it may be difficult for investors to acquire or dispose
of large blocks of stock without significantly affecting the market price.

Our ability to pay dividends is limited. Our ability to pay dividends is limited by regulatory requirements and
the need to maintain sufficient consolidated capital to meet the-capital needs of our business, including capital needs
related to future growth, Our primary source of income is the payment of dividends from Superior Bank to us.
Superior Bank, in turn, is likewise subject to regulatory requirements potentially limiting its ability to pay such
dividends to us and by the need to maintain sufficient capital for its operations and obligations. Further, we are
obligated, subject to regulatory limitations, to make periodic distributions on our trust preferred securities, which
reduces the income that might otherwise be available to pay dividends on our commeon stock. Thus, there can be no
assurance that we will pay dividends to our common stockholders, no assurance as to the amount or timing of any
such dividends, and no assurance that such dividends, if and when paid, will be maintained, at the same level or at
all, in future periods. '

The market price of our common stock has risen significantly in a relatively short period of time.  The market
price of our common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market, increased by approximately 38% between
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2006. We believe that this increase resulted in part from investors’ perception
as to the ability of our new senior management team to execute our business strategy and enhance stockholder value.
There can be no assurance that the market price of our common stock will remain at or near its current level, which
is substantially above historic trading prices prior to 2005.

Use of our common stock for future acquisitions or to raise capital may be dilutive to existing stockholders.
When we determine that appropriate strategic opportunities exist, we may acquire other financial institutions and
related businesses, subject to applicable regulatory requirements. We may use our common stock for such
acquisitions. From time to time, we may also seek to raise capital through selling additional common stock. It
is possible that the issuance of additional common stock in such acquisition or capital transactions may be dilutive
to the interests of our existing stockholders (see “Recently Announced Merger Agreement” above).
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters are located at 17 North 20th Street, Birmingham, Alabama. As of December 21, 1999,
Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank, who jointly owned the building, converted the building into condominiums
known as The Bank Condominiums. Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank collectively own 16 condominium units.
This space includes a branch of Superior Bank, various administrative offices, operations facilities and our
headquarters. Ten units are owned by third parties. We have leased or are pursuing the lease or sale of certain units
{or parts thereof) not currently needed for our operations.

We operate through facilities at 86 locations. We own 44 of these facilities and lease 42 of these facilities.
Rental expense on the leased properties totaled approximately $955,000 in 2006.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

While we are a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business, we believe that
there are no proceedings threatened or pending against us at this time that will individually, or in the aggregate,
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. We believe that we have
strong claims and defenses in each lawsuit in which we are involved. While we believe that we will prevail in each
fawsuit, there can be no assurance that the outcome of the pending, or any future, litigation, either individually or in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, our financial condition or our results of
operations.

Item 4. Submission Of Matters To A Vote Of Security Holders.

On October 12, 2006, we held a special meeting of stockholders, at which our stockholders voted to approve
the merger of Community Bancshares, Inc. with and into Superior Bancorp, as follows:

FOR - AGAINST ~ ABSTAIN
12,952,790 118,290 14,820
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PART 11

Item 5. Market For The Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities,

Market for Common Stock

Our common stock trades on NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol “SUPR”. As of December 31,
2006, there were approximately 2,021 record holders of our common stock. The following table sets forth, for the
calendar periods indicated, the range of high and low reported sales prices:

High Low

2005

FIESt QUAMT . o o . o oottt et e e e $i1.25 $ 8.00
Second QUATTET. . . . ... ottt e e e e 10.85 .25
Third QUAIIET . . . . o\ ot vttt et e e ea et e e e e e 10.9] 10.34
Fourth QUArter . .. ... .. e e e et e e e 12.00 10.49
2006

FIrSt QUATTET . L . o vttt et et ettt i vt e $1194  $10.70
Second QUAMET. . .. ..ottt it e e 11.87 10.71
Third QUaEr . . . .. e 11.93 10.54
Fourth QUarier . . .. ... i e e e e 11.89 10.39
2007 ‘

First Quarter (through March 13,2000). ... ....... .. ... .. . . iionarnn 511.87 $10.85

On March 12, 2007, the last reported sale price for the common stock was $11.21 per share.

Dividends

We paid dividends on our preferred stock aggregating $4.92 per preferred share in 2005. All of our preferred
stock was converted into common stock effective June 30, 2005.

‘Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by our board of
directors. We derive cash available to pay dividends primarily, if not entirely, from dividends paid to us by our
subsidiaries. There are certain restrictions that limit Superior Bank’s ability to pay dividends to us and, in turn, our
ability to pay dividends. The restrictions that may limit our ability 1o pay dividends are discussed in this Report in
Item | under the heading “Supervision and Regulation — Limitations on Capital Distributions.” Our ability to pay
dividends to our stockholders will depend on our eamings and financial condition, liquidity and capital require-
ments, the general economic and regulatory climate, our ability to service any equity or debt obligations senior to
our common stock and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. We do not currently pay dividends
on our common stock, but expect to evaluate our common stock dividend policy from time to time as circumstances
indicate, subject to applicable regulatory restrictions. ' '

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required to be provided under Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to
the information provided under the caption “Executive Compensation and Other [nformation” included in our
definitive proxy statement to be filed not later than April 30, 2007, in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockhelders.
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Performance Graph

The performance graph below compares our cumulative shareholder return on our common stock over the last
five fiscal years to the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Financial Index.
Our cumulative shareholder return over a five-year period is based on an initial investment of $100 on December 31,
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Index 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
Superior Bancorp 10000 | 11195 12262 | 11873 | 164.60 | 163.59
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 6876 V 10367 I 11316 | 11557 | 12758
NASDAQ Financial 100.00°| 98.39 1 12906 | 14877 | 15227 | 174.10

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth selected financial data from our consolidated financial statements and should be
read in conjunction with our consolidated. financial statements including the related notes and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The selected historical financial data as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 is derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this Form 10-K. See “Item 8.
Superior Bancorp and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements.” |
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As of and For the Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Statement of Financial Condition Data:

Total SS81S . . v o v i e e e e $2,440990 $1,415469  $1423,128 $1,171,626  §1,406,800
Loans, net of unearned income . . . . ... ... . ... ... .. 1,639,528 963,253 934,868 856,941 1,138,537
Allowance forloan 108888 . . . . . .. . .o ittt it e 18,892 12,011 12,543 25,174 27,766
InVeStMENt SECULTHES . . . . . . v vttt it e e e 354,716 242,595 288,308 141,601 73,125
Deposils . . . o .t 1,870,841 1,043,695 1,067,206 889,935 1,107,798
Advances from FHLB and other borrowings . . ... ............ 211,255 214,496 205,546 131,919 174,922
Notespayable. . . .. ..ottt e 5,545 3,755 3,965 1.925 . =
Junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolidated trusts . . . . . . 44,006 31,959 31,959 31,959 31,959
Stockholders” equily. . . . .. .. ... e 276,087 105,065 106,539 100,122 76,541
Selected Statement of Income Data:

Interest iMCOMIE . . . . oo ot e $ 108777 § 771280 S 66,060 $ 76,213 & 88,548
[nterest expense . . ........... e e 61,383 38,253 28,123 33,487 40,510

Net Interest iNCOME ., . - . . . oot it et et e e et 47,394 39,025 38,037 42,726 48,038
Provision for 10an loSSes . . . . . v o v vttt e e e e e 2,500 3,500 975 20,975 51,852
Noninterest iNCOME . . . v v vt v vt e e et ettt e et e it ee e e o S 11,811 9,583 10,527 14,592 15,123
Gainonsaleofbranches. . .. ... ... ... ... .. . L i -— — 739 48,264 —
Insurance proceeds . ... ... ... .. e — 5.114 — — —
Prepayment penalty — FHLB advances . . ............... ... — — — 2,532 —_
Lossonsaleofloans . ... ... .. nnn s — —_ 2,293 _— —
Management Separalion COSIS. . . v . v v v v vt i 265 15,467 — — —
NODNINLETEST EXPENSE. o o o v vt it v e e i 49,520 45,153 45,644 55,398 42,669

Income (loss) before income taxes(benefit) . ... ............ 6,920 (10,398) 391 26,677 (31,360)
Income tax expense (benefit) . .. .. .. ... ... ... .. L. 1,923 . (4,612) (796) 9,178 {12,959)

Netincome {loss). . . .. v v it e i et ne e 4,997 (5,786) 1,187 17.499 (18,401)
Preferred stock dividends . . .. ... ... ... ... . L oL —_ 305 445 219 —
Effect of early conversion of preferredstock . . ............... — 2,006 — — —

Net income (loss} applicable to common stockholders . .. ... ... $ 4997 § (3,097 $ 741 0§ 17280 § (18,401
Per Share Data:

Net income {Joss) —basic. . .. . o vt ittt i e 3 021 % 042y $ 004 % 099 % (1.09)
—diluted(1). .. ... e s 021 % 042) 004 095 3§ (1.09)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic . ............... 23.409 19,154 17.583 17.492 16,829
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted(1) ............. 24,034 19,154 17.815 18,137 16,829
Bookvalueatperiedend . ........... ... ... ... ., 3 797 % 521 % 531 % 531 § 4.35
Tangible book value pershare . ... ........ ... .. ... ... .. 5 431 % 461 8 462 3 459 3§ 3.59
Preferred shares outstanding at periodend ... .. ............. — — 62 62 —
Common shares outstanding at periodend .. ... .. ... ... ... 34,652 20,172 17,750 17.695 17,605
Performance Ratios and Other Data:
Return on average assets. . . .. ... .. ... 0.30% (0.41)% 0.09% 1.29% (1.36)%
Return on average stockholders’ equity .. ... ............ ... 3.55 (5.68) 1.18 19.08 (19.89)
Net interest margin{2)(3). . . . ... ... ... ... e 3.17 3.4 131 3.50 3.93
Net interest spread(3)(4) . . . . ... .. ... .. i . 293 3.00 320 335 3.70
Noninterest income to average assets(5) . . ... ... ..o 0.66 0.77 0.82 1.03 99
Noninterest expense to average assets(6). . .. ............. ... 2.87 3.14 3.52 4.07 3.15
Efficiency ratiofT) . . . oo e e 82.13 87.99 3172 100.09 67.85
Average loan to average depositratio. . . . ..., . ... ... ... ., 93.12 88.82 92.16 100.69 105.35
Average interest-earning assets lo average interest bearing liabilities . . 106,01 104.58 104.88 105.82 107.04
Assets Quality Ratios:
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans ... .......... 219.88% 252.76% 169.36% 78.59% 105.00%
Allowance for loan losses 10 loans, net of unearned income . . ... .. 1.15 1.25 1.34 2.94 .44
Nonpetforming assets (“NPA’s™} (o loans plus NPA's, net of unearned ’

T 1< 0.63 0.68 1.32 4.41 2.53
Nonaccrual leans to loans, net of uneamed income . . . ... .. .. ... 047 0.47 0.68 346 2.17
Net loan charge-offsto average loans. . . . . ................. 0.20 0.43 1.52 221 335
Net loan charge-offs as a percentage of:

Provision forloan losses . . ... ... . i i i e 92.64 115.20 1,395.49 111.87 72.69

Allowance forloan losses . . ... ... . i 12.26 33.57 108.47 93.21 135.74
Capital Ratios: :

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio. . . .. ............ .. ... ... 9.39% 10.15% 10.05% 12.60% 6.51%
Total risk-based capital ratio . . .. ... ... ... . oL 10.40 11.08 11.51 14.07 8.83

Leverageratio .. .......... .0 e 743 8.30 7.98 9.72 370

(1}-Common stock equivalents of 775,000 and 1,002,000 shares were not included in computing diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively, because their effects were antidilutive.

(2)-Net interest income divided by average earning assets.

(3)-Calculated on a taxable equivalent basis.

(4)-Yield on average interest-earning assets less rate on average interest-bearing liabilities.

(5)-Noninterest incorne has been adjusted for certain nonrecurring items such as gain on sale of branches, insurance proceeds, change in fair
value of derivatives and investment security gains (losses).

(6)-Noninterest expense has been adjusted for certain nonrecurring items such as loss on sale of assets and management separation cosls.

(7)-Efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing noninterest expense, adjusted for management separation costs, losses on other real estate and the
loss on sale of assets, by noninterest income, adjusted for gain on sale of branches, insurance proceeds, changes in fair values of derivatives
and investment security gains (losses), plus net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.
General

The following is a narrative discussion and analysis of significant changes in our results of operations and
financial condition. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
selected financial data included elsewhere in this document.

Overview

Cur principal subsidiary is Superior Bank (the “Bank™), which has since November 1, 2005, been chartered as
a federal savings bank. Prior to that date, Superior Bank operated as an Alabama state bank. The Bank is
headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama and operates 54 banking offices and three loan production offices in
Alabama, and in the panhandle and Tampa Bay areas of Florida. Other subsidiaries include SFS, LLLC, an Alabama
limited liability company (“SFS”), Superior Financial Services, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company
(“Superior Financial™), 1 Community Credit Corporation, an Alabama corporation (“Community Credit”),
Community (AL) Capital Trust I, a Delaware trust, TBC Capital Statutory Trust 11 (“TBC Capital 1I"), a
Connecticut statutory trust, TBC Capital Statutory Trust HI (“TBC Capital 1117}, a Delaware business trust,
and Morris Avenue Management Group, Inc. (“MAMG™), an Alabama corporation, all of which are wholly owned.
SFS was formed to acquire tax lien certificates. Superior Financial and Community Credit provide consumer
finance services. Community (AL} Capital Trust I, TBC Capital Il and TBC Capitat l11 are unconsolidated special
purpose entities formed solely to issue cumulative trust preferred securities. MAMG is a real estate management
company that manages our headquarters, our branch facilities and certain other real estate owned by the Bank.

During the third quarter of 2006, we merged with Kensington Bancshares, Inc. of Tampa, Florida. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, we merged with Community Bancshares of Blountsville, Alabama. These acquired entities had
combined lcans of approximately $470 million and deposits of $700 million.

Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which is the difference between income earned on
interest-earning assets, such as loans and investments, and interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, such as
deposits and borrowings. Our results of operations are also atfected by the provision for loan losses and other
noninterest expenses such as salaries and benefits, occupancy expenses and provision for income taxes. The effects
of these noninterest expenses are partially offset by noninterest sources of revenue such as service charges and fees
on deposit accounts and mortgage banking income. Our volume of business is influenced by competition in our
markets and overall economic conditions including such factors as market interest rates, business spending and
consumer confidence.

During 2006, our net interest income increased by 21.4%, primarily due to an increase in average interest-
earning assets. The increase in our interest-earning assets resulted primarily from an overall increase in the average
volume of our loan portfolio. During 2006 we continued our strategy of realigning our loan and deposit mix,
primarily through our acquisitions,

Service charges and fees were up 4.9% in 2006 from 2005 due to an increase in deposit accounts. Mortgage
banking income increased 17.2% in 2006 due to an increase in the volume of mortgage toan originations throughout
the year.

Salaries and benefits increased from 2005 to 2006 due to our acquisitions and branch expansion. All other
noninterest expenses remained relatively flat in 2006 compared to 2005. Several initiatives were implemented to
control costs in 2003, such as a reduction in force, the termination or buyout of various deferred compensation
agreements and tighter spending controls. These cost controls carried over into 2006.

Management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. The provision for loan
losses represents the amount determined by management necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a
level capable of absorbing inherent losses in the loan portfolio. (See “Critical Accounting Estimates” below.) For
2006 our provision for loan losses totaled $2.5 million and our net charge-offs totaled $2.3 million. As of
December 31, 2006 our allowance for loan losses was $18.9 million, or 1.15% of leans, net of unearned income.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

In preparing financial information, management is required to make significant estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses for the periods shown. The accounting
principles we follow and the methods of applying these principles conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States and to general banking practices. Estimates and assumptions most significant 10 us are
related primarily to our allowance for loan losses, income taxes and goodwill impairment are summarized in the
following discussion and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Management's determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, which is based on the factors
and risk identification procedures discussed in the following pages, requires the use of judgments and estimates that
may change in the futare. Changes in the factors used by management to determine the adequacy of the allowance or
the availability of new information could cause the allowance for loan losses to be increased or decreased in future
periods. In addition, our regulators, as part of their examination process, may require that additions or reductions be
made to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments and estimates.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between financial reporting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse. These calculations are based on
many complex factors, including estimates of the timing of reversals of temporary differences, the interpretation of
federal and state income tax laws, and a determination of the differences between the tax and the financial reporting
basis of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ significantly from the estimates and interpretations used in
determining the current and deferred income tax assets and labilities,

Our determination of the realization of deferred tax assets {(net of valvation allowances) is based upon
management’s judgment of various future events and uncertainties, including future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, the timing and amount of future income earned by our subsidiaries and the implementation
of various tax planning strategies 10 maximize realization of the deferred tax assets. A portion of the amount of the
deferred tax asset that can be realized in any year is subject to certain statutory federal income tax limitations. We
believe that our subsidiaries will be able to generate sufficient operating earnings to realize the deferred tax benefits.
We evaluate quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and, if necessary, adjust any valuation allowance
accordingly. . '

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes. Specifically, the pronouncement prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
interpretation alse provides guidance on the related derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
for interim periods. disclosure and transition of uncertain tax positions. The interpretation is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. We are in the process of evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of this
interpretation will have on our financial siatements.

Acquisitions

We recorded the assets and liabilities of Kensington and Community at their estimated fair values. Arriving at
these fair values required numerous assumptions regarding the economic life of assets, decay rates for liabilities and
other factors. We engaged a third party to assist us in valuing certain of the financial assets and liabilities of
Kensington and Community. We also engaged a real estate appraisal firm to value the more significant properties
that were acquired by us in the acquisition. As a result, we consider the values we have assigned to the acquired
assets and liabilities of Kensington and Community 1o be reasonable and consistent with the application of
generally accepted accounting principles. However, we are still in the process of obtaining and evaluating certain
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additional information. Accordingly, we may reassess our purchase price aliocations in the future based on such
information. We believe that we will conclude the allocation of the purchase price to the acquired net assets during
the second quarter of 2007.

Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization, such as our core deposit
intangible asset, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset, If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be
disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are tested annually for impairment, and are
tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount gxceeds the asset’s fair value. Our annual
assessment date is December 31. Should we determine in a future period that the goodwill recorded in connection
with our acquisitions has become impaired, then a charge to our earnings will be recorded in the period such
determination is made.

Recent Developments

On January 18, 2007, we announced that we had signed a merger agreement with People’s Community
Bancshares, Inc. (see “Recently Announced Merger Agreement” under Item 1 above).

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2006, Compared with Year Fnded December 31, 2005

QOur net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.9 mllhon compared to a uet loss of $5.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Net income available to common stockholders was $4.9 million for the year
ended December 3 1, 2006, compared to a net loss of ($8.1 million) for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our basic
and diluted net income (loss) per common share was $0.21 for the year ended December 31 2006, compared to
$(0.42) per comumon share for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our return on average assets was 0.30% in 2006,
compared to (0.41)% in 2005. Qur return on average stockholders’ equity was 3.55% in 2006, compared to (5.68)%
in 2005. Qur book value per common share at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $7.97 and $5.21, respectively, and
our tangible book value per common share decreased to $4.31 at December 31, 2006 from $4.61 as of December 31
2005. Average equity to average assets increased to 8.37% in 2006 from 7.26% in 2005.

The increase in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31,
2005 was primarily the result of an increase in net interest income and a decrease in management separation costs.

Net interest income is the difference between the income earned on interesi-earning assets and interest paid on
interest-bearing liabilities used to support such assets. Net interest income increased $8.4 million, or 21.4%, to
$47.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $39.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This
was due to an increase in interest income of $31.5 million, or 40.8%, offset by a increase in total interest expense of
$23.1 million, or 60.5%. The increase in total interest income was primarily attributable to a $28.8 million, or
45.1%, increase in interest income on average loans, which increased $230 million to $1.177 billion.

The increases in interest income were offset by a $18.6 million, or 66.6%, increase in interest expense on
deposits and a $4.5 million, or 43.8%, increase in interest expense on other borrowings. Average interest- bearing
deposits increased $179.1 million, or 18.4%, and average other borrowings increased $41.3 million, or 22.1%. The
average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was 4.34% for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
3.21% for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase is the result of higher average rates paid on all interest-
bearing deposits due to higher market rates.
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Our net interest spread and net interest margin were 2.93% and 3.17%, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to 3.00% and 3.14%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005,

Our average interest-earning assets for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $252.5 million, or 20.2%,
to $1.499 billion from $1.247 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase in our average interesi-
earning assets was due primarily to mergers with Kensington and Community in late 2006 and increased loan
production. Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $222.1 million, or 18.6%, to $1.414 billion from
$1.192 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in average interest-bearing liabilities is
primarily due to mergers with Kensington and Community in late 2006. The ratio of our average interest-carning
assets to average interest-bearing liabilities was 106.0% and 104.6% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2003, respectively. Our average interest-bearing assets produced a taxable equivalent yield of 7.27% for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared to 6.21% for the year ended December 31, 2005, The 106-basis point increase
in the yield was offset by a 113-basis point increase in the average rate paid on interesi-bearing liabilities.

The provision for loan losses represents the amount determined by management to be necessary to maintain
the allowance for loan losses at a level capable of absorbing inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Management
reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. The allowance for loan losses calculation
is segregated into various segments that include classified loans, loans with specific allocations and pass rated loans.
A pass rated loan is generally characterized by a very low to average risk of default and in which management
perceives there is a minimal risk of toss. Loans are rated using an eight-point scale with loan officers having the
primary responsibility for assigning risk ratings and for the timely reporting of changes in the risk ratings. These
processes, and the assigned risk ratings, are subject to review by our internal loan review function and senior
management. Based on the assigned risk ratings, the criticized and classified loans in the portfolio are segregated
into the foltowing regulatory classifications: Special Mention, Substandard, Doubtful or.Loss.'Generally, regulatory
reserve percentages are applied to these categories to estimate the amount of loan loss allowance, adjusted for
previously mentioned risk factors. Impaired loans are reviewed specifically and separately under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) Statement No. 114 to determine the appropriate reserve allocation.
Management compares the investment in an impaired loan with the present value of expected future cash flow
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral, if
the loan is collateral-dependent, to determine the specific reserve allowance. Reserve percentages assigned 1o non-
rated loans are based on historical charge-off experience adjusted for other risk factors. To evaluate the overall
adequacy of the allowance to absorb losses inherent in our loan portfolio, management considers historical loss
experience based on volume and types of loans, trends in classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies and
non-accruals, economic conditions and other pertinent information. Based on future evaluations, additional
provisions for loan losses may be necessary to maintain the.allowance for loan losses ai an appropriate level.
See “Financial Condition — Allowance for Loan Losses” for additional discussion.

The provision for loan losses was $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, a decrease of $1.0 million
in comparison to $3.5 million in 2005, This decrease, can be attributed primarily to the continued improvement in
the overall quality of the Bank’s loan portfolios. While the provision is moderately lower in comparison to 2005,
management conlinues to maintain a proactive approach to credit risk management as the economy experiences
cycles and as the Bank continues to grow both internally and through mergers and acquisitions. Nonperforming
loans increased, to 0.52% of loans at December 31, 2006 from 0.49% at December 31, 2005. During 2006, we had
net charged-off loans totaling $2.3 million, compared to net charged-off loans of $4.0 million for 2005. The ratio of
net charged-off loans to average loans was 0.20% for 2006 compared 10 0.43% for 2005. The allowance for loan
losses totaled $18.9 million, or 1.15% of loans, net of uncared income, at December 31, 2006, compared to
$12.0 million, or 1.25% of loans, net of unearned income, at December 31, 2005. See “Financial Condition —
Allowance for Loan Losses” for additional discussion.

Noninterest income decreased $2.9 million, or 19.6%, to $11.8 million in 2006 from $14.7 million in 2005.
This decrease is primarily due 10 insurance proceeds received in 2005 of $5.1 million and was partially offset by
$1.3 million in losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities in 2005 and changes in the fair values of derivatives.
In 2006, changes in the fair value of derivatives totaled $374,000. The investment portfolio losses were realized
primarily in the first quarter of 2005 as a result of a $50 million sale of bonds in the investment portfolio. We
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reinvested the proceeds in bonds intended to enhance the yield and cash flows of our investment securities portfolio.
‘ The new investment securities were classified as available for sale.

[ncome from mortgage banking operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $439,000, or
17.2%, to $3.0 million in 2006 from $2.6 million in 2005. This increase is due to increased origination activity
during 2006. Income from customer service charges and fees increased $228,000, or 4.9%, to $4.9 million in 2006

trom $4.6 million in 2005. This increase is primarily due to an increase of transaction accounts from 2005 to 2006.
‘ Management is currently pursuing new accounts and customers through direct marketing and other promotional
| efforts to increase this source of revenue. Other noninterest income was $3.5 million, a decrease of $86,000, or
2.3%, from $3.6 million in 2005.

| Noninterest expense decreased $10.8 million, or 17.9%, to $49.8 million in 2006 from $60.6 million in 2005,
primarily due to the management separation costs of $15.5 million incurred in the first six months of 2005. Salaries
and employee benefits increased $3.7 million, or 16.0%, 10 $26.8 million in 2006 compared to $23.1 million in
2005. This increase is primarily the result of an increased employee base which resulted from the mergers with
Kensington and Community in the third and fourth quarters of 2006. We incurred internal merger-related costs and
subsidiary startup costs of $770,000. :

All other noninterest expenses remained flat, at $22.0 million in 2006 and in 2005, as the new executive
management team implemented certain cost control measures. See Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for more detail on the components of our noninterest expenses.

Income tax expense was $1.9 million in 2006, compared to a tax benefit of $4.6 million in 2005. The primary
difference in the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate of 34% for 2006 is due to the effect of certain tax-
exempt interest and the increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance. See Note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more detail on the components of our income tax expense.

Our net deferred tax assets increased to $25.3 million as of December 31, 2006 from $14.8 million at
December 31, 2005. This increase is primarily due to an incréase in federal ‘net operating loss carryforwards
{(“NOLs”). Approximately $26.0 million in NOLs were generated in prior periods by Community, which we
acquired during the fourth quarter of 2006. These carryforwards are subject to certain statutory limitations, but we
expect that future earnings will be sufficient to utilize these losses. These carryforwards do not begin to expire until
the year 2023. Due to limitations on the use of net operating losses acquired in the merger with Community, a
valuation allowance of $1.2 million has been established as of December 31, 2006 against such deferred income tax
assets in purchase accounting. Any subsequently recognized intome tax benefits relating to this valuation
allowance will be reflected as a reduction of goodwill related to the acquisition.

Our determination of the realization of deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowance) is based upon
management’s judgment of various future events and uncertainties, including future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, the timing and amount of future income earned by our subsidiaries' and the implementation
of various tax planning strategies to maximize realization of the deferred tax assets. A portion of the amount of the
deferred tax asset that can be realized in any year is subject to certain statutory federal income tax lmitations. We
believe that our subsidiaries will be able to generate sufficient operating earnings to realize the deferred tax benefits.
We evaluate quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and, if necessary, adjust any valuation allowance
accordmg]y

Our federal and state income tax returns for the years 2000 through 2005 are open for review and examination
by governmental authorities. In the normal course of these examinations, we are subject to challenges from
governmental authorities regarding amounts of taxes due. We have received notices of proposed adjustments
relating to state taxes due for the years 2002 and 2003, which include proposed adjustments relating to income
apportionment of one of the Bank’s subsidiaries. We believe adequate provision for income taxes has been recorded
for all years open for review and intend to vigorously contest the proposed adjustments. To the extent that final
resolution of the proposed adjustments results in significantly different conclusions from our current assessment of
the proposed adjustments, our effective tax rate in any given financial reporting periocd may be materlally different
from our current effective tax rate.
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Year Ended December 31, 2005, Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2004

Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2005 was (3$5.8 million), compared to net income of $1.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004. Net loss available 10 common stockholders was ($8.1 million) for the year
ended December 31, 2005, compared 1o net income of $741,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. OQur basic
and diluted net (lossy income per common share was $(.42) for the year ended December 31 2005, compared to
$.04 per common share for the year ended December 31, 2004. Our return on average assets was (.41)% in 2003,
compared o .09% in 2004, Our return on average stockholders’ equity was (5.68}% in 2005, compared to 1.18% in
2004. Qur book value per commen share at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $5.21 and $5.31, respectively, and our
tangible book value per common share at December 31, 2005 increased to $4.61 at December 31, 2005 from $4.62
as of December 31, 2004, Average equity to average assets decrcased to 7.26% in 2005 from 7.78% in 2004.

The decrease in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended December 31,
2004 was primarily the result of an increase in the provision for loan losses, as more fully discussed below, and
certain management separation costs.

Net interest income increased $1.0 million, or 2.6%, to $39.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
from $38.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, This was due to an increase in interest income of
$11.1 million, or 16.8%, offset by a increase in 1otal interest expense of $10.1 million, or 36.0%. This increase in
total interest income was attributable 1o a $7.7 mitlion, or 13.7%, increase in interest income on loans as aresult of a
$£52.8 million increase in average loans, and a $2.8 million, or 31.7%. increase in interest income on investment
securities as a result of a $54.7 million increase in average investment securities for the year.

The increases in interest income were offset by an $8.7 million, or 45.5%, increase in interest expense on
deposits and a $1.4 million, or 15.7%, increase in interest expense on other borrowings. While average interest-
bearing deposits incréased $91.1 million, or 10.3%, and average other borrowings increased $4.2 million, or 2.0%,
the increase in interest expense is primarily attributable to a 65-basis point increase in the average interest rates paid
on interest-bearing liabilities. The average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was 3.21% for the year ended
December 31, 2005, compared to 2.56% for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was due primarily to
higher average rates paid on all deposits.

Our net interest spread and net interest margin were 3.00% and 3.14%, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2005, compared to 3.20% and 3.31%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Qur average interest-earning assets for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $96.5 million, or 8.4%, to
$1.247 billion from $1.150 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase in our average interest-
earning assets was due primarily to increased loan production and increased investment securities. Average interest-
bearing liabilities increased $95.3 million, or 8.7%, to $1.192 billion from $1.097 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The increase in average interest-bearing liabilities is primarily due to an increase in interest-
bearing demand accounts, which is part of our strategy to improve our deposit mix. The ratio of our average inlerest-
eaming assels to average interest-bearing liabilities was 104.6% and 104.9% for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Our average inlerest-bearing assets produced a 1axable equivalent yield of 6.21% for
the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to 5.76% for the year ended December 31, 2004, The 45-basis point
increase in the yield was offset by a 65-basis point increase in the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities.

The provision for loan losses was $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increade of
$2.5 million in comparison to $975,000 in 2004. This increase can be attributed primarily to the reassessment of
collateral values on certain nonperforming commercial credits and the settlement of a disputed collateral lien. These
items accounted for approximately $2.3 million of the total increase in provision and represented 66.0% of the total
net charge-off activity for the year, It should be noted that the provision expense for 2004 was unusually low due to
the sale of approximately $32.0 million in certain classified loans and significant recoveries of charged-off loans of
$3.7 million. Also. nonperforming loans decreased significantly, 1o .49% of toans at December 31, 2005 from .79%
at December 31, 2004. During 2003, we had net charged-oft loans totaling $4.0 million, compared to net charged-
off loans of $13.6 million for 2004. The ratio of net charged-off loans to average loans was .43% for 2005 compared
to 1.52% for 2004. The allowance for loan losses totaled $12.0 million, or 1.25% of loans, net of unearned income,
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at December 31, 2005, compared 1o $12.5 million, or 1.34% of loans, net of unearned income, at December 31,
2004. See “Financial Condition — Allowance for Loan Losses™ for additional discussion. '

Noninterest income increased $3.4 million, or 30.5%, to $14.7 million in 2005 from $11.3 million in 2004.
This increase is primarily due to insurance proceeds of $5.1 million and was partially offset by $1.3 million in losses
on the sale of available-for-sale securities and changes in the fair values of derivatives {(see Note 1 to the
Consclidated Financial Statements). The investment portfolio losses were realized primarily in the first quarter of
2005 as a result of a $50 million sale of bonds in the investment portfolio. We reinvested the proceeds in bonds
intended to enhance the yield and cash flows of ourinvestment securities portfolio. The new investment securities
were classified as available for sale,

Income from mortgage banking operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $894,000, or
53.7%, to $2.6 million in 2005 from $1.7 million in 2004. This increase is due to increased origination activity
during 2005. Income from customer service charges and fees decreased $517,000, or 9.9%, to $4.7 million in 2005
from $5.2 million in 2004. This decrease is primarily due to a toss of transaction accounts from 2004 o 2005.
Management is currently pursuing new accounts and customers through direct marketing and other promotional
efforts to increase this source of revenue. Service charges on deposit accounts increased $131,000, or 5.75%, in the
last six-month period of 2005 over the first six-month period of 2005. Other noninterest income was $3.6 million, a
decrease of $122,000, or 3.3%, from $3.7 million in 2004. This decrease is primarily the result of a decline in the
amount earned on the cash surrender value of life insurance.

Noninterest expense increased $12.7 million, or 26.4%, to $60.6 million in 2005 from $47.9 million in 2004,
primarily due to the management separation costs of $15.5 million incurred in the first six months of 2005. Salaries
and employee benefits decreased $377,000, or 1.6%, to $23.1 million in 2005 compared to $23.5 million in 2004.
This decrease is primarily the result of a reduction in force which occurred during the second and third quarters of
2003, partially offset by the recruitment of several new revenue-producing bankers.

All other noninterest expenses remained flat, at $22.0 million in 2005 compared to $22.2 million in 2004, as
the —ew executive management team implemented certain cost control measures. See Note 21 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more detail on the components of our noninterest expenses.

Our income tax benefit was $4.6 million in 2005, and $796,000 in 2004. The primary difference in the effective
tax rate and the federal statutory rate of 34% for 2005 is due o the effect of certain tax-exempt interest and the
increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance. (See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

Net Interest Income

The largest component of our net income is net interest income, which is the difference between the income
eamed on interest-earning assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is determined by
the rates earned on our interest-earning assets, rates paid on our interest-bearing liabilities, the relative amounts of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, the degree of mismatch and the maturity and repricing
characteristics of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income divided by average
interest-earning assets represents our net interest margin.
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Average Balances, Income, Expenses and Rates. The following tables depict, on a taxable equivalent basis
for the periods indicated, certain information related to our average balance sheet and our average yields on assets
and average costs of liabilitics. Such yields are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of the

corresponding assets or liabilities. Average balances have been derived from daily averages.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Interest  Average Interest  Average Interest Average
Average Earned/ Yield/ Average Earned/  Yield/ Average Earned/  Yield/
Balance Paid Rate Balance Peid Rate Batance Paid Rate
{Dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Interest-carning assets:
Loans, net of unearned
income(l) .............. $1,176,844 § 92,659 787% $ 947212 $63.895 6.75% § 894406 $56,184 6.28%
Investment securities:
Taxable . .. .... e 276,640 12994 470 255663 11,632 455 203,996 8,897 436
Tax-exempt(2). . .......... 10,093 589 584 6932 373 538 3868 217 5.61
Total investment securities . . 286,733 13,583 4.74 262,595 12,005 4.57 207 864 9,114 438
Federal fundssold . . . ...... 11,102 570 513 14,757 460 312 15.454 202 1310
Other investments . ........ 24,618 2,165 879 22266 1,047 470 _&')}ﬂ 734 225
Total interest-earning i
ASSELS . ... 1499297 108,977  7.27 1,246,830 77407  6.21 1,150,361 66,234 576
Noninterest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks . . . . .. 32,730 28,227 26,238
Premises and equipment. . . . ... 64,378 56,897 58,535
Accrued interest and other
ASSELS . ... ... 100,514 83,743 81,970
Allowance for loan losses. ... .. (13,594} {12,504) (20.530)
Total assets . . ., .. ...... $1,683,325 $1,403,193 $1,296,574
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits ... ........ $ 359262 § 11857 330% § 339842 § 7144  2.10% $ 2062346 § 32283 1.23%
Savings deposits . . . ... .. ... 27,968 177 0.63 25,935 40 0.5 29,383 48 Q.16
Time deposits, . . .. ......... 764,787 34477 451 607,141 20,731 34i 590,070 15915 270
Other borrowings ... ........ 228,631 11,603 507 187,297 7493 400 183.052 6,356 347
Subordinated debentures. . .. ... 33,642 3260 972 31,959 2,847 891 31,959 2,579 807
Total interest-bearing
liabilities . . .. ........ 1.414,290 61,383 434 1,192,174 38,255 321 1,096,810 28,123 256
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits . . . ........ 111,757 93,564 88,695
Accrued interest and other
liabilities . . .. ..., ........ 16,451 15,651 10,154
Total liabilities. . . . ... ... 1,542,498 1,301,389 1,195,659
Stockholders’ equity .. ....... 140,827 101,804 100,915
Total tiabilities and
stockholders® equity . . .. . $1,683,325 $1,403,193 $1,296,574
Net interest income/net interest
spread .. ... ... ... ... . 47,504 '_2_.'9_3_% 39,152 3.00% gl 320%
Net yield on earning assets . ... .. 3.17% 3.14% 331%
Taxable equivalent adjustment:
Investment securities(2) . . ... .. 200 127 74
Net interest income, .. .. .. § 47394 $39,025 $38,037

(1) Nonaccrual loans are included in loans, net of unearned income. No adjustment has been made for these loans in

the calculation of yields.

(2) Interest income and yields are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using a tax rate of 34 percent.
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income.  The following table sets forth, on a taxable equivalent basis, the
effect which the varying levels of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the applicable rates have
had on changes in net interest income for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,(1)
2006 vs, 2003 2005 vs. 2004
Changes Duce to

Changes Due to

lncrease Increase
(Decrease) Rate Volume (Decrease) Rate Volume
(Dollars in thousands)
Income from earning assets:
Interest and feeson loans . ... ........ $28.764 $11,68%8 $17076 $ 7711 $4311  $3400
Interest on securities:
Taxable........................ 1,362 390 972 2,735 401 2,334
Tax-exempl...........ccvvvn .. 216 .33 183 156 (10) 166
Interest on federal funds ... .......... 110 244 (134) 258 268 (10)
Interest on other investments . . ........ 1,118 997 121 313 604 (291)
Total interest income . .. .., ...... 31,570 13,352 18,218 11,173 5,574 5,599
Expense from interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest on demand deposits. ... .... ... 4,713 4,285 428 3919 2,764 1,155
Interest on savings deposits ... ... ..... 137 134 3 (8) 3) (5)
Interest on time deposits . ............. 13,746 7,616 6,130 4,816 4,339 477
Interest on other borrowings . . ... ... .. 4,110 2,252 1,858 1,137 987 150
Interest on subordinated debentures . . . . . 422 267 155 263 268 —
Total interest expense. .. ....... 23,128 14,554 8,574 10,132 8,355 1,777
Net interest income . .......... $ 8442 $(1,202) $ 9644 $ 1,041  $(2,781) $3,822

{1) The changes in net interest income due to both rate and volume have been allocated to rate and volume changes
in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the changes in each.

Market Risk — Interest Rate Sensitivity

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to a
change in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. Our primary market risk is interest rate risk.

We evaluate interest rate sensitivity risk and then formulate guidelines regarding asset generation and
repricing, funding sources and pricing, and off-balance sheet commitments in order to moderate interest rate
sensitivity risk. We use computer simulations that reflect various interest rate scenarios and the related impact on net
interest income over specified periods of time.

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable
stability in net interest income throughout interest rate cycles. This is achieved by maintaining the proper balance of
interesl rate sensitive earning assets and interest rate sensitive liabilities. In general, management’s strategy is to
maich asset and liability balances within maturity categories to limit our exposure to eamnings variations and
variations in the value of assets and liabilities as interest rates change over time, Our asset and liability management
strategy is formulated and monitored by our Asset/Liability Management Committee (“ALCO™), which is
composed of our head of asset/liability management and other senior officers, in accordance with policies approved
by the board of directors. The ALCQ meets monthly to review, among other things, the sensitivity of our assets and
liabilities to interest rate changes, the book and market values of assets and liabilities, unrealized gains and losses,
including those attributable to purchase and sale activity, and maturities of investments and borrowings. The ALCO
also approves and establishes pricing and funding decisions with respect to overall asset and liability composition
and reports regularly to our Board Loan and Investment Committee and the full board of directors.
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One of the primary goals of the ALCO is to effectively manage the duration of our assets and liabilities so that
the respective durations are matched as closely as possible. These duration adjustments can be accomplished either
internally by restructuring our balance sheet, or externally by adjusting the duration of our assets or liabilities
through the use of interest rate contracts, such as interest rate swaps. caps, and floors. In the fourth quarter of 2006,
as it appeared short-term rates had reached a plateau, we purchased $50,000,000 in interest rate floors, reducing our
level of asset sensitivity. (See “Interest Rate Floors™ below)

We measure our interest rate risk by analyzing the correlation of interest-bearing assets to interest-bearing
liabilities (““gap analysis™), net interest income simulation, and economic value of equity (“EVE") modeling.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $85 million more in interest-bearing assets than interest-
earning liabilities that could reprice to current market rates during the next 12 months. However, shortcomings are
inherent in any gap analysis, because the rates on certain assets and liabilities may not move proportionately as
market interest rates change. For example, when national money market rates change, interest rates on our NOW,
savings, and money muarket deposit accounts may not change as much as rates on commercial loans. We had
approximately $596 million of such administratively priced deposits on December 31, 2006.

Our net interest income simulation model projects that net interest income will increase on an annual basis by
7.0%, or approximately $5.1 million, assuming an instantaneous and parallel increase in interest rates of 200 basis
points. Assuming an instantaneous and parallel decrease of 200 basis points, net interest income is projected to
decrease on an annual basis by 8.6%, or again approximately $6.2 million. The net interest income produced by
these scenarios is within our asset and liability management policy.

EVE is a concept related to our longer-term interest rate risk. EVE is defined as the net present value of the
balance sheet’s cash flows or the residual value of future cash flows. While EVE does not represent actual market
liquidation or replacement value, it is a useful tool for estimating our batance sheet earnings capacity. The greater
the EVE, the greater our earnings capacity. Our EVE mode! projects that EVE will increase 3.8% assuming an
instantaneous and parallel increase in interest rates of 200 basis points. Assuming an instantaneous and parallel
decrease of 200 basis points, EVE is projected to decrease 8.7%. The EVE produced by these scenarios is within our
asset and liability management policy. The following table sets forth our EVE as of December 31, 2006:

Change
Change {(in Basis Points) in [nterest Rales EVE Amount Percent
) (Dollars in thousands)
+200BP ...l e e $404,377  § 14,626 3.8%
OBP .. 389,751 — —
=200 BP. . e 355,976 (33,775) (8.7

Both the net interest income and EVE simulations include assumptions regarding balances, asset prepayment
speeds, and interest rate reiationships among balances that management believes to be reasonable for the various
interest rate environments. Differences in actual occurrences from these assumptions, as well as non-paralle!
changes in the yield curve, may change our market risk exposure.

Our board has authorized the ALCO to utilize financial futures, forward sales, options and interest rate swaps,
caps and floors, and other instruments to the extent necessary, in accordance with OTS regulations and our internal
policy. We expect that interest rate swaps, caps and floors will be used as macro hedges against our securities, our
loan portfolios and our liabilities.

We recognize that positions for hedging purposes are primarily a function of three main areas of risk exposure:
(1) mismaiches between assets and liabilities; (2) prepayment and other option-type risks embedded in our assets,
fiabilities and off-balance sheet instruments; and (3) the mismatched commitments for mortgz{ges and funding
sources. We will engage in only the following types of hedges: (1) those which synthetically alter the maturities or
repricing characteristics of assets or liabilities to reduce imbalances; (2) those which enable us to transfer the
interest rate risk exposure involved in our daily business activities; and (3) those which serve to alter the market risk
inherent in our investment portfolio or liabilities and thus help us to maich the effective maturities of the assets and
liabilities.
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The following is a discussion of our primary derivative positions.

Interest Rate Swaps

At December 31, 2006, we had interest rate swap positions with notional amounts of $46.5 million related to
brokered CDs {See “Fair Value Hedges” below). Hedge accounting was discontinued on $36.5 million of these
swap positions during the fourth quarter of 2006 because the instruments no longer qualified as an effective fair
value hedge under SFAS 133. Therefore, all changes in fair value were recognized in earnings during the period of
the change. The net cash settlement of these derivatives was included in noninterest income during the fourth
quarter of 2006. As of December 31, 2006, these CD swaps had a recorded fair value of ($713,000) and a weighted
average life of 8.99 years. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 4.92% and the weighted average
variable rate {(paying rate) was 5.33% (LIBOR based). In the first quarter of 2007, we redesignated these swaps as
fair value hedges.

Fair Value Hedges

As of December 31, 2006, we had entered into $46.5 million notional amount of swaps (“CD swaps™) to hedge
the interest rate risk inherent in certain of its brokered certificates of deposits (“brokered CDs™). The CD swaps are
used to convert the fixed rate paid on the brokered CDs to a variable rate based upon three-month LIBOR. Prior to
the first quarter of 2006, these transactions did not qualify for fair value hedge accounting under SFAS 133 {see
Note 1). During the first quarter of 2000, we designated these CD swaps as fair value hedges. As fair value hedges,
the net cash settlements from the designated swaps are reported as part of net interest income. In addition, we will
recognize in current earnings the change in fair value of both the interest rate swap and related hedged brokered
CDs, with the ineffective portion of the hedge relationship reported in noninterest income. The fair value of the CD
swaps is reported on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition in other liabilities and the change in fair
value of the related hedged brokered CD is reported as an adjustment to the carrying value of the brokered CDs,
Hedge accounting was discontinued on $36.5 million of these swap positions during the fourth quarter of 2006
because the instruments no longer qualified as an effective fair value hedge under SFAS 133 (see “Interest Rate
Swaps” above). As of December 31, 2006, the amount of CD swaps designated as fair value hedges totaled
$10.0 million and had a recorded fair value of ($84,000) and a weighted average life of 3.87 years. The weighted
average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 4.13% and the weighted average variable rate (paying rate) was 5.38%
(LIBOR based).

Interest Rate Floors

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we entered into certain interest rate floor contracts that have not been
qualified for hedge accounting treatment and will be used as an economic hedge. An interest raie floor is a contract
in which the counterparty agrees to pay to the difference between a current market rate of interest and an agreed rate
multiplied by the amount of the notional amount, We entered into $50.0 million interest rate floor contracts for a
three-year period with a 4.25% floor on the three-month LIBOR rate. We paid a $248,000 premium. These
economic hedges will be carried at fair value in other assets or other liabilities and changes in the fair value of these
derivatives and any payments received will be recognized in noninterest income. The floors had a positive fair value
of $215,000 as of December 31, 2006.

Liquidity

The goal of liquidity management is to provide adequate funds to meet changes in loan demand or any
potential unexpected deposit withdrawals. Additionally, management strives to maximize our earnings by investing
our excess funds in securities and other securitized loan assets with maturities matching our offsetting liabilities.
See the “Selected Loan Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity” and “Maturity Distribution of Investment
Securities”,

Historically, we have maintained a high loan-to-deposit ratio. To.meet our short-term liquidity needs, we
maintain core deposits and have borrowing capacity through the FHLB, repurchase agreements and federal funds
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lines. Long-term liquidity needs are met primarily through these sources, the repayment of loans, sales of loans and
the maturity or sale of investment securitics.

As shown in the Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows, operating activities did not provide any significant
levels of funds in 2006, 2005 and 2004, primarily due 1o our having little or no operating income.

Investing activities in 2006 were a net user of funds, primarily due to loan fundings, capital expenditures and
investments in tax lien certificates. A significant amount of securities that were acquired as part of our business
combinations were sold and reinvested in loans and additional investment securities, continuing our strategy of
realigning our balance sheet which we began in 2005, Investing activities were a net provider of funds in 2005 due to
maturities and sale of securities available for sale. As noted above, we sold securities in 2005 as part of a strategy to
deleverage and realign our balance sheet mentioned above, Investing activities, primarily in loans and securities,
were a net user of funds in 2004, which required a significant amount of funds for investing activities. Funds needed
for investing activities in 2004 were provided primarily by deposits and borrowings.

Financing activities were a net provider of funds in 2006, as we increased our level of deposits. The increase in
deposits was offset by the restructuring of FHLB advances and maturity of repurchase agreements acquired in our
business combinations. Financing activities were a net user of funds in 2005, as we decreased our levels of brokered
certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. This decrease was offset by an increase in interest-bearing
demand deposit accounts, advances from the FHLB and proceeds from equity transactions. Increased brokered
certificates of deposits, advances from the FHLB and repurchase agreements provided funds in 2004.

We have entered into certain contractual obligations and commercial commitments in the normal course of
business that involve elements of credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

The following tables summarize these relationships by contractual cash obligations and commercial
commitments:

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Four to After Five
Total One Year Three Years Five Years Years

(Dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Advances from FHLB(1) . ......... $187,840  $42,000 $82,500 $5,000 $ 58,340
Operating leases(2). ... ........... 6,357 1,971 2,255 1,352 779
Capitalized leases(2). .. ........... 8,590 - 367 734 734 6,755
Notes payable(3) ................ 5,545 4,460 420 420 245
Repurchase agreements{4) ......... 23,415 23,415 — — —
Junior subordinated debentures owed

to unconsolidated trusts(5) ....... 42,269 — — — 42,269
Deferred compensation

agreements(6). .. .............. 14,201 361 1,142 818 11,880
Employment separation

agreements{7). . . ... ... ... .... 729 62 147 44 476

Other employment related contract
obligations incurred in business

combinations(8) . .............. 3,509 2,098 1,305 106 —_
Benefit Restoration Plan(9). . ... .. .. 2,387 161 524 510 1,192

Total Contractual Cash
Obligations ........... $204 842  $74,895 $89,027 $8.984 $121,936

(1) See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(4) See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(5) See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(6} See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(7) See Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, -
(8) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(9) See Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Four to After Five
Total One Year Three Years Five Years Years

(Dellars in thousands)

Commercial commitments ‘ .
Commitments to extend credit(1). ... $361,525 $239.411 $88,976 $4,068 $29,070

Standby letters of credit(l) ........ 23,630 23,034 596 — —
Total Commercial ‘ ‘
Commitments ......... $385,155  $262,445 $89,572 $4.068 $29,070

(1) See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, the FHL.B has issued for the Bank’s benefit a $20,000,000 irrevocable letter of credit in favor of the
Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida to secure certain deposits of the State of Florida. The letter of credit
expires January 6, 2008 upon 60 days’ prior -notice of non-renewal; otherwise, it automatically extends for a
successive one-year term. ' '

We are constructing or have plans to construct various new branch locations. In that regard, we have entered
into commitments as of, or subsequent to, December 31, 2006 for the construction of these branch locations totaling
approximately $4,396,000. '

Superior Bancorp also made use of a line of credit provided by a regionai bank in the amount of $10,000,000,
that was to maturing on June 6, 2007 with interest payable monthly at the 30-day LIBOR plus 2.50%. Collateral
consisted of real estate owned by the Corporation and 100% of Superior Bank stock. On January 26, 2007, we
replaced this line with a line of credit from another regional bank in the amount of $10,000,000, maturing on
January 26, 2008; interest is based on the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.25% and the line is secured by 51% of the
outstanding Superior Bank stock.

Financial Condition

QOur total assets were $2.441 billion at December 31, 2006, a increase of $1.025 billion, or 72.4%, from
$1.415 billion as of December 31, 2005, This growth in primarily attributable to the Community and Kensington
acquisitions, as discussed below. Our average total assets for 2006 were $1.683 billion, which was supported by
average total liabilities of $1.542 billion and average total stockhelders’ equity of $140.8 million.

Kensington Acquisition

We completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Kensington on August 31, 2006 in exchange
for 6,226,722 shares of our common stock valued at approximately $71.2 million. The shares were valued by using
the average of the closing prices of our stock for several days prior to and after the terms of the acquisition were
agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which includes certain direct acquisition costs, was $71.3 million
As aresult of the acquisition we now operate {2 banking locations in the Tampa Bay area of Florida. This area is our
largest market and has a higher projected population growth than any of our other current banking markets.

The Kensington transaction resulted in $44.9 million of goodwill allocated to the Florida reporting unit and
$3.5 million of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarter of 2006 management completed its plan to terminate Kensington’s data processing
operations and convert Kensington’s accounts to our system. This conversion was completed in the first quarter of
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2007. Certain costs associated with this conversion totaling approximately $1.4 million, which included primarily
contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.

Amount
{Dollars in thousands)

Cashanddue frombanks. .. ... ... . it .3 4454
Federal funds sold . . ... ... ... .. e 964
Investment SECUTIHES .- . . oo et v e s it et s oo e s te s i te s tne s atares s 180,151
Loans, net ... .......... ... .. ... ciiiuarnn.y e e e 136,414
Premises and equipment, net. . . .. ... ... ... 5,397
GoodWill . .. e e e e e e 44,922
Core deposit intangibles . . ... ... . ... . e 3.544
[0 11 3T g T £ 5,042
Deposits .......coviiviiininnnin... e e e e (276,186)
Repurchase agreements .. ...... ... .. ... .. ... . (30,050)
Other liabilities . ... ...t e e e e e e e e (3,280)

Total consideration paid for Kensington. . . . .......... .. ... ... ..... $ 71,372

Community Acquisition

We completed the acquisition of 100% of the ocutstanding stock of Community on November 7, 2006 in
exchange for 8,072,179 shares of our common stock valued at approximately $91.9 million. The shares were valued
by using the average of the closing prices of our stock for several days prior to and after the terms of the acquisition
were agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which includes certain direct acquisition costs and cash
payments due for the cancellation of stock options, was $97.2 million. As a result of the acquisition we added 18
banking locations and 15 consumer finance company locations in the State of Alabama.

The Community transaction resulted in $59.1 million of goodwill allocated to the Alabama reporting unit and
$10.1 million of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarter of 2006 management completed its plan to terminate Community’s data processing
operations and convert Community’s accounts to our system. This conversion was completed in the fourth quarter of
2006. Certain costs associated with this conversion totaling approximately $1.2 million, which included primarily
contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition date.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition. We are in the process of obtaining appraisals on certain real property; thus, the allocation of the
purchase price is subject to refinement:

Amount
{Dollars in thousands)

Cash and due from banks . . . ... 0 it i e e e $ 23,167
Federal funds sold . ... .. .. ... .. . . . .. . e 35,273
Investment securities ............ LT A 117,424
Loans, net . .. . e e e 337,148
Premises and equipment, net. ... ... ... ... ... ... 24,225
Goodwill . ... ... .. ... [ 59,079
Core deposit intangibles . .. .. ... .. L 10,142
L 11T 111 1< 19,328
DEPOsitS . ..t e e e e (431,334)
FHLB advances . . . ... ... i et e e {68,801)
Junior subordinated debentures . . . ... ... ... (12,047)
Other liabilities . . ..o it e e e e e e (16,404)

Total consideration paid for Community . .............. ... un $ 97,200

Loans, net of unearned income. QOur loans, net of unearned income, totaled $1.640 billion at December 31,
2006, an increase of 70.2%, or $676.2 million, from $963.3 million at December 31, 2005. Of the increase,
approximately $337 millien can be attributed to the Community acquisition and approximately $136 million can be
attributed to the Kensington acquisition. Mortgage loans held for sale totaled $24.4 million at December 31, 2006,
an increase of $3.1 million from $21.3 million at December 31, 2005. Average loans, including mortgage loans held
for sale, totaled $1.177 billion for 2006, compared to $947.2 million for 2005. Loans, net of unearned income,
comprised 78.9% of interest-earning assets at December 31, 2006, compared to 77.2% at December 31, 2005,
Mortgage loans held for sale comprised 1.2% of interest-eaming assets at December 31, 2006, compared to 1.7% at
December 31, 2005. The average yield of the loan portfolio was 7.87%, 6.75% and 6.28% for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in average yield is primarily the result of a general
increase in market rates.

The following table details the distribution of our loan portfolio by category for the periods presented:

Distribution of Loans by Category

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial and industrial . .. ... $ 172,872  $135454 $134688  $142,072 $ 213,210
Real estatex— construction and
land development .. ......... 547,772 326,418 249,715 147,917 212,818
Real estate — mortgages
Single-family .............. 456,341 243,183 250,758 231,064 272,899
Commercial .. ............. 362,542 210,611 242,384 250,032 340,998
Other .................... 46,895 27,503 25,764 31,645 14,581
CONSUIMET. . . .. oo e ier v 54,462 21,122 32,009 46,201 79,398
Other(1).........c..cov..un. 438 498 567 8,923 5,931
Total loans. . ......... 1,641,322 964,789 936,385 857,854 1,139,835
Unearned income . . ........... . (1,794) (1,536) (L5177 (913) (1,298)
Allowance for loan losses . ... ... (18,892) (12,011) (12,543) (25,174) (27,766)
Netloans............ $1,620,636  $951,242  $922,325  $831,767 $1,110,771

(1) Certain reclassifications were made to the 2004 amounts to conform to the 2005 presentation, This information
was not available for periods prior to 2004.
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The repayment of loans as they mature is a source of liquidity for us, The following table sets forth our loans by
category maturing within specified intervals at December 31, 2006. The information presented is based on the
contractual maturities of the individual loans, including loans which may be subject to renewal at their contractual
maturity. Renewal of such loans is subject to review and credit approval, as well as modification of terms upon their

maturity, Consequently, management believes this treatment presents fairly the maturity and repricing of the loan

portfolio,
o

Selected Loan Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Rate Structure for Loans
Over One Year Mauturing Over One Year

One Year through Five Over Five Predetermined Floating or
or Less Years Years Total Interest Rate  Adjustable Rate

{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial and

industrial ... ......... $114,864 $ 52,594 $ 5414 $ 172,872 $ 35239 $ 22,769
Reai estate — construction

and land development . . . 412,756 117,874 17,142 547,772 30,661 104,355
Real estate — mortgages

Single-family ,........ 30,092 75,789 350,460 456,341 138,216 288,033

Commercial .......... 66,341 139,983 156,218 362,542 106,816 189,385

Other ............... 11,716 14,553 20,626 46,895 13,539 21,640
Consumer. ............. 15,000 37,442 2,021 54,463 37,974 1,489
Other................. 346 92 — 438 92 —

Total loans. . . ... $651,115 $438,327 $551,881 $1,641,323  $362,537 $627,671

Percent to total loans . . ... 39.7% 26.7% 33.6% 100.0% 22.1% 38.2%

Allowance for Loan Losses. 'We maintain an allowance for loan losses within a range we believe is adequate
to absorb estimated losses inherent in the loan portfolio. We prepare a quarterly analysis to assess the risk in the loan
portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Generally, we estimate the allowance using
specific reserves for impaired loans, and other factors, such as historical loss experience based on volume and types
of loans, trends in classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, economic conditions and
other pertinent information. The level of allowance for loan losses to net loans will vary depending on the quarterly
analysis.

We manage and control risk in the loan portfolio through adherence to credit standards established by the board
of directors and implemented by senior management. These standards are set forth in a formal loan pelicy, which
establishes loan underwriting and approval procedures, sets limits on credit concentration and enforces regulatory
requirements.

Loan portfolic concentration risk is reduced through concentration limits for borrowers, collateral types and
geographic diversification. Concentration risk is measured and reported to senior management and the board of
directors on a regular basis.

The allowance for loan loss calculation is segregated into various segments that include classified loans, loans
with specific allocations and pass rated loans. A pass rated loan is generally characterized by a very low to average
risk of default where management perceives there is a minimal risk of loss. Loans are rated using an eight-point
scale with the loan officer having the primary responsibility for assigning risk ratings and for the timely reporting of
changes in the risk ratings. These processes, and the assigned risk ratings, are subject to review by our internal loan
review function and senior management. Based on the assigned risk ratings, the criticized and classified loans in the
portfolio are segregated into the following regulatory classifications: Special Mention, Substandard, Doubtfu! or
Loss. Generally, regulatory reserve percentages (5%, Special Mention; 15%, Substandard; 50%, Doubtful; 100%
Loss) are applied to these categories to estimate the amount of loan loss allowance required, adjusted for previously
mentioned risk factors. !
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Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114 (“SFAS 1147), impaired loans are
specifically reviewed loans for which it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according
to the terms of the loan agreement. Impairment is measured by comparing the recorded investment in the loan with
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, at the loan’s
observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. A valuation allowance is

- provided to the extent that the measure of the impaired loans is less than the recorded investment. A loan is not
considered impaired during a period of delay in payment if we continue to expect that all amounts due will
ultimately be collected. Larger groups of homogenous loans such as consumer installment and residential real estate
mortgage loans are collectively evaluated for impairment,

Reserve percentages assigned to pass rated homogeneous loans are based on historical charge-off experience
adjusted for current trends in the portfolio and other risk factors.

As stated above, risk ratings are subject to independent review by our loan review function, which also
performs ongoing, independent review of the risk management process. The risk management process includes
underwriting, documentation and collateral control. Loan review is centralized and independent of the lending
function. The loan review results are reported to the Audit Committee of the board of directors and senior
management. We have also established a centralized loan administration services department to serve our entire
bank. This department provides standardized oversight for compliance with loan approval authorities and bank
lending policies and procedures, as well as centralized supervision, monitoring and accessibility.

We historically have allocated our allowance for loan losses to ‘specific loan categories. Although the
allowance is allocated, it is available to absorb losses in the entire loan portfolio. This allocation is made for
estimation purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the allocation between categories in which future
losses may occur.

Allocatlon of the Allowance for Loan Losses

. December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans' of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each X in Each . in Each . in Each in Each
Category Category Category Category Category
to Total to Total to Total to Total to Total

Amount ' Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans
’ (Dollars in thousands)

Corﬁmercial and . ) :
industrial . . . .. .. $ 3,719 10.5% §$ 3,805 14.0% % 3,736 14.1% $10,110 16.6% $10,056° 18.7%

Real estate —
construction and
land development. . 3425 334 1,275 338 1,009 26.6 1099 - 17.2 1,317 18.7
Real estate — -
mortgages ) . .
Single-family . . . . 2,910 27.8 1,395 25.2 1,582 26.8 4,538 26.9 3,636 239
Commercial . . . . . 6,206 22.0 4,194 21.8 4,594 259 7,613 29,1 10,174 209
Other ... ...... 530 29 215 29 257 2.7 320 3.7 396 1.3
Consumer . . . ..... 2,102 3.4 1,127 2.2 1,336 3.0 1,374 5.4 2,075 6.9
Other, . ......... — L — B 29 9 120 i.1 112 .6

$18,892 100.0% $12,011 100.0% $12,543 100.0%  $25,174 100.0% $27,766 100.0%

The allowance as a percentage of loans, net of unearned income, at December 31, 2006 was 1.15%, compared
to 1.25% as of December 31, 2005. Net charge-offs decreased $1.7 million, from $4.0 million in 2005 to $2.3 million
in 2006. Net charge-offs of commercial loans decreased $699,000, from $1.7 million in 2005 to $985,000 in 2006.
Net charge-offs of real estate loans decreased $884,000, from $1.7 miltion in 2005 to $770,000 in 2006. Net charge-
offs of consumer loans increased $209,000, to $559,000 in 2006 from $350,000 in 2005. Net charge-offs as a
percentage of the allowance for loan’ losses were 12.26% in 2006, down from 33.57% in 2005.

We expect our consumer loan charges-offs to be higher in future periods due to the addition of our consumer
finance companies. However, we believe the increased risk associated with these loans is generally offset by their
higher yield. i
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The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans decreased to 219.9% at December 31,
2006 from 252.8% at December 31, 2005. Approximately $1.3 million in allowance for loan losses has been
altocated to nonperforming loans as of December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, nonperforming loans totaled
$8.6 million, which $7.3 million, or 85.3%, was loans secured by real estate compared to $3.6 million, or 75.8%, as
of December 31, 2005. Of the $1.3 million in allowance for loan losses allocated to nonperforming loans,
$1.05 million is attributable to these real estate loans, with the remaining $250,000 allocated to remaining
nonperforming loans, which consist primarily of commercial loans. (See “Nonperforming Assets”).

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to our allowance for loan losses and the
composition of charge-offs and recoveries for the periods indicated.

Summary of Loan Loss Experience

Year
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of

4 | $ 12011 $ 12543 §$ 25,174 § 27766 § 12,546
Allowance of acquired bank (branches sold) . . 0,097 — — {(102) 1,059
Charge-offs: )

Commercial and industrial. . ............ 1,450 2,097 7,690 10,823 25,162

Real estate — construction and land

development .. .................... 378 358 765 630 1,704

Real estate — mortgages

Single-family. . .. .................. 625 795 1,012 1,505 2,608
Commercial ...................... 4i6 1,432 5,820 6,696 6,140
Other ....... ... i, 15 85 86 1,187 i41
L00s) 111114 1 =5 o 860 630 1,881 3,092 2,343
Other ....... .. .. - 2 345 87 517 —
Total charge-offs . .............. 3,746 5,742 17,341 24 450 38,098
Recoveries:
Commercial and mdustrial. . . ........... 465 413 1,468 554 93
Real estate — construction and land
development .. .................... 126 37 4 23 14
Real estate — mortgages
Single-family. ................ .. ... 102 335 470 23 23
Commercial . ........... ... ....... 363 526 737 49 —
Other . ........ . ... ... ......... 73 118 97 48 38
Consumer . ..., 301 280 549 282 239
Other . ... ... . .. — | 410 6 —
Total recoveries . . .............. 1,430 1,710 3,735 985 407
Net charge-offs. .. ..................... 2,316 4,032 13,606 23,465 37,691
Provision for loan losses . . .. ............. 2,500 3,500 975 20,975 51,852
Allowance for loan losses at end of year . . . .. $ 18,892 $ 12,011 % 12543 § 25174 $ 27,766
Loans at end of period, net of unearned

INCOME . ... ..ttt $1,639,528 $963,253 $934,868 $ 856,941 $1,138,537
Average loans, net of unearned income . ... .. 1,176,844 947,212 894,406 1,063,451 1,124,977
Ratio of ending allowance to ending loans. . . . 1.15% 1.25% 1.34% 2.94% 2.44%
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans . . . . . 0.20 0.43 1.52 2.21 3.35
Net charge-offs as a percentage of:

Proviston for loan losses .. ............. 92.64 1520 1,395.49 111.87 72.69

Allowance forloan losses ... ........... 12.26 33.57 108.47 93.21 135.74
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of

nonperforming loans . .. ............... 219.88 252.76 169.36 78.59 105.00

Nonperforming Assets. Nonperforming assets increased $3.8 million, to $10.4 million as of December 31,
2006 from $6.6 million as of December 31, 2005, primarily due to the acquisition of Community. As a percenage of
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net loans plus nonperforming assets, nonperforming assets decreased to .63% at December 31, 2006 from .68% at
December 31, 2005. The following table represents our nonperforming assets for the dates shown.

Nonperforming Assets

December 31, .
2006 20605 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Nonaccrual .. ... oo e $ 7773 %4550 % 6,344  $29,630 $24,7i5
Accruing loans 90 days or more delinquent . ... ... .. 514 49 431 1,438 1,729
Restructured .. ... ... ... ... .. .. . i, 305 153 631 966 —
Total nonperforming loans. . . ............ 8,592 4,752 7.406 32,034 26,444
Otherrealestate owned . . . . .............o0... .. 1,684 1,842 4,906 5,806 2,360
Repossessed assets . ......... .. i, 137 — 103 219 102
Total nonperforming assets .. ............ $10,413 $6,594 $12,415 $38,059 $28,906
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of loans ....... 2% A49% 19% 3.74% 2.32%
Nonperforming assets as a percentage of loans plus
nonperforming assets ... ... ... i e .03% .68% 1.32% 441% 2.53%
Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assets. . . 43% A7% 87% 3.25% 2.05%

The following is a summary of nonperforming loans by category for the dates shown:
December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands) .

Commercial and industrial. . . ... ... .. ..ottt .. $ 704 & 988 $2.445 §11.621 F 9661

Real estate — construction and land development. . .. ... 2,067 469 187 1,735 2,226
Real estate — mortgages

Single-family. .. ... ... . .. 2,805 2,448 2,060 5472 3,672

Commercial . ........ it 1,765 - 675 2,273 12,378 8,434

Other . .o e e e 688 11 183 162 888

000 1111 1 =1 559 161 250 465 1,548

Other .. e e e 4 — 8 201 15

Total nonperforming loans . ............... $8,592  $4,752 $7.406  $32,034 $26,444

A delinquent loan is placed on nonaccrual status when it becomes 90 days or more past due and management
believes, after considering economic and business conditioris and collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial
condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest
which has been accrued on the loan during the current pertod but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted from
eamnings as a reduction of reported interest income; any prior period accrued and unpaid interest is reversed and
charged against the allowance for loan losses. No additional interest income is accrued on the loan batance until the
collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably certain. When a problem loan is finally resolved, there
may be an actual write-down or charge-off of the principal balance of the loan to the allowance for loan losses,
which may necessitate additional charges to earnings.

Impaired Loans. At December 31, 2006, our recorded investment in impaired loans under SFAS 114 totaled
$6.9 million, a increase of $3.4 million from $3.5 million at December 31, 2005. Approximately $994,000, or
14.4% of our impaired loans, remains in our special assets group along with $408,000 in allocated allowance for
loan losses; $4.0 million is in the Alabama segment and $1.9 million is in the Florida segment. Approximately
$1.4 million is specifically allocated to these loans, providing 23.8% coverage. Additionally, $6.1 million, or
88.4%, of the $6.9 million in impaired foans is secured by real estate.
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The following is a summary of impaired loans and the specifically allocated allowance for loan losses by
category as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
QOutstanding Specitic QOutstanding Specific
Balance Allowance Balance Allowance
(Dellars in thousands)

Commercial and industrial . . ....................... $ 911 $ 405 $1,794 $ 871

Real estate — construction and land development. . . ... .. 1,959 311 73 26
Real estate — mortgages

Single-family. . ... ... ... . 616 92 169 25

Commercial. . . ... ... .. . i, 2,381 656 1,437 498

Other. . ... 1,019 343 10 5

Total ... $6,886 $1,807 $3,483 $1,425

Potential Problem Loans. In addition to nonperforming loans, management has identificd $5.2 million in
potential problem loans as of December 31, 2006. Potential problem loans are loans where known informaticn
about possible credit problems of the borrowers causes management to have doubts as to the ability of such
borrowers to comply with the present repayment terms and may result in disclosure of such loans as nonperforming
in future periods. Considering that the potential problem loans are primarily secured by low-risk real estate,
management does not expect to incur any significant losses.

Investment Securities. The investment securities portfolio comprised 179 of our total interest-earning assets
as of December 31, 2006, Total securities averaged $286.7 million in 2006, compared to $262.6 million in 2005 and
$207.9 million in 2004. The investment securities portfolio produced average taxable equivalent yields of 4.74%,
4.57%, and 4.38% for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006, our
investment securities portfolio had an amortized cost of $357.6 million and an estimated fair value of $354.7 million
and weighted average yield of 5.33%. During the third and fourth guarters of 2006, we reduced the investment
portfolios of Kensington and Community by approximately $150 million and accordingly reduced our wholesale
funding. The expected carrying yields of the securities were approximately equal to the interest rates of the funding.

The following table sets forth the amortized costs of the securities we held at the dates indicated.

Investment Portfolio

December 31,
Available for Sale
2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)
U.S. Treasury and 8gencies . . .. ..o oottt e $113,259 % 99365 $180,717
State and political subdivisions .. ........ ... ... ol . 12,977 8,729 7,195
Mortgage-backed securities . . . . . . ... L e e 185,814 93,689 61,241
Corporate debt . .. ... .. . e 38,883 38,064 34,176
Other SeCUMIes. . . ... it i e e et e 6,675 7,028 6,802
Total investiment securities . .. ... . ... $357.608  $246.875  $290,13]
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The following table shows the scheduled maturities and average yields of investment securities held at
December 31, 2006.

Maturity Distribution of Investment Securities

Maturing
After One But After Five But -
Within One Within Five Within Ten After
Year Years Years Ten Years Total

Amovat  Yield Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yfeld
{Dallars in thousands}

Securities available for sale:

L1.S. Treasury and agencies. . . . . $3077  554% $ 50,863 4.25% $49.439 588% $§ 9.880 693% $113,259 523%
State and political subdivision . . . 280 2.60 815 313 3,000 407 8792 442 12977 421
Morngage-backed securities. . . . . 762 525 41,113 4.46 10986  4.66 132,953 534 185814 5.10
Other securities . ........... - = 7,729 535 - = 37.829 713 45558 6.83
Total ...l $4.119  529% 3.58% 8189454 5.73% $357.608 5.33%

$100.520  441% 3$63,515

Tax lien certificates. During 2006, the Corporation purchased $16.3 million in tax lien certificates from
various municipalities primarily in Alabama, Illinois, Mississippi, New Jersey, and South Carolina. Tax lien
certificates are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. Tax lien certificates and
resulting deeds are classified as non-accrual when a tax lien certificate is 24 to 48 months delinquent, depending on
the municipality, from the acquisition date. At that time, interest ceases to be accrued. As of December 31, 2006,
there were no delinquent or nonperforming liens.

Short-term liguid assets.  Our short-term liquid assets (cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in
other banks and federal funds sold) increased $41.1 million, or 91.6%, to $86.0 million at December 31, 2006 from
$44.8 million at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, our short-term liquid assets
comprised 3.4% and 3.2% of total assets, respectively. We continually monitor our liquidity position and will
increase or decrease our short-term liquid assets as necessary.

Deposits.  Noninterest-bearing deposits totaled $191.3 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of 107.3%,
or $99.0 million, from $92.3 million at December 31, 2005. The increase is primarily due to the approximately
$68.0 million and $26.0 million in noninterest-bearing deposits gained from the acquisition of Community and
Kensington, respectively. Noninterest-bearing deposits comprised 10.23% of total deposits at December 31, 2006
and 8.8% at December 31, 2005. In addition, $146.7 million, or 76.7% of total noninterest-bearing deposits, were in
our Alabama branches, while $44.6 million, or 23.3%, were in our Florida branches.

Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.679 billion at December 31, 2006, an increase of 76.5%, or $727.9 million,
from $951.4 million at December 31, 2005. The increase is primarily due to the $366.0 million and $260.0 million
in interest-bearing deposits gained from the acquisition of Community and Kensington, respectively. Interest-
bearing deposits averaged $1.152 billion in 2005 compared to $972.9 million in 2005, an increase of $179.0 million,
or 18.4%. The average rate paid on all interest-bearing deposits during 2006 was 4.04%, compared to 2.87% in
2005. Of total interest-bearing deposits, $1.211 billion, or 72.1%, were in the Alabama branches, while $468.1 mil-
lion, or 27.9%, were in the Florida branches.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had deposits from related parties of approximately $23.8 million and
$32.4 million, respectively. We believe that all of the deposit transactions were made on terms and conditions
reflective of arms” length transactions.
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The following table sets forth our average deposits by category for the periods indicated.

. Average Deposits

Average for the Year
2006 2005 2004

Average Average Average
Amount Average Amount Average Amount Average
Quistanding Rate Paid Outstanding Rate Paid Qutstanding Rate Paid

(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand

deposits . .o i e $ 111,757 —% $ 93,564 —% $ 8R,695 —%
Interest-bearing demand
deposits . .. .............. 359,262 3.30 339.842 2.10 262,346 1.23
Savings deposits ............ 27,968 .63 25,935 A5 29,383 .16
Time deposits .. ............ 764,787 4.51 607,141 341 590,070 _2__7_0
Total average ‘
deposits. . ........ 51,263,774 3.68%  $1,066,482 2.62%  $970,4%4 1.98%

Deposits, particularly core deposits, have historically been our primary source of funding and have enabled us
to meet successfully both our short-term and long-term liquidity needs. Our core deposits, which exclude our time
deposits greater than $ 100,000, represent 71.1% of our total deposits at December 31, 2006 compared to 66.9% at
December 31, 2005. We anticipate that such deposits will continue to be our primary source of funding in the future.
Our loan-to-deposit ratio was 87.7% at December 31, 2006, compared to 92.2% at December 31, 2005. The
maturity distribution of our time deposits over $100,000 at December 31, 2006 is shown in the following table.

Maturities of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More

At December 31, 2006

Under 3-6 6-12 Over
3 Months Months Months 12 Months Total

(Dollars in thousands}) .
$151,883 $153,214 $151,537 - $77,066 $533,700

Approximately 28.1% of our time deposits over $100,000 had scheduled maturities within three months of
December 31, 2006. (These amounts include brokered CDs and State of Alabama Time Demand Open Account).
We believe customers who hold a large denomination certificate of deposit tend 1o be extremely sensitive to interest
rate levels, making these deposits a less reliable source of funding for liquidity planning purposes than core
deposits. )

Borrowed Funds. During 2006, average borrowed funds increased $41.3 million, or 22.1%, to $228.6 mil-
lion, from $187.3 million during 2005, which in turn increased $4.2 million, or 2.3%, from $183.1 million during
2004. The increase in 2006 can be attributed to an increase in FHLB advances prior to the acquisition of Kensington
and Community. The average rate paid on borrowed funds during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was 5.07%, 4.00%, and
3.47%, respectively. Because of a relatively high loan-to-deposit ratio, the existence and stability of these funding
sources are important to our maintenance of short-term and long-term liquidity.
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Borrowed funds as of December 31, 2006 consist primarily of advances from the FHLB. The following is a
summary, by year of contractual maturity, of advances from the FHLB as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 « 2005
Weighted Weighted
Year Average Rate Balance Average Rate Balance
(Dollars in thousands)
2006, .. e —% $ _ 4.40% $ 85,250
2007 . . e 5.37 42,000 — —
2008 . . e 5.38 55,500 5.74 5,500
2009, e 539 27,000 232 27,000
20010, . e 6.41 5,000 6.41 5,000
1 5.39 26,340 4.45 26,340
2020 . . e 4.28 32,000 428 32,000
Total . .o 5.22% $187.,840 4.17% $181,090

Certain advances are subject to call by the FHLB as follows: 2007 — $1é.0 million, 2008 — $32.0 million and
2010 — $11.3 million. The $17.0 million in FHLB advances subject to call during 2007 carry a weighted average
interest rate of 5.62%.

The advances are secured by a blanket lien on certain residential and commercial real estate ioans and by
securities, all with a lendable collateral value of approximately $302,980,000 on December 31, 2006. The
Corporation has available approximately $95,000,000 in unused advances subject to the availability of qualifying
collateral.

As of December 31, 2006, we had borrowed $4.3 million under a $10 million line of credit with a regional
bank. The note was secured by real estate and stock of the Bank. The note was due June 7, 2007 and bore interest at
30-day LIBOR plus 2.50%. On January 26, 2007, we replaced this line of credit with a line of credit from another.
regional bank in the amount of $10,000,000, maturing on January 26, 2008, with interest and principal due at
maturity based on the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.25%. This line of credit is secured by 51% of the outstanding Superior
Bank stock,

As of December 31, 2006, we had entered into security repurchase agreements totaling $23.4 million, a
decrease of $7.0 million from $30.4 million at December 31, 2005. This decrease is part of the deleveraging strategy
implemented in merging cur balance sheet with those of Kensington and Community. The average volume of
repurchase agreements during 2006 was $30.6 million, which carried an average interest rate of 4.51%. The average
rate on outstanding repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2006 is 4.63%.

We have available approximately $30.0 million in unused federal funds lines of credit with regional banks,
subject to certain restrictions and collateral requirements.

Junior subordinated debentures. 'We have sponsored three trusts, TBC Capital Statutory Trust II (“TBC
Capital II"), TBC Capital Statutory Trust III (“TBC Capital IIT’) and Community (AL) Capital Trust I, of which we
own 100% of the common securities. The trusis were formed for the purpose of issuing mandatory redeemable trust
preferred securities to third-party investors and investing the proceeds from the sale of such trust preferred securities
solely in our junior subordinated debt securities (the debentures). The debentures held by each trust are the sole
assets of that trust. Distributions on the trust preferred securities issued by each trust are payable semi-annually at a
rate per annum equal to the interest rate being earned by the trust on the debentures held by that trust. The trust
preferred securities are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the debentures, We
have entered into agreements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guarantee the trust preferred
securities subject to the terms of each of the guarantees. The debentures held by the TBC Capital II, TBC Capital 111
and Community (AL} Capital I capital trusts are first redeemable, at a premium, in whole or in part, by us on
September 7, 2010, July 25, 2006 and March 8, 2010, respectively.
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As a result of applying the provisions of FASB Interpretation No, 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (“FIN 46R™), governing when an equity interest should be consolidated, we were required to deconsolidate
these subsidiary trusts from our financial statements in the fourth quarter of 2003.

The trust preferred securities held by the trusts qualify as Tier 1 capital under regulatory guidelines.

Consolidated debt obligations related to the trusts follow:

December 31,

2006 2005
10.6% junior subordinated debentures owed to TBC Capital Statutory

Trust il due September 7,2030. . ... .. ... .. ... ... ... .. ... $15,464,000 515,464,000
6-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior subordinated debentures owed to

TBC Capitat Statutory Trust II due July 25,2031.............. 16,495,000 16,495,000
10.875% junior subordinated debentures owed to Community (AL)

Capital Trust . due March 8,2030 ...... ... ... ... . ... . ... 10,310,000 —
Purchase accounting adjusiment — Community (AL) Capital Trust 1 . . 1,737,000 —
Tota! junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolidated :

subsidiary trasts . . ... .. e $44,006,000  $31,959,000

As of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the interest rate on the $16,495,000 subordinated
debentures was 9.30% and 7.67%, respectively.

Stockholders’ Equiry.  Stockholders’ equity increased $171.0 million during 2006, to $276.1 mitlion at
December 31, 2006 from $105.1 million at December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2006, we had 34,732,345 shares
of common stock issued and 34,651,669 shares outstanding. As of December 31, 2006, there were 80,676 shares
held in treasury at a total cost of $716,000. We had no shares of preferred stock issued at December 31, 2006.

We established a stock incentive plan for directors and certain key employees that provides for the granting of
restricted stock and incentive and nonqualified options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of our common stock.
The compensation committee of the Board of Directors determines the terms of the restricted stock and options
granted. All options granted have a maximum term: of ten years from the grant date, and the option price per share of
options granted cannot be less than the fair marker value of our common stock on the grant date. Some of the options
granted under the plan in the past vested over a five-year period, while others vested based on certain benchmarks
relating to the trading price of our common stock, with an outside vesting date of five years from the date of grant.
More recent grants have followed this benchmark-vesting formula. During the first quarter of 2005, we granted
1,690,937 options to the new management team. These options have exercise prices ranging from $8.17 10 $9.63 per
share and were granted outside of the stock incentive plan as part of the inducement package for new management

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R™), which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and supersedes Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB Opinion 25”}. The new
standard, which became effective for us in the first quarter of 2006, requires companies to recognize an expense in
the statement of operations for the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued
to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of valuation method. This expense will be recognized over the
period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R carries
forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees. If an equity award is modified after the grant
date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair value of the
modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately prior to the modification. We are recognizing
compensalion expense for any stock awards granted after December 31, 2005. Since all of the Corporation’s stock
option awards granted prior to December 31, 2005 have vested in full, no future compensation expense will be
recognized on these awards. '

We adopted the provisions of SFAS [23R using the modified-prospective transition method., Under that
transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes $158,000 in compensation cost for all share-
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based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant based upon the Black-Scholes pricing
model that uses the assumptions found in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. The risk-free interest rate
is based on the implied yield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term.

Expected volatility has been estimated based on historical data. The expected term has been estimated based
on the five-year vesting date and change of control provisions.

Qur board of directors approved the full vesting as of November 15, 2005 of all unvested stock options
outstanding at that date. The effect of this accelerated vesting is reflected in the pro forma net loss and pro forma loss
per share figures in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the pro
forma after-tax effect of compensation costs for stock-based employee compensation awards totaled $2.1 million,
or $0.10 per share. In conjunction with the Board’s approval of the full vesting, members of the our senior
management team announced that they would not accept any performance bonus for which they might have been
eligible at year-end 2005. The number of shares represented by unvested options that” were vested effective
November 15, 2005 is approximately 800,000, of which approximately 665,000 were held by our directors and
executive officers.

Superior Bancorp ESOP.  We adopted a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (the “ESOP”) effective
May 15, 2002 that covers all eligible employees who are at least 21 years old and have completed a year of service.
As of December 31, 2005, the ESOP has been leveraged with 273,400 shares of our common stock purchased in the
open market and classified as a contra-equity account, “Uncarned ESOP stock,” in stockholders’ equity.

On January 29, 2003, the ESOP trustees finalized a $2.1 million promissory note to reimburse us for the funds
used to leverage the ESOP. The unreleased shares and our guarantee secure the promissory note, which has been
classified as notes payable on our statement of financial condition. As the debt is repaid, shares are released from
collateral based on the proportion of debt service. Principal payments on the debt are $17,500 per month for
120 months. The interest rate is adjusted to the Wall Street Journal prime rate. Released shares are allocated to each
eligible employee at the end of a plan year based on the ratio of the employee’s eligible compensation to total
compensation. We recognize compensation expense during a period as the shares are earned and committed to be
released. As shares are commitied to be released and compensation expense is recognized, the shares become
outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share computations. The amount of compensation expense we report
is equal to the average fair value of the shares earned and committed to be released during the period. Compensation
expense that we recognized during the periods ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $304,000, $281,000
and $189,000, respectively. The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2006 were as follows:

- Superior Bancorp

December 31,

2006
Allocated shares . . . . .. .. e 82,028
Estimated shares committed tobereleased ......... ... ... . . . . i i, 26,700
Unreleased shares . . ... .. ... . o e e 164,672
Total ESOF shares . ................ e e 273,400
Fair value of unreleased shares .. .. ... .. JE PP $3,100,000

Community Bancshares ESOP. As a result of our merger with Community, we became a sponsor of an
internally leveraged ESOP maintained by Community. This ESOP has an outstanding loan owed to us that bears
interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate of interest. As of December 31, 2006, the interest rate on the note
was 8.25%. Principal and interest payments on the ESOP loan are due monthly through September 16, 2011, based
on the current amortization schedule, with the remaining principal and interest, if any, due upon that date. The ESQP
loan may be prepaid in whole or in part without penaity under the loan agreement, subject to applicable ERISA and
tax restrictions. We make contributions to the ESOP that enable the ESOP to make payments due under the ESGP
" loan, Under Statement of Position No. 93-6 {(“SOP 93-6), “Employer’s Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership
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Plans,” employers that sponsor an ESOP with an employer loan should not report the ESOP’s note payable or the
employer’s note receivable in the employer’s statement of condition, nor should interest cost or interest income be
recognized on the employer loan. We followed SOP 93-6 accordingly. The principal balance of our loan to the
ESOP at December 31, 2006 was $1.1 million.

An employee becomes a participant in the ESOP after completing 12 months of service during which the
employee is credited with 1,000 hours or more of service. Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the
board but may not be less than the amount required to service the ESOP debt. Under the terms of the ESOP, after a
person ceases 10 be an employee, that person is no longer eligible to participate in the ESOP. In that case, the person
may demand to receive all stock credited to his benefit under the ESOP as of the end of the year immediately
preceding that person’s termination of employment.

Dividends paid on released ESOP shares are credited to the accounts of the participants to whom the shares are
allocated. Dividends on unreleased shares may be used to repay the debt associated with the ESOP or treated as
other income of the ESOP and allocated to the participants. Compensation cost recognized during the period ended
December 31, 2006 was $39,000. The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

December 31,

2006
Allocated shares. . . ... ... ... . . e 380,011
Estimated shares committed to be released ... ......... ... ..... ... 14,066
Unreleased shares. . . ... . .. i i i e e e e 66,659
Total ESOP shares . .. ... i i e ettt i 460,736
Fair value of unreleased shares . . . ... ... ... . ... .. ... ... .. ... $5,224,746

Regularory Capital.  During the fourth quarter of 2005, we became a unitary thrift holding company and, as
such, we are subject to regulation, examination and supervision by OTS.

Simultaneously, the Bank’s charter was changed to a federal savings bank charter, and the Bank is also subject
to various regulatery requirements administered by the OTS. Prior to November 1, 2005 the Bank was reguiated by
the Alabama Banking Department and the Federal Reserve. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on our financial position and results of operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of its assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require us and the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below?} of tangible and core capital (as defined in the regulations)
to adjusted total assets (as defined), and of total capital (as defined) and Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, that we and the Bank meet all applicable capital
adequacy reguirements.
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The table below represents our and the Bank’s actual regulatory and minimum regulatory capital requirements
at December 31, 2006 (dollars in thousands):
To Be Well

For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Parposes Action
Amount Ratio Amount Raltio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2006
Tier 1 Core Capital (10 Adjusted

Total Assets)

Corporation .. ............... $170,513 7.43% $ 91,768 4.00% $114,710 5.00%

Superior Bank. . .. ............ 174,084 7.64 91,090 4.00 113,863 5.00
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted

Assets)

Corporation . ................ 188,688 1040 145,198  8.00 181,498 10.00

Superior Bank, .. ............. 192,259  10.69 143,843  8.00 179,803  10.00
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted

Assels)

Corporation . ................ 170,513 9.39 N/A  N/A 108,899 6.00

Superior Bank. . . .. ... ... ..., 174,084 9.68 N/A N/A 107,882 6.00
Tangible Capital {to Adjusted Total

Assels)

Superior Bank. . ... ....... ..., 174,084 7.64 34,159 1.50 N/A N/A

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore,
interest rates have a more significant effect on our performance than do the effects of changes in the general rate of
inflation and changes in prices. In addition. interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the
same magnitude as the prices of goods and services. We seek to manage the relationships between interest sensitive
assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide interest rate fluctuations, including those resulting from
inflation.

Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements
made by us or on our behalf. Some of the disclosures in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including any statements
could,” “should,” *“will,” *would,” “hope,” “might,”
 “assume” or similar expressions constitute forward-

” W

preceded by, followed by or which include the words “may,
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,

looking statements.

LENT "t [T ¥

estimate,” “intend,” “plan,

These forward-looking statements, implicitly and explicitly, include the assumptions underlying the state-
ments and other information with respect to our beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expectations, anticipations,
estimates, intentions, financial condition, results of operations, future performance and business, including our
expectations and estimates with respect to our revenues, expenses, earnings, return on equity, return on assets,
efficiency ratio, asset quality, the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses and other financial data and capital and
performance ratios.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, these
statements involve risks and uncertainties which are subject to change based on various important factors (some of
which are beyond our control). The following factors, among others, could cause our financial performance to differ
materially from our goals, plans, objectives, intentions, expectations and other forward-looking statements: (1) the
strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the regional and local economies in which we
conduct operations; (2) the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including
interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; (3) inflation, interest rate, market
and monetary fluctuations; (4) our ability to successfully integrate the assets, liabilities, customers, systems and
management we acquire or merge into our operations; (5) our timely development of new products and services ina
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changing environment, including the features, pricing and quality compared to the products and services of our
competitors; (6) the willingness of users o substitute competitors’ products and services for our products and
services; (7) the impact of changes in financial services policies, laws and regulations, including laws, regulations
and policies concerning taxes, banking, securities and insurance, and the application thercof by regulatory bodies;
(8) our ability to resolve any legal proceeding on acceptable terms and its effect on our financial condition or results
of operations; (9) technological changes: (10) changes in consumer spending and savings habits; (11) the effect of
natural disasters, such as hurricanes, in our geographic markets; and (12) regulatory, legal or judicial proceedings.

If one or more of the factors affecting our forward-looking information and statements proves incorrect, then
our actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by,
forward-looking information and statements contained in this annual report. Therefore, we caution you not to place
undue reliance on our forward-looking information and statements.

We do not intend to update our forward-looking information and statements, whether written or oral, to reflect
change. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks.

Please refer to “Tiem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Market Risk — Interest Rate Sensitivity,” which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Consolidated financial statlements of Superior Bancorp meeting the requirements of Regulation S-X are filed
on the succeeding pages of this Item & of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

45




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

CONTENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2006 . ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... ... S
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. ... ... .0 . . o i e
Consolidated Statements of Operations . .. ... ... . .. . .. . . . e
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity .. ...... ... ... ... ... ... ... .....
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. .. ... ... . . . . . . e,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . ... ... .. . i e e

46




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Superior Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Superior Bancorp
(formerly, The Banc Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006, the Company changed its method of
accounting for post-retirement benefit plans and share-based compensation.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated March 16,
2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of Superior Bancorp and
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Superior
Bancorp and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

Dothan, Alabama
March 16, 2007
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,

2006 2005
(In Thousands}
ASSETS
Cashand due from banks . .. .. . .. . . e e $ .49783 § 35,088
Interest-bearing deposits inother banks. . ... .. .. ... L 10,994 9.772
Federal funds sold . . .. .. ... . 25,185 —
Investment securities available forsale . . . . ... .. . ... . .. .. e 354,716 242,306
Tax lien cemilICalES . . . . . . . . et e e e e s 16,313 289
Mortgage loans held forsale . . .. .. . 24,433 21,355
5 T - 1,641,322 964,789
Uneamed iNCOMIC . . . . . ... i et e e e et e e e (1.794) (1.536)
Loans, net of unearned INCOME . .. ... . . i e e 1,639,528 963,253
Allowance for 1oan Jo88es .« . . . . ..t e e e e e (18,892} (12,011)
Nl 0ans . . . e e e e e e e 1,620,636 951,242
Premises and eqUIPMENt, NEL . . . . ... L. i e e e e 94,626 56,017
Accrued interest receivabie . . . .. .. L. e e e e 14,387 7,081
Stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank .. .. ... ... i e i e it 12,382 10,966
Cash surrender value of life insurance . ... ... .. . i e e 40,598 39,169
Goodwill and intangible assels. . . .. .. ... e e e e 129,520 12,090
T BB . . v v i v e et e e e e e e e e e e 47417 30,004
TOtal BSSELS . o o ot e e e e e e e $2.440,990 351415469
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand . . .. ... . . .. . e e $ 191,323 § 92342
Interest-bearing demand. . . . ... ... . . . . e e s " 552,887 349,271
SAVINES .« Lt e e e 4217 21,705
Time deposits $100,000 and Over . . .. . ... e e 533,700 344,736
Other time deposils. . . . ... ... e e 550,214. 235,642
Total deposits. . . . . .. .. e 1,870,841 1,043,696
Advances from FHLB. . . ... ... . 187,840 181,090
Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements . .. ... ................... 23,415 33,406
Notes payable . .. ..o e e e 5,545 3,755
Junior subordinated debentures owed 1o unconsolidated subsidiary trusts ... ... ..., A4 006 31,959
Capital lease obligation. . . . .. .. . e 3,798 —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. ... ... . ... .. . . . . . . 29,458 16,498
Total Babilities . . . .. .. 2,164,903 1,310,404
Commitments and contingencies {Note 16)
Stockholders’ equity:
Convertible preferred stock, par value $.001 per share; shares authorized 5,000,000; O shares
issued and outstanding in 2006 and in 2005 . . . . ... ... L. — —
Common stock, par value $.001 per share; shares authorized 50,000,000; shares issued
34,732,345 in 2006 and 20,221,456 in 2005; outstanding 34,651,669 in 2006 and
19,980,261 in 2005 . .. . e e e e 35 20
Surplus —preferred . . ... e — —
—commonstock .. ... ... .. ... .., e e e e e e 253,815 87,979
Retained earmings . . . .. ...ttt e e e 26,491 210,494
Accumulated other comprehensive 108S . . . ... ... ... ... L {(1,452) (2,544}
Treasury stock, at cost — 80,676 and 49,823 shares, respectively .. .. ................ (716) (341)
Unearmed ESOP st0cK . . . .. . . i e e (2,086) (1,543)
Total stockholders™ equity . .. .. ... o i e 276,087 105,065
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . .. .. ... ... .. ... . .. ... $2,440990 $1,415,469

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

{In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Interest income:

Interest and fees ON 10ANS . .. . oottt t e it e e $ 92659 $63,895 §$56.184
Interest on taxable securities . ... .. .. e e 12,994 11,632 8,897
Interest on tax exempt SeCUrities . ............ ..ot e 389 246 143
Interest on federal funds sold. . . ..... ... ... . .o i L, 570 460 202
Interest and dividends on other investments ... ......... ... ... 2,165 1,047 734
Total INEEFESt INCOME « .« & v v v e e e e e e e e te i e e emr o ee et 108,777 77,280 66,160
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits . . ... it e 46,511 27915 19,188
Interest expense on advances from FHLB and other borrowed funds . . . . 11,603 7,493 6,356
Interest on subordinated debentures .. ....... .. ... . i, 3,269 2,847 2,579
Total inlerest EXPEISE . .. oo v v vt e et 61,383 38,255 28,123
Net INErESt INCOIMIE . 4 o v o vt ot ot i s et s et me e a e e e in e an 47,394 39,025 38,037
Provision for 10an loSses . .. . . ..ot e e 2,500 3,500 975
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ... ................ 44,894 35,525 37,062
Noninterest income:; ‘
Service charges and fees . ... ... ...l 4915 4,687 5,204
Mortgage banking income . . ... ... . oo 2,997 2,558 1,664
Investment securities 10SSES . . . .. . . ... i e e —— (948) (74)
Change in fair value of derivatives. ... ............. ... ..ot 374 (325) —
Gainonsaleofbranches . . ... .. ittt oo i e — — 739
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance . . ................ 1,580 1,544 1,643
Insurance proceeds .. ... . L — 5,114 —
(871 1= (R A 1,945 2,067 2,090
Total NONIMIETESE INCOMIE &+ o v v vt e v et e e e et et e as e aeeeea s e 11,811 14,697 11,266
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits. . ... ... ... L oo 26,805 23,104 23,481
Occupancy and equipment . . . ... ... i e 7,754 7,680 8,047
Management Separation CostS, . . .. ... ie e 265 15,467 —
% £ v L 635 — —
Lossonsale of 0ANS . . . oot ittt i e e e et e e — — 2,293
Subsidiary StartUp CostS . .. ... .. e 135 -— —_
(@11 s~ P 14,191 14,369 14,116
Total NONIBTErESt EXPENSES . . . . . oo o v i it it e i ame e 49,785 60,620 47,937
Income (loss) before INCOME tAXES. . .. . .o oo oo ii i i e e 6,920 (10,398) 39]
Income tax expense (benefit}. ... ... ... ... . e 1,923 (4,612) (796)
Net income (10S8) . . oot v ittt e e e et e 4,997 (5,786) 1,187
Preferred stock dividends. . .. . .. ..o e — 305 446
Preferred stock CONVETSION . . . . . . . ittt ittt tntan e e s e annas — 2,006 —
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders. . . .......... $ 4997 $ 8,097y $ 741
Weighted average common shares outstanding ... ......... .. ... ... 23,409 19,154 17,583
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution. ... .. .. 24,034 19,154 17,815
Basic net income (loss) per common share. . . ........ ..o, $ 021 $ (42) $ 004
Diluted net income (loss) per common share . ............... ... ... 0.21 (.42) 0.04

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIIMARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Other

Unearned Unearned

‘Total

C Surptus Retained Comprehensive Treasury ESQP  Restricted Stockholders’
Stock Common Preferred Earnings Loss Stock Stock Stock Equity
{In Thousands, Except Share Data)
Balance at January 1,2004 .. ... .. ... .. 518 3 68363 $6,193 $28851 § (180  $(501) $(1.974) $(648) $100,122
Comprehensive income;
Netincome ................... — — — L1187 — — —_ — 1,187
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
benefit of $609, unrealized loss on
securities available for sale, arising
during the period, net of
reclassification adjustment ... ... .. — — — — (914) — -— — (914)
Comprehensive income . ... ..... ..., 273
Issuance of 20,821 shares of treasury

stock, ... — 43 — — — 11 - — 154
Preferred dividends declared . . . . ... ... _ — — (446) — _— — — (446)
Stock options exercised . . ... ... ..., — 49 — (1) — — — — 48
Amortization of unearned restricted stock, , — — - — —_ — - 199 199
Release of 26,700 shares by ESOP . . . ... —_ [¢1)] — — — — 216 —_ 189

Balance at December 31,2004 . . ... ... .. 18 68,428 6,193 29,591 {1,094} (390) (1,758) (449) 100,539
Comprehensive income:
Netloss. ..................... — — —  (5,786) — — — —_ (5,786)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
benefit of $984, unrealized loss on
securities available for sale, arising
during the period, net of ‘
reclassification adjustment ., . ... ... —_ _ —_ —_ (1,473) — — —_ (1,473}
Change in accumulated gain on cash
flow hedging instrument, net of tax
expenseof $16. .. ............. — — -— — 23 — - — 23
Comprehensive loss. . ... ........... : (7.236)
Issuance of 925,636 shares 1o new

executive management and others in a )

private placement. . ... ........ ... l 7,328 — — — — — — 7,329
Issuance of 8,191 shares of treasury

stock. . . .. e — 34 — — — 49 — — 83
Issuance of 49,375 shares of restricted '

stock. .. .. e e — 403 — — — — — {122} 281
Preferred dividends declared . . . ... .. .. — — — (305) — — — — (305)
Preferred stock conversion —

775000 shares . ... ... ... l 8.198 (6,193) (2.006) — — — —_ —
Stock options exercised — 474,684 shares. . — 3,727 — — — — — — 3,727
Forfeiture of unearned restricted stock. . . . — (204) — — — — — 204 —_
Amortization of unearned restricted stock. .  — — — - — - — 367 367
Release of 26,700 shares by ESOP . . ., .. — 65 — — — -— 215 — 280

Balance at December 31,2005 . ......... 20 87.979 — 21,494 (2.544) (341) (1,543) — 105,065
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ................... — — — 4997 — — - — 4,997
Cther comprehensive income, net of tax
expense of $556, unrealized gain on
securities available for sale, arising
during the period, net of
reclassification adjustment . . ... ... — — — — 831 — — — 831
Change in accumnulated gain on cash flow '

hedge, netoftax . . .............. (Pk))] 23
Change in pension fiability net of tax

effect ... ... — — — — 284 — — _ 284
Comprehensive income . ... ......... 6.089
Issuance of 4,873 shares of treasury

Stock. . ... — 20 — — — 32 — — 52
Issuance of 6,226,722 shares for

Kensington purchase .. ......... .. 6 70,965 — — — — — - 70,97t
Issuance of 56,170 shares related o board

COMPENSAtON . + . v ovvve s o cu ey v — 569 — — — — - — 569
Issuance of 8,072,179 shares for B

Community ................... 8 93,045 —_— — —_ (407) (759 — 91,887
Stock options exercised 155,818, ... .. .. i 991 —_ — — -_ . - — 992
Compensation expense related to stock

OpLONS . . ... ...t - 159 - — - — - — 159
Release of 26,700 shares by ESOP . . . ... — 87 — C— — — 216 — 303

Balance at December 31,2006 .. ..... ... $35 5253815 8§  — $26491  3(1.452) 3(716) $(2.086) $ —  $276,087

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In Thousands)
Operating activities
Net inCOME (l088). . . o v vttt ettt et it et e e $ 4997 § (5786 & 1,187
Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operations:
Depreciation . . v v oot e e e 3,245 3,275 3,374
Net premium amortization On SECUies . . . ..o i i e e e s 298 531 653
Loss on sale of investment seCUrities . . . . ... ... v ouiin v eennnn — 948 74
Loss on foreclosed asSBIS . . . . . ..t it vttt i e e 181 818 969
Lossonsale of J0ans . . . . ... ... . ... .. e — — 2,293
Provision for 10an JOSSES . . . .. vttt e e e e 2,500 3,500 975
Increase in accrued interest receivable . . . ... ... L. L o e (750 (844) {1,199
Deferred income tax expense {(benefit) . . ... ... ... .. oo 1,923 (3.163) - 1,634
Gain on sale of assets/branches . . . . ... ... . . L e (254) — (739}
Net increase in mortgage loans held forsale. ... .. ... . . 0. (1,993) (13,260) (1,687)
Other operating activities, nel . . .. . . . ... ... . i (3,781) 4202 (708)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. . . .......... ... ....... 6,366 (9,784) 6,826
Investing activities
Decrease in interest bearing deposits inotherbanks . . ............... ... ... 1,222 1,639 458
Decrease (increase) in federal funds sold . . ... ... . ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 11,052 11,600 (11,000)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available forsale. . .............. 215,117 57,372 84,485
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available forsale ... .......... 39,233 40,642 65,560
Purchase of investment Securities available forsale .. ... . ... ... ... ....... (72,319)  (56,233)  (306,400)
Proceeds from sale of loans. . . . ... ... . .. . . . .. e — —_ 23,883
Net increase in 0ans . .. . .. .ot i it et e et et e (200.837) (34,225  (126.059)
Net cash received (paid) in business combinations . . .. .................... 18,642 _ (6,626)
Purchase of tax lien certificates . . .. .. ... . . e (16.024) (273) —
Purchase of premises and equipment . ... ......... .. i (13.813) (2,665) (6,457)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment . ........ ... ... ..l 1.835 3,343 497
Procecds from sale of foreclosed assets. . .. ... .. ... i 1,722 4,155 7,689
Purchase of life insurance . . ......... A — —_ (5.000)
Other investing activilies, Net. . ... ... .. o 2,087 1,247 (3.788)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . ........ ... ... .. ..... (11,483) 26,002 (282.758)
Financing activities
Net increase in demand and savings deposits. ... ........ ... ... ... .. 59,375 50,236 59,338
Net increase (decrease) in time deposils . .. .. v vttt e e 60,766 (73,7147 126,134
(Decrease) increase in FHLB advances . . ... ... .. e (62,051) 25,000 35,000
Proceeds from note payable. . .. ... .. ... .o 2,000 — 2,250
Principal paymentonnote payable . . ... .. ... ... oo i o oL (210) (210) (210)
Net {decrease) increase in other borrowed funds . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. (41,060  (16.050) 45,627
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . . .. ... .. .o i 992 10,457 49
Cashdividends paid . . ... ... . . e — (305) (446)
Net cash provided by {(used in) financing activities. . .. ..... ... ...... .. ... 19,812 {4,619) 267,742
Increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks ., .. . ... ... ... ... ... L. 14,695 11,599 (8,190)
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year. .. .. ... ... ... ... ... 35,088 23,489 31.679
Cash and due from banks atend of year . . ...... ... ... ... .. ... ..., $ 49,783 $35088 $ 23.489
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
IOEIESE .« . v ettt e e e e e e e $ 56831 $37,790 § 27312
INCOME BAXES . . . o ot e et it ot ettt et ettt e et e ea e . (1.706) (3,066) (2,708)
Transfer of foreclosed assels . . .. .. .. i ot e e 935 1,804 7,637
Assets acquired in business combinations . .. ... L o oL L oL 1,006,674 — —
Liabilities assumed in business combinalions. .. ... ... ... .. L e 838,102 — —

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Superior Bancorp (“Corporation™), through iis subsidiaries, provides a full range of banking and bank-related
services to individual and corporate customers in Alabama and Florida. The accounting and reporting policies of the
Corporation conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to general practice within the banking
industry. The following summarizes the most significant of these policies.

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions or
balances have been eliminated in conselidation.

Certain amounts in prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those
amounts included in the staiements of financial condition caption “Cash and Due from Banks.”

The Corporation’s banking subsidiary is required to maintain minimum average reserve balances by the
Federal Reserve Bank, which is based on a percentage of deposits. At December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s reserve
requirement was $10,800,000. This increase in the reserve balance resulted from the mergers with Kensington and
Community. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the required reserve balance had decreased to $2,000,000 and is
expected to remain at this level.

fnvestment Securities

Investment securities are classified as either held to maturity, available for sale or trading at the time of
purchase. The Corporation defines held to maturity securities as debt securities which management has the positive
intent and ability 10 hold to maturity.

Held to maturity securities are reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts that are recognized in interest income using the effective yield method.

Securities available for sale are reported at fair value and consist of bonds, notes, debentures, and certain equity
secunities not classified as trading securities nor as securities to be held to maturity. Unrealized holding gains and
losses. net of deferred taxes, on securities available for sale are excluded from earnings and reported in accumulated
other comprehensive (loss) income within stockholders” equity.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available for sale are determined using the specific-identification
method.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Tax lien certificates

Tax lien certificales represent a priority lien against real property for which assessed real estate taxes are
delinguent. Tax lien certificates are carried at cost plus accrued interest which approximates fair value. Tax lien
certificates and resulting deeds are classified as non-accrual when a tax lien certificate is 24 to 48 months
delinquent, depending on the municipality, from the acquisition date at which time, interest ceases to be accrued.

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned income and an allowance for loan
Josses. The Corporation defers certain nonrefundable loan origination and commitment fees and the direct costs of
originating or acquiring loans. The net deferred amount is amortized over the estimated lives of the related loans as
an adjustment to yield. Interest income with respect to loans is accrued on the principal amount outstanding, except
for loans classified as nonaccrual.

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loans which are more than ninety days past due unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. “Well secured” means that the debt must be secured by collateral having
sufficient realizable value to discharge the debt, including accrued interest, in full. “En the process of collection”
means that collection of the debt is proceeding in due course either through legal action or other collection effort
that is reasonably expected to result in repayment of the debt in full within a reasonable period of time, usually
within one hundred eighty days of the date the loan became past due. Any unpaid interest previously accrued on
these loans is reversed from income. Interest payments received on these loans are applied as a reduction of the loan
principal balance.

Under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 114, Accounting for
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, impaired loans are specifically reviewed loans for which it is probable that the
Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the loan agreement. Impairment is
measured by comparing the recorded investment in the loan with the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, at the loans observable market price, or the [air value of the collateral
if the toan is collateral dependent. A valuation aillowance is provided to the extent that the measure of the impaired
loans is less than the recorded investment. A loan is not considered impaired during a period of delay in payment if
the ultimate collectibility of all amounts due is expected. Larger groups of homogenous loans such as consumer
installment and residential real estate mortgage loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Payments received
on impaired loans for which the ulimate collectibility of principal is uncertain are generally applied first as
principal reductions. Impaired loans and other nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status if the loan is brought
contractually current as to both principal and interest and repayment ability is demonstrated, or if the loan is in the
process of collection and no loss is anticipated.

The allowance for loan loss is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes the collectibility of principal is unlikely.
The allowance is the amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans.

Management reviews the adequacy of the allowance on a quarterly basis. The allowance for classified loans is
established based on risk ratings assigned by loan officers. Loans are risk rated using an eight-point scale, and loan
officers are responsible for the timely reporting of changes in the risk ratings. This process, and the assigned risk
ratings, is subject to review by the Corporation’s internal loan review function. Based on the assigned risk ratings,
the loan portfolio is segregated into the regulatory classifications of: Special Mention, Substandard, Doubtful or
Loss. Generally, recommended regulatory reserve percentages are applied to these categories to estimate the
amount of loan loss unless the loan has been specifically reviewed for impairment. Reserve percentages assigned to
homogeneous and non-rated loans are based on historical charge-off experience adjusted for other risk factors.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Significant problem credits are individually reviewed by management. Generally, these loans are commercial
or real estate construction loans selected for review based on their balance, assigned risk rating, payment history,
and other risk factors at the time of management’s review. Losses are estimated on each loan based on
management’s review. These individually reviewed credits are excluded from the classified loan loss calculation
discussed above. ‘

To evaluate the overall adequacy of the allowance to absorb losses inherent in the Corporation’s loan portfolio,
the Corporation considers general economic conditions, geographic concentrations, and changes in the nature and
volume of the loan portfolio.

Acqutired Loans

The Corporatien generally acquires loans through business combinations rather than individuaily or in groups
or portfolios. An acquired loan which has experienced deterioration of credit quality between origination and the
acquisition, and for which it is probable that the corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
the loan’s contractual terms, is accounted for under the provisions of Statement of Position 03-3, Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer (“SOP 03-3"). For such loans, the Corporation estimates
the amount and timing of undiscounted expected principal, interest, and other cash flows (including expected
prepayments, if any) as of the acquisition date. The excess of the loan’s contractually required cash flows over the
Corporation expected cash flows is referred 1o as a nonaccretable difference and is not recorded by the Corporation.
The loan is initially recorded at fair value, which represents the present value of the expected cash flows. The
difference between the undiscounted expected cash flows and the fair value at which the loan is recorded is referred
to as accretable yield and is accreted into interest income over the remaining expecied life of the loan.

On a quarterly basis, the Corporation updates its estimate of cash flows expected to be collected. If the
estimated cash flows have decreased, the Corporation creates a valuation allowance equal to the present value of the
decrease in the cash flows and recognizes a loss. If the estimated cash flows have increased, the Corporation would
first reverse any existing valuation allowance for that loan, and would then account for the remainder of the increase
as an adjustment to the vield accreted on a prospective basis over the loan’s remaining life.

Morigage Loans Held for Sale

Maortgage loans held for sule are carried at the lower of cost or market, determined on a net aggregate basis. The
carrying value of these loans is adjusted for any origination fees and cost incurred to originate these loans.
Differences between the carrying amount of mortgage loans held for sale and the amounts received upen sale are
credited or charged to income at the time the proceeds of the sale are collected. The fair values are based on quoted
market prices of similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characienstics.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed over the estimated service lives of the assets using straight-line and accelerated methods, generally using
5 to 40 years for premises and 5 to 10 years for furniture and equipment.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred; expenditures for renewals and
betterments are capitalized and written off by depreciation charges. Property retired or sold is removed from the
asset and related accumulated depreciation accounts and any gain or loss resulting there from is reflected in the
statement of operations. '

The Corporation reviews any long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, goodwill totaled $114,522,000 and $10,336,000, respectively. SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142”) requires goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives to no longer be amontized but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS 142. (See Note 2 — Business Combinations)

The Corporation has determined that its reporting units for purposes of this testing are the operating branches
which are included as part of its reportable segments: the Alabama Region and the Florida Region. Goodwill is
allocated to each reporting unit based on the location of the acquisitions as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
) (In Thousands)
Alabama Region . . . ..ot i i e e $ 60,077 § 5,751
Florida Region . ... ... .. i i e 54,445 4,585
10 1 $114,522  $10,336

The first step in testing requires that the fair value of each reporting unit be determined. If the carrying amount
of any reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill impairment may be indicated.

The Corporation performs the annual impairment test as of December 31. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
the Corporation determined no impairment existed.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Corporation’s core deposit intangible, which is being amortized over ten
years, was as follows:

2006 2005
(In Thousands)
Core depositintangible .. ... ... $16,545 §$ 2,859
Accumulated amoOrHZation . . . . . . u ittt i et e e e (1,547y (1,105}
Net core deposit intangible. . ... ... 514998 $1,754

Amortization expense was $442,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 and $286,000 for each of the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Aggregate amortization expense for the years ending Decem-
ber 31, 2007 through December 31, 2011 is es_,timated 10 be as follows:

Year Annual Expense

(In Thousands)
2007 . e e e e e $1.218
2008 e e e e 2,191
2000 . i e e e e 2,248
2000 . e e e 2,002
73] & P 1,798
L7 $9.457

Other Real Estate

Other real estate, acquired through partial or total satisfaction of loans, is carried at the lower of cost or fair
value, less estimated selling expenses. in other assets. At the date of acquisition, any difference between the fair
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

value and book value of the asset is charged to the allowance for loan Josses. Subsequent gains or losses on the sale
or losses from the valuation of and the cost of maintaining and operating other real estate are included in other
expense. Other real estate totaled $1,684,000 and $1,842,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Security Repurchase Agreements

Securitics sold under agreements to repurchase are generally accounted for as collateralized financing
transaclions and are recorded at the amounts at which the securities were sold plus accrued interest. Securities,
generally U.S. government and Federal agency securities, pledged as collatera! under these financing arrangements
cannot be sold or repledged by the secured party.

Income Taxes

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis. The Corporation accounts for income
taxes using the liability method pursuant to SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply 1o taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to reverse.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Corporation has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit card arrangements and commercial letiers of
credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they
become payable.

Per Share Amounts

Eamnings per common share computations are based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the periods presented.

Diluted earnings per common share computations are based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period, plus the dilutive effect of stock options, convertible preferred stock and
restricted stock awards.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based
Payment (“SFAS 123R™), which is a revision of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and
supersedes Opinion 25. The new standard, which became eftective for the Corporation in the first quarter of 2006,
requires companics to recognize an expense in the statement of operations for the grani-date fair value of stock
options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of
valuation method. This expense is recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R carries forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-
employees. If an equity award is modified after the grant date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in
an amount equal to the excess of the fair value of the modified award over the fair value of the original award
immediately prior to the modification. The Corporation will recognize compensation expense for any stock awards
granted after December 31, 2005. Since all of the Corporation’s current stock option grants vested prior to
December 31, 2005, no future compensation expense will be recognized on these awards (see Note 11).
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Pension Plan

Liabilities and contributiens to the plan are calculated using the actuarial unit credit method of funding, (see
“Recent Accounting Pronouncements — Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158.”)

Derivative Financial Instruments uand Hedging Activities

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiries (“SFAS 1337}, requires
companies to recognize all of their derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments that qualify under SFAS 133 in a hedging relationship are designated, based
on the exposure being hedged, as either fair value or cash flow hedges. Fair value hedge relationships mitigate
exposure 1o the change in fair value of an asset, liability or firm commitment. Under the fair value hedging model,
gains or losses attributable to the change in fair value of the derivative instrument, as well as the gains and losses
attributable to the change in fair value of the hedged item, are recognized in earnings in the period in which the
change in fair value occurs.

Cash flow hedge relationships mitigate exposure to the variability of future cash flows or other forecasted
transactions. Under the cash flow hedging model, the effective portion of the gain or loss related to the derivative
instrument, if any, is recognized as a component of other comprehensive income. For derivative financial
instruments not designated as a fair value or cash flow hedges, gains and losses related to the change in fair
value are recognized in earnings during the period of change in fair value.

The Corporation formatly documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes
linking all derivative instruments that are designated as fair-value or cash-flow hedges to specific assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. The Corporation also
formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.
When it is determined that a derivative instrument is not highly effective as a hedge or that it has ceased (o be a
highly effective hedge, the Corporation discontinues hedge accounting prospectively, as discussed below.

The Corporation discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when: (1) it is determined that the derivative
instrument is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of a hedged item (including
firm commitments or forecasted transactions); (2) the derivative instrument expires or is sold, terminuted or
exercised; (3) the derivative instrument is de-designated as a hedge instrument, because it is unlikely that a
forecasted transaction will occur; {4} a hedged firm commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm
commitment; or (5) management determines that designation of the derivative instrument as a hedge instrument
is no longer appropriate.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative instrument no longer
qualifies as an effective fair-value hedge, the derivative instrument will continue to be carried on the balance sheet at
its fair value and the hedged asset or liability will no longer be adjusted for changes in fair value. When hedge
accounting is discontinued because the hedged item no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment, the
derivative instrument will continue to be carried on the batance sheet at its fair value and any asset or liability that
was recorded pursuant to recognition of the firm commitment will be removed from the balance sheet and
recognized as a gain or loss in the then-current-period earnings. When hedge accounting is discontinued because it
is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur, the derivative instrument will continue 1o be carried on the
balance sheet at its fair value, and gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income will be
recognized immediately in earnings. When the derivative instrument is de-designated, terminated or sold, any gain
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — {Continued)

or loss will remain in accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified into earnings over the same
period during which the underlying hedged item affects earnings. In all other situations in which hedge accounting
is discontinued, the derivative instrument will be carried at its fair value on the balance sheet, with changes in its fair
value recognized in the then-current-period earnings.

Recenr Accounting Pronouncements
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial instruments
(“SFAS 155”), which: (1) permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, (2) clarifies which inierest-only strips and principal-
only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133, (3} establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in
securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial
instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, (4) clarifies that concentrations of credit in
the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives, and (5) amends SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a replacement of FASB Statement No. 125,
to eliminate the prohibition of a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative financial instrument
that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. SFAS 155 will be applicable
to the Corporation for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007. The provisions of SFAS 1535 are not expected 1o
have a material impact on the Corporation. .

Srarement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 156

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets (“SFAS 1567},
which: (1) provides revised guidance on when a servicing asset and servicing liability should be recognized,
(2) requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities to be initially measured at fair value,
if practicable, (3) permits an entity to elect to measure servicing assets and servicing liabilities at fair value each
reporting date and report changes in fair value in earnings in the period in which the changes occur, (4) upon initial
adoption, permits a one-time reclassification of available-for-sale securities to trading securities for securities
which are identified as offsetting the entity’s exposure to changes in the fair value of servicing assets or liabilities
that a servicer elects to subsequently measure at fair value, and (5) requires separate presentation of servicing assets
and servicing liabilities subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of financial position and additional
footnote disclosures. SFAS 156 will be applicable to the Corporation beginning January 1, 2007 with the effects of
initial adopticn being reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings, The provisions of SFAS 156
are not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation.

FASB Interpretation No. 48

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Specifically, the pronouncement
prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides
guidance on the related derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods,
disclosure and transition of uncertain tax positions. The interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. The Corporation is in the process of evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of this
interpretation will have on its financial statements.
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Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-05

In September 2006, the FASB ratified a consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) on
Issue No. 06-05, “Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance — Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized
in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4.” Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, “Accounting for Purchases of
Life Insurance,” requires that the amount that ‘could be realized under a life insurance contract as of the date of the
statement of financial position should be reported as an asset. The EITF concluded that a policyholder should
consider any additional amounts {i.e., amounts other than cash surrender value} included in the contractual terms of
the policy in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract. When it is probable that
contractual restrictions would limit the amount that could be realized, these contractual limitations should be
considered when determining the realizable amounts. Amounts that are recoverable by the policyholder at the
discretion of the insurance company should be excluded from the amount that could be realized. Amounts that are
recoverable beyond one year from the surrender of the policy should be discounted to present value. A pelicyholder
should determine the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract assuming the surrender of an
individual-life by individual-life policy (or certificate by certificate in a group policy). Any amount that would
ultimately be realized by the policyholder upon the assumed surrender of the final policy (or final certificate in a
group policy) should be included in the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract. A policyholder
should not discount the cash surrender value component of the amount that could be realized when contractual
restrictions on the ability to surrender a policy exist. However, if the contractual limitations prescribe that the cash
surrender value component of the amount that could be realized is a fixed amount, then the amount that could be
realized should be discounted. EITF Issue No. 06-05 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006
and should be applied through either {1} a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-eftect adjustment to
retained earnings as of the beginning of the year of adoption, or (2) a change in accounting principle through
retrospective application to all prior periods. The application of EITF Issue No. 06-05 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Corporation’s financial condition or results of operations.

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108

In September 2006 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, Quantifving Financial
Misstatements, which expresses the Staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement
misstatements. Registrants are required to quantify the impact of correcting all misstatements, including both
the carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on the current year financial statements. The
techniques most commonly used in practice to accumulate and quantify misstatements are generally referred to as
the “rollover” (current year income statement perspective) and “iron curtain” (year-end balance perspective)
approaches. The financial statements would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a
misstatement that is material, after considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. Management does
not expect this guidance to have a material effect on the Corporation’s financial condition, resulis of operations or
cash flows. ' )

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R) SFAS No. 158
requires employers to fully recognize the obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit pension,
retiree healthcare and other postretirement plans in their financial statements. SFAS No. 158 requires an employer
to (a) recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s over funded status or a liability for a plan’s
under funded status, (b) measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its funded status at the end of the
employer’s fiscal year and (c) recognize changes in the funded status of a defined postretirement plan in the year in
which the changes occur. Those changes will be reported in the comprehensive income of a business entity. The
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued) '

requirement 1o recognize the funded status of a benefit plan and the disclosure requirements are effective as of the
end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006, for publicly traded companies. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. SFAS No. 158 did not have a material impact on the
Corporation’s statement of financial position at December 31, 2006 or on the Corporation’s comprehensive income
for the period ended December 31, 2006.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No, 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. Management does not expect that the adoption of this standard will have
a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-04

In July 2006, the EITF issued a draft abstract for EITF Issue No. 06-04, “Accounting for Deferred Com-
pensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dellar Life Insurance Arrangement”. This draft
abstract from the EITF reached a consensus that for an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement within
the scope of this Issue, an employer should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106,
Emplovers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The EITF concluded that a liability for the
benefit obligation under SFAS No. 106 has not been setiled through the purchase of an endorsement type life
insurance policy. In September 2006, FASB agreed to ratify the consensus reached in EITF Issue No. 06-04. This
new accounting standard will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. At December 31,
2006, the Corporation had no endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements outstanding on any of its bank-
owned life insurance.

Note 2 — Business Combinations
Kensington Acquisition

The Corporation completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Kensington Bankshares, Inc.
("Kensington™), of Tampa, Florida on August 31, 2006 in exchange for 6,226,722 shares of the Corporation’s
comumon stock valued at approximately $71,200,000. The shares were valued by using the average of the closing
prices of the Corporation’s stock for several days prior to and after the terms of the acquisition were agreed to and
announced. The total purchase price, which includes certain direct acquisition costs, was $71,372,000. As aresult of
the acquisition the Corporation now operates 12 banking locations in the Tampa Bay area of Florida. This area will
be the Corporation’s largest market and has a higher projected population growth than any of its current banking
markets.

. The Kensington transaction resulted in $44,922,000 of goodwill allocated to the Florida reporting unit and
$3,544,000 of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow,

During the third quarter of 2006 management completed its plan to terminate Kensinglon’s data processing
operations and convert Kensington’s accounts to the Corporation’s system. This conversion was completed in the
first quarter of 2007. Certain cost associated with this conversion, totaling approximately $1.4 million, which
includes primarily contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the
acquisition date.
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Note 2 — Business Combinations — (Continued)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.

Amount
{In thousands)
Cashand due from banks. ... ... . . .. . . . i i e e e 5 4454
Federal funds sold . . . ... ... . . e 964
Investment SECUNHIES . . . . .. it e e e e e 180,151
Loans, Met . . ... e e e - 136,414
Premises and equipment, net . .. .. ... e 5,397
Goodwill . .. e e 44 922
Core deposit intangibles. . .. ... ... L 3,54
OHREr A880T8 . . . o ot et e e e e e 5,042
D POSIIS .« o Lt (276,186)
Repurchase agreements . ... ... .. . e (30,050
Other labilities . .. ... i e e e e (3,280)
Total consideration paid for Kensington . ....... ... .. ... . ... ... ... .. .. $ 71,372

Community Acquisition

The Corporation completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Community Bancshares, Inc.
(“Community”) of Blountsville, Alabama on November 7, 2006 in exchange for 8,072,179 shares of the
Corporation’s common stock valued at approximately $91,848,000. The shares were valued by using the average
of the closing prices of the Corporation’s stock for several days prior to and after the terms of the acquisition were
agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which includes certain direct acquisition costs and cash
payments due for the cancellation of stock options totaled $97,200,000. As a result of the acquisition the
Corporation added 18 banking locations and 15 consumer finance company locations in the State of Alabama.

The Community transaction resulted in $59,079,000 of goodwill allocated to the Alabama reporting unit and
$10,142.000 of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarlér of 2006 management completed its plan to terminate Community’s data processing
operations and convert Community’s accounts to the Corporation’s system. This conversion was completed in the
fourth quarter of 2006. Certain cost associated with this conversion, totaling approximately $1.2 million, which
includes primarily contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the
acquisition date. In addition, certain employment-related contract obligations totaling approximately $3,500,000
were also accrued as of the acquisition date.
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Note 2 — Business Combinations — (Continued)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition. The Corporation is in the process of obtaining appraisals of certain real property; thus, the
allocation of the purchase price is subject to refinement:

Amount
(In thousands)
Cash and due from banks, . . . ... it i e $ 23,167
Federal funds sold . . ... ... i e e e e 35,273
INVESIMENt SECUMLIES . . o 0 v v et e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e s 117,424
Loans, net............coiviinninnn.. et e e e e 337,148
Premises and equipment, Net ... ... ... ... ... L. e 24,225
| Goodwill . . ... e e 59,079
' Core deposit intangibles. . ... .. .. e e 10,142
| 1T 1= T 19,328
| D R (431,334)
FHLB advances . . . ... . ottt it et sttt ettt ettt et e (68,801)
Junior subordinated debeniures. . . ... ... i e e {12,047)
Other Habilities . ... ot e e e e e e {16,404)
Total consideration paid for Community .. ........ ... ... ... ... . ... .. ..., $ 97,200

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The results of operations of the Kensington and Community subsequent to the acquisition date are included in
the Corporation’s consolidated statements of operations. The following pro forma information for the periods ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 reflects the Corporation’s estimated consolidated results of operations as if the
acquisition of Kensington and Community occurred at January 1 of the respective period, unadjusted for potential
cost savings.

2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

Net interest income and noninterest income . . ... .........cvuuvnenn.. $84,483  $88,109
NEUINCOIMIE . © . .ttt et et e et e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 5,913 163
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders ... ................. 5913 (2,148)
Eamnings per common share —basic .. ...... .. ... ... .. o oo, 3 017 § (0.06)
Earnings per common share —diluted. . .. ....... ... ... ... L. $ 017 $ (0.06)
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3. Investment Securities

The amounts at which investment securities are carried and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2006
are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

{In Thousands)
Investment securities available for sale:

U.S. agency securities .. ..., $113,259 $150 $1.557 $111,852
State, county and municipal securities ... ... .. 12,977 54 89 12,942
Mortgage-backed securities ... ............. 185,814 361 1,722 184,453
Corporate debt. . . ......... ... ... ..... 38,883 103 334 38,652
Other securities . . ... ... ... . .......... 6,675 223 81 6,817

Total ... .. $357,608 $891 $3,783 $354,716

The amounts at which investment securities are carried and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2005
are as follows;

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands)
Investment securities available for sale:

U.S. agency securities .. .................. $ 99,365 $ — $1,892 $ 97473
State, county and municipal securities . ....... 8,729 28 111 8,646
Mortgage-backed securities . .. ............. 93,689 10 1,937 91,762
Corporate debt. . . ........... ... ... ..... 38,064 75 411 37,728
Othersecurities . . . ... iien .. 6,739 — 42 6,697

Total . ... ... ... .. . $246,586 $il3 $4,393 $242,306

Investment securities with an amortized cost of $219,658,000 and $144,565,000 at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively, were pledged to secure United States government deposits and other public funds and for other
purposes as required or permitted by law.

The following table presents the age of gross unrealized losses and fair value by investment category.

December 31, 2006

Less Than 12 Months More than 12 Months ‘Fotal
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Laosses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(In Thousands)

U.S. agency securities ... ... 3 — 3 — $ 83,347  $1,557  § 83,347  $1,557
State, county and municipal

securities .. ............ 1,727 17 3,825 72 5,552 89
Mortgage-backed securities .. 16,223 76 78,000 1,646 94,223 1,722
Corporate debt and other

securities .. ... ......... 3,920 80 8,572 335 12,492 415

Total ................. $21,870 $173 $173,744  $3,610  $195614  $3,783

Management does not believe any of the above individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2006 represents
an other-than-temporary impairment. The unrealized losses relate primarily to securities issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank (“FHLB"), Fannie Mae (“FNMA") and Freddie Mac (“FHLMC"), and seven corporate securities
consisli'ng primarily of private label CMOs, corporate bonds, and trust preferred securities. These unrealized losses
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3. Investment Securities — (Continued)

are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates. The Corporation has both the intent and the ability to hold the
securities contained in the previous table for a time necessary to recover the amortized cost.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities at December 31, 2006, by contractual
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Securities Available For

Sale

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value

(In Thousands)
Dueinone yearor less ... . ... ... .. L $ 3,357 % 3,358
Due after one year through five years. . ........... ... ... .. ....... 59,407 58,009
Due after five years through tenyears . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... .... 52,529 52,202
- Due after ten years ... ... e 56,501 56,694
' Mortgage-backed securities . ... .. ... L L 185,814 184,453

$357,608  $354,716

Gross realized gains on sales of investment securities available for sale in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were -0-,
$34,000 and $598,000, respectively, and gross realized losses for the same periods were -0-, $982,000 and
$672,000, respectively.

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004 are as follows:

Pre-Tax Income Tax Net of
Amount Expense Income Tax

(In Thousands}

2006
Unrealized loss on derivatives. . ... ... v, $§ 3% §$ 6 $ 23
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities ............. 1,387 556 831
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net
IMCOMIE . . o v ot e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e — — . —
Change in pension hability . . ......... ... ... . ... ... 451 167 284
Netunrealized gain .. ... ..................... $ 1,799 § 707 $ 1,092
2005
Unrealized gain on derivative . .. ....... ..., $ 39 $ 16 $ 23
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities ., ........... {3,405) (1,335) (2,070)
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net
INCOMIE . .« . st et e e e e e e (948) (351) (597)
Netunrealized }0ss .. .. ... $(2.418) § (968) $(1,450)
2004 A
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities ............. $(1,597) $ 636) $ (@6l
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net
IMCOME . . . oo e et (74) (27) (47)
Netunrealized loss . ......... ... ... $(1,523) § (609 $ (914)
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4. Loans

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the composition of the loan portfolic was as follows:

2006 2005
{In Thousands)

Commercial and industrial . ... ... .. .ttt e e $ 172,872 §$135454

Real estate — construction and land development .. ................. 541,772 326,418
Real estate — mortgages

Single family . .. ... .. 456,341 243,183

Commercial . .. .. . e e e 362,542 210,611

L ] 1 ¢T= GO 46,895 27,503

Consumer. .. ...... e 54,462 21,122

All Other Joans . . . . ot i e e e e e 438 498

Total loans. . . .o v e e e e e e e $1.641,322 $964,789

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Corporation’s recorded investment in loans considered to be impaired
under SFAS Na. 114 was $6,886,000 and $3.483,000, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, there was
approximately $1,807,000 and $1,425,000, respectively in the allowance for loan losses specifically allocated to
impaired loans. The average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately
$3,975,000, $4,687,000, and $17,752,000, respectively. Interest income recognized on foans censidered impaired
totaled approximately $176,000, $65,000, and $66,000 for the years ended Decembcr_ 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

At December 31, 2006, nonaccrual loans totaled $7,773,000, compared to $4,550,000 at December 31, 2005.
Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing totaled $514,000 at December 31, 2006 compared to $49,000 at
December 31, 2005.

During 2006, the Corporation acquired certain impaired loans through business combinations (Note 2) which
are subject to the income recognition provisions of SOP 03-3 (see Note }). The carrying value of these loans and a
summary of the change in accretable yield follows:

At December 31,
Acquisition 2006

(In Thousands) )
Contractually required principal and interest. . .. ................. $ 1,696 $ 1,590
Nonaccretable difference (expected losses and forgone interest) ... ... (1,231) (1,156)
Cash flows expected tobe collected . . . . .. ..................... 465 434
Accretable yield .. ... ... ... ... . (190) {174)
Basis inacquired loans . . ... ... . i $ 275 § 260
Accretable yield, at acquisition .. ......... ... . i $ 190
ACCIHION . o vttt e et et e e e e 9
Disposals ... ... e (7
Accretable yield, December 31,2006. . ...... . ... .. ... . $ 174

Other acquired impaired loans that are within the scope of SOP 03-3 but are not subject to the income
recognition provisions had an acquisition carrying value of $1,343,000 and an $3800,000 carrying value at
December 31, 2006. To recognize income on these loans under SOP 03-3, there must be a reasonable expectation
of the timing and amount of expected cash flows. These loans are accounted for on the cost recovery method with
interest income recognized when received. During 2006, no interest was recognized on the loans,

In September 2004 the Corporation’s banking subsidiary sold approximately $32,000,000, before allowance
for loan losses, in certain nonperforming loans and other classified, performing loans, resulting in a pre-tax loss of
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4. Loans — (Continued)

$2,293,000. Prior to the sale, approximately $6,868,000 related to thesc loans was recognized as a charge-off in
September 2004 against the allowance for loan losses. The $6,868,000 in allowance for loan losses associated with
these loans had been provided in previous periods.

5. Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 follows:

2006 2005 2004
(In Thousands)

Balance at beginning of year. . .. ..... .. ... ... .. .. ... ... .. $12,011 $12:543  $ 25,174
Allowance of acquired banks. . . ......... e e 6,697 — —
Provision for loan losses . . .. ... ... i 2,500 3,500 975
Loan charge-offs. . ... ... .. (3,746) (5,742) (17,341
ReCOVEIies . . .o e e 1,430 1,710 3,735

Balance atend of year ......... oot in i $18,892  $12,011 §$ 12,543

6. Premises and Equipment

Components of premises and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2006 2005
(In Thousands}
Land . .. e e $ 17432 % 7202
Premises . ... e 74,836 53,003
Furniture and equipment ... ....... ... . .. ... e 17,737 12,818
110,005 73,023
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . ... ................. {20,311y (17,235
Net book value of premises and equipment in service . .. ... ............ 89,694 55,788
Construction in process (also includes land for branch expansion) . ... ... .. 4,932 229

............................................... $ 94626 §$ 56,017

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $3,245,000, $3,275,000 and
$3,374,000, respectively.

In March 2005, the Corporation sold its corporate aircrafl, realizing a $355,000 pre-tax loss,

During 2000, Community entered into salefleaseback arrangements on its Hamilton, Alabama bank location.
Due 1o the structure of this transaction, the lease quatified and has been accounted for under capitalized lease rules.

The following is an analysis of the leased property located in Hamilton, Alabama on which the Company
maintains a capital lease (in thousands);

_ 2006
BUlldings . . . o e e e $2,450
Accumulated deprecialion . ... ... . ... e 21)

$2,429
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6. Premises and Equipment — (Continued)

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease and all other
operating leases, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2006 (in
thousands):

Total
Years ending December 31, Operating Capitalized
(In Thousands)

200 . e e e e $1,971 $ 367
200 . . e e e e 1,236 367
2000 . e e e 1,019 367
2000 . e e e e e e e 751 367
. 3 1 O 601 367
2012 and thereafter . .. . ... .. .. e e 779 6,755
Total minimum lease Payments . . ... vv e e et nr e aens $6,357 $ 8,590

Amount representing interest . .. .. ... ... i e (4,792)

Present value of net minimum lease payments ..................... $ 3,798

Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases are summarized as follows:

Year ending December 31, Property Equipment Total
(In Thousands)

2007 e 51,716 $255 $1,971
2008 . e e 1,097 . 139 1,236
2000 L e e e 946 13 1,019
2000 L e 741 10 751
20011 L e e . 601 — 601
2012 and thereafter. . .. .. .. .. ... . ... e 779 — 779

Total minimum lease payments . ................... $5,880 $477 $6,357

Rental expense relating to operating leases amounted to approximately $1,258,000, $810,000 and $947,000
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On May 31, 2002, the purchaser of Community’s Marshall County branch offices acquired the land, building
and land improvements located in Albertville, Alabama under a sales-type lease. The lease agreement calls for
60 payments of $14,000 per month beginning June 1, 2002. The lease ends on May 31, 2007 and is subject to options
which give the right for the seller to require the purchaser to purchase the property and gives the right to the
purchaser to require the seller to sell the property. The purchase price upon option by either party is $2,621,544. This
lease/sale qualifies and is accounted for under capitalized lease rules.

The following is a schedule by year of the future minimum lease payments to be received together with the
present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

2 $2,692
AMOUNt representing MBSt . . . . .. oot e (144)
Present value of net minimum lease payments .. .......... ... . e $2,548
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The tollowing schedule details interest expense on deposits:

Year Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
(In Thousands)
Interest-bearing demand. .. . .................... ... ..., $11.857 $ 7,144 $ 37225
SavIngS . . L e 177 40 48
Time deposits $100,000and over . .. ... ... .. . ... L. 11,170 1,111 8,876
Other time deposits . . .. .. .t e 23,307 13,620 7,039
Total. . ... e $46,511  $27915 $19,188

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows (in thousands):

2007 e e e e e $ 954,157
2008 . ., 43,741
2000 . . e e e 27,309
2010 L 16,992
1. 3 1 11,615
2012 and thereafter . . . ... e e 30,100

51,083,914

7. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

The following is a summary, by year of maturity, of advances from the FHLB as of December 31, 2006 and
2005:

2006 2005

Weighted Weighted
Year Average Rate Balance Average Rate Balance

(Dollars in Thousands)

2006 .« —% $ @ — 440%  $ 85250
2007 - 5.37 42,000 — —
2008 . 5.38 55,500 5.74 5,500
2009 ... 5.39 27,000 232 27,000
2000 L 6.41 5,000 6.41 5,000
2015 oo 5.39 26,340 4.45 26,340
2020 - 428 32,000 4.28 32,000

Total. e e 522%  $187,840 4.17%  $181,090

The above schedule is by contractual maturity. Call dates for the above are as follows: 2007, $17,000,000,
2008, $32,000,000, and 2010, $11,340,000.

The advances are secured by a blanket lien on certain residential and commercial real estate loans all with a
carrying value of approximately $302,980,000 at December 31, 2006. The Corporation has available approximately
$95,000,000 in unused advances under the blanket lien subject 1o the availability of qualifying collateral.

The FHLB has issued for the benefit of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary a $20,000,000 irrevocable letter
of credit in favor of the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida to secure certain deposits of the State of
Florida. The letter of credit expires January 4, 2008 upon sixty days’ prior notice of non-renewal; otherwise, it shall
automatically extend for a successive one-year term.
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8. Federal Funds Borrowed and Security Repurchase Agreements

Detail of Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements follows {(in thousands):

~ Balance at December 31:

Federal funds borrowed . .. ... ... .. e
Security repurchase agreements . . . ..., ... . ... oo

Maximum outstanding at any month end:

Federal funds borrowed . .. ... ... ... . i
Security repurchase agreements . . . ... ... .. it

Daily average amount outstanding:

Federal funds borrowed . . . ... ... ... . . .. ...
Security repurchase agreements . ... ...... ... ... el

Weighted daily average interest rate:

Federal funds borrowed . . ........ ... . ... ..
Security repurchase agreements . .. ... ...... .. ... o,

Weighted daily interest rate for amounts outstanding at December 31:

Federal funds borrowed . .. ....... ... ... .. .. .. i
Security repurchase agreements . . .. ... ... ... i e

2006 2005
... 8 — $ 3000
23,415 30,406
9,000 11,000
31,464 49,521
1,811 488
30,629 35,064
5.47% 4.18%
4.51 302
—% 4.40%
4.63 4.12

The carrying value of securities sold under repurchase agreements is $30,327,000 and $37,047,000 ‘as of

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

9. Notes Payable

The following is a summary of notes payable as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

2006 2005

Balance at December 31: : Principal Rate  Principal Rate
Note payable to bank, borrowed under $10,000,000 line of

credit, due June 7, 2007, plus interest payable monthly at

30 day LIBOR plus 2.50%, secured by real estate owned by

the Corporation and 100% of Superior Bank stock ........ $4,250 7.85% $2,250 6.89%
ESOP Note Payable to bank, due February 1, 2013, plus

interest payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal prime

rate, secured by Corporation stock; see discussion in

NOte 11 . e e e e 1,295  8.25 1,505  7.25
Total notes payable . ........ ... ... i $5,545 $3,755

On January 26, 2007, the Corporation replaced the $10,000,000 line of credit with a new line of credit from
another regional bank. The new line matures January 26, 2008; interest is based on the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.25%

and the line is secured by 51% of the outstanding Superior Bank stock.
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Maturities of notes payable for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

N $4,460
2008 . e e 210
2000 . e e 210
2010 ...... e e 210
72 210
Thereafter . .. ... ... e 245

TOMEL . . .o e $5,545

10. Junior Subordinated Debentures Owed to Unconsolidated Subsidiary Trusts

The Corporation has three sponsored trusts, TBC Capital Statutory Trust IT (“TBC Capital II"') TBC Capital
Statutory Trust I1I (“TBC Capital III") and Community (AL} Capital Trust I (“Community Capital I}, of which
100% of the common equity is owned by the Corporation. The trusts were formed for the purpose of issuing
Corporation-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities to third-party investors and investing the
proceeds from the sale of such trust preferred securities solely in junior subordinated debt securities of the
Corporation (the debentures). The debentures held by each trust are the sole assets of that trust. Distributions on the
trust preferred securities issued by each trust are payabie semi-annually at a rate per annum equal to the interest rate
being earned by the trust on the debentures held by that trust. The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory
redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the debentures. The Corporation has entered into agreements
which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guarantee the trust preferred securities subject to the terms of
each of the guarantees. The debentures held by the TBC Capital IT, TBC Capital III and Community Capital I trusts
are first redeemable, in whole or in part, by the Corporanon on September 7, 2010, July 25, 2006 and March §, 2010,
respectively.

The trust preferred securities held by the trusts qualify as Tier 1 capital for the Corporation under regulatory
guidelines.

Consolidated debt obligations related to these subsidiary trusts are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

10.6% junior subordinated debentures owed to TBC Capntal Statutory

Trust IT due September 7,2030. . .......... ..« .o vt $15,464,000  $15,464,000
6-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior subordinated debentures owed to

TBC Capital Statutory Trust Il due July 25,2031.............. 16,495,000 16,495,000
10.875% junior subordinated debentures owed to Community Capital

Trust Idue March 8, 2030 . ... ... ... i it 10,310,000 —_
Purchase accounting adjustment — Community Capital Trust1 ... ... 1,737,000 — .
Total junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolidated .

subsidiary trusts . . ... ... ... e $44,006,000  $31,959,000

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the interest rate on the $16,495,000 subordinated debenture was 9.30%
and 7.67%, respectively. .

Prior to the conversion of its subsidiary’s charter to a federal savings bank charter, the Corporation was
required to obtain regulatory approval prior to paying any dividends on these trust preferred securities. The Federal
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Reserve approved the timely payment of the Corporation’s semi-annual distribution on its trust preferred securities
in January, March, July and September 2005,

11. Stock Incentive Plans.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R"), which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and supersedes Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“AFPB Opinion 25”). The new
standard, which became effective for the Corporation in the first quarter of 20006, requires companies to recognize
an expense in the statement of operations for the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based
compensation issued to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of valuation method. This expense will be
recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award.
SFAS 123R carries forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees. If an equity award is
modified after the grant date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess of
the fair value of the modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately prior to the modification.
The Corporation will recognize compensation expense for any stock awards granted after December 31, 2005.
Since all of the Corporation’s stock option awards granted prior to December 31, 2005 have vested in full, no future
compensation expense will be recognized on these awards. During the first quarter of 2005, the Corporation granted
1,690,937 options to the new management team. These options have exercise prices ranging from $8.17 to $9.63 per
share and were granted outside of the stock incentive plan as part of the inducement package for new management.
These shares are included in the tables below.

The Corporation adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified-prospective transition method.
Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes $158,000 in compensation cost for atl
share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

The Corporation has established a stock incentive plan for directors and certain key employees that provides
for the granting of restricted stock and incentive and nonqualified options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of the
Corporation’s common stock. The compensation committee of the Board of Directors determines the terms of the
restricted stock and options granted. All options granted have a maximum term of ten years from the grant date, and
the option price per share of options granted cannot be less than the fair market value of the Corporation’s common
stock on the grant date. Some of the options granted under the plan in the past vested over a five-year period, while
others vested based on certain benchmarks relating to the trading price of the Corporation’s commen stock, with an
outside vesting date of five years from the date of grant. More recent grants have followed this benchmark-vesting
formula. ’

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant based upon the Black-Scholes pricing
model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield
on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term. Expected volatility has been
estimated based on historical data. The expected term has been estimated based on the five-year vesting date and
change of control provisions. The Corporation used the following weighted-average assumptions for the year ended
December 31, 2006:

Risk-free IMerest At . . . . . . . i i ittt ittt e e e 4.54%
Volatility factor .. ... L . 30.16%
Expected term (in YEars) ... vu it i i e e e e e 5.00

Dividend yield. . . . ... o e e 0.00%
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A summary of stock option activity as of December 31, 2006 and changes during the year then ended is set

forth below:
Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
| Exercise Contractual Aggregate
' Number Price Term Intrinsic Value
Under option, beginning of period......... 3,031,946 $ 7.81
Granted. . ...........0 i, 186,500 10.84
Exercised ......................... (155,818) 6.37
Forfeited.......................... (20,031) 7.06
Under option, end of period ............. 3,042,597 § 807 7.39 $9,940,257
Exercisable at end of period ............. 2,861,097  $ 7.90 6.82 $9,847,002

Weighted-average fair value per option of
options granted during the period. . ... ... $ 3.79

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $814,000. As of
December 31, 2006, there was $522,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to the unvested
awards. This expense will be recognized over approximately the next 20 months unless the shares vest earlier based
on achievement of benchmark trading price levels. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Corporation
recognized approximately $158,000 in compensation expense related to options granted.

A summary of activity for the periods ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Number Price Number Price
Under option, beginning of year............. 1,654,509 $6.63 1,196,509 $6.76
"Granted . . .. ... .. e 1,914,437 8.53 506,000 6.28
Exercised ... ... i (474,684) 6.59 (13,600} 6.44
Forfeited .. ........... .. ... .. ... ... (62,316) 7.73 (34,400) 6.83
Under option, endof year ................. + 3,031,946 7.81 1,654,509 6.63
Exercisable atend of year . ... ............. 3,031,946 1,378,809
Weighted-average fair value per option of
options granted during the year ........... $ 491 3 3.16

The Corporation’s Board of Directors approved the full vesting as of November 15, 2005 of all unvested stock
options outstanding at that date. The effect of this accelerated vesting is reflected in the pro forma net loss and pro
forma loss per share figures below. During the fourth quarter of 2003 the pro forma after-tax effect of compensation
costs for stock-based employee compensation awards totaled $2,067,000, or $0.10 per share, In conjunction with
the Board's approvai of the full vesting, members of the Corporation’s senior management executive team
announced that they would not accept any performance bonus for which they might have been eligible at year-
end 2005. The number of shares represented by unvested options that were vested effective November 15, 2005 is
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approximately 800,000, of which approximately 665,000 were held by directors and executive officers of the
Corporation.

Prior to January 1, 2006 the Corporation applied the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, which allows an
entity 1o continue to measure compensation costs for those plans using the intrinsic value-based method of
accounting prescribed by APB Opinion 25. The Corporation elected to follow APB Opinion 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Accordingly, compensation cost for fixed and variable
stock-based awards is measured by the excess, if any, of the fair market price of the underlying stock over the
amount the individual is required to pay. Compensation cost for fixed awards is measured at the grant date, while
compensation cost for variable awards is estimated until both the number of shares an individual is entitled to
receive and the exercise or purchase price are known (measurement date). No option-based employce compensation
cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. The pro forma information below was determined as if the
Corperation had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of SFAS 123. For purposes of
pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the options’ vesting
period. The Corporation’s pro forma information for the period prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R follows (in
thousands, except earnings per share information):

December 31,

2005 2004

Net (loss) income applicable to common stockholders:

ASTEPOTTEd . . . ot e e e $ (8,097y % 741

Pro oI . . . . e e (14,217)  (567)
Basic net {loss) income per common share:

ASTEPOTTEd . . . ot $ (42) $ .04

Pro fOrmMIa . . oo e e e e e e e {(.74) .03)
Diluted net (loss) income per common share:

Asreported . . . .. . e (.42) .04

Pro oI . . . ot e e e e (.714) (.03)

The fair value of the options granted was based upon the Black-Scholes pricing model. The Corporation used
the following weighted-average assumptions for the years indicated:

2005 2004
Risk free interest rate. . . .. .. ... .. i e 4.34% 4.56%
Volatility factory . .. .. . e 3% 32%
Weighted average life of options (inyears). . . ... ... . .. it 7.00 7.00
Dividend vield. .. ... ... . . e 0.00% 0.00%

On April 1, 2002, the Corporation issued 157,500 shares of restricted common stock to certain directors and
key employees pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. Under the restricted stock
agreements, the stock may not be sold or assigned in any manner for a five-year period that began on April 1, 2002.
During this restricted period, the participant is eligible to receive dividends and exercise voting privileges. The
restricted stock also has a corresponding vesting period with one-third vesting in the third, fourth and fifth years.
The restricted stock was issued at $7.00 per share, or $1,120,000, and classified as a comra-equity' account,
“Unearned restricted stock”, in stockholders’ equity. During 2003, 15,000 shares of this restricted stock were
forfeited. During the second quarter of 2005, an additional 29,171 shares of this restricted stock were forfeited. On
January 24, 2005 the Corporation issued 49,375 additional shares of restricted common stock to certain key
employees. Under the terms of the management separation agreements entered into during 2005 (Note 28), vesting
was accelerated on 124,375 shares of restricted stock. As of December 31, 2006, 6,665 shares of unvested restricted
stock 1o continuing directors remained outstanding. The outstanding shares of restricted stock are included in the

73




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11. Stock Incentive Plans — (Continqed)

diluted earnings per share calculation, using the treasury stock method, until the shares vest. Once vesied, the shares
become outstanding for basic earnings per share. For the years ended December 31, 20035 and 2004, the Corporation
has recognized $648,000 and $199.000, respectively, in restricted stock expense. The 2005 year expense is
primarily related to the accelerated vesting from the management separation agreements included in the amount of
management separation cost.

Employee Stock Ownership Plans -

The Corporation adopted a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (the “ESOP”) effective May 15, 2002
that covers all eligible employees who are at least 21 years old and have completed a year of service. As of
December 31, 2006, the ESOP has been leveraged with 273,400 shares of the Corporation’s common stock
purchased in the open market and classified as a contra-equity account, “Unearned ESOP shares,” in stockholders’
cquity.

On January 29, 2003, the ESOP trustees finalized a $2, 100,000 promissory note to reimburse the Corporation
for the funds used to leverage the ESOP. The unreleased shares and a guarantee of the Corporation secure the
promissory note, which has been classified as notes payable on the Corporation’s statement of financial condition.
As the debt is repaid, shares are released from collateral based on the proportion of debt service. Principal payments
on the debt are $17,500 per month for 120 months. The interest rate is adjusted to the Wall Street Journal prime rate,
Interest expense incurred on the debt in 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $122,000, $98,000 and $74,000, respectively.
Total contributions to the plan during 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $322,000, $313,000, and $300,000, respectively.
Released shares are allocated to eligible employees at the end of the plan year based on the employee’s eligible
compensation to total compensation. The Corporation recognizes compensation expense during the period as the
shares are eamed and commitied to be released. As shares are committed to be released and compensation expense
is recognized, the shares become outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share computations. The amount of
compensation expense reported by the Corporation is equal to the average fair value of the shares earned and
committed to be released during the peried. Compensation expense that the Corporation recognized during the
period ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $304,000, $289,000 and $189,000, respectively, The ESOP
shares as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as follows: '

- December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Allocated shares. . . . ... ... .. .. . e 82,028 55,328 28,628
Estimated shares committed to be released ... ... ...... 26,700 26,700 26,700
Unreleased shares . .................. e 164,672 191,372 218,072
Total ESOQP shares. . .................... - 273,400 273,400 273,400

Fair value of unreleased shares .. ..., I $3,100,000  $2,184,000  $1,795,000

As a result of its merger with Community, the Corporation became a sponsor of an internally leveraged ESOP
maintained by Community. This ESOP has an outstanding loan to the Corporation that bears interest at a floating
rate equal to the prime rate of interest. As of December 31, 2006, the interest rate on the note was 8.25%. Principal
and interest payments on the ESOP loan are due monthly through September 16, 2011, based on the current
amortization schedule, with the remaining principal and interest, if any, due upon that date. The ESQOP loan may be
prepaid in whole or in part without penalty under the loan agreement, subject to applicable ERISA and tax
restrictions. The Corporation makes contributions to the ESOP that enables the ESOP to make payments due under
the ESOP loan. Under Statement of Position No. 93-6 (“SOP 93-6), “Employer’s Accounting for Employee Stock
Ownership Plans,” employers that sponsor an ESOP with an employer loan should not report the ESOP’s note

-payable or the employer’s note receivable in the employer’s statement of condition, nor should interest cost or
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interest income be recognized on the employer loan. The Corporation has followed SOP 93-6 accordingly. The
principal balance of the Company’s loan to the ESOP at December 31, 2006 was $1.1 million.

An employee becomes a participant in the ESOP after completing 12 months of service during which the
employee is credited with 1,000 hours or more of service. Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the
board but may not be less than the amount required to service the ESOP debt. Under the terms of the ESOP, after a
person ceases to be an employee of the Corporation, that person is no longer eligible to participate in the ESOP. In
that case, the person may demand to receive all stock credited to his benefit under the ESOP as of the end of the year
immediately preceding that person’s termination of employment with the Corporation.

Dividends paid on released ESOP shares are credited to the accounts of the participants to whom the shares are
allocated. Dividends on unreleased shares may be used to repay the debt associated with the ESOP or treated as
other income of the ESOP and allocated to the participanis. Compensation cost recognized during the period ended
December 31, 2006 was $39,000. The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

December 31,

2006
Allocated Shares . . . .. ... e e e e 380,011
Estimated shares commitied tobereleased .. ...... ... ... . 14,066
Unreleased Shares . . oo i it e e e e e e 66,659
Total ESOP shares . ... ... i e e e e e e e e e e 460,736
Fair value of unreleased shares . . .. ... ... 0 i e $5.224,746

12, Profit-Sharing Plan and Qther Agreements

The Corporation sponsors a profit-sharing plan that permits participants to make contributions by salary
reduction pursuant to Sectjon 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. This plan covers substantially all employees
who meet certain age and length of service requirements. The Corporation matches contributions at its discretion.
The Corporation’s contributions to the plan were $549,000, $448,000 and $298,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

The Corporation has various nonqualified retirement agreements with certain current and former directors and
former exccutive officers, Generally, the agreements provide a fixed retirement benefit that will be paid in
instaliments ranging from 10 to 20 years. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, substantially all of the benefits due
under these plans were vested (Note 28). The Corporations nonqualified retirement agreements had an aggregate
unfunded projected benefit of approximately $14,201,000 as of December 31, 2006 and $14,880,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2005. The accrued liability associated with these benefits totaled $6,358,000 and $6,560,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which represents the present value of the future benefits. Compensation
expense related to these plans totaled $216,000, $1,178,000 and $687.,000 for 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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13. Income Taxes

The components of the consolidated income tax expense (benefit) are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal . . . ... e § —  $01,439) $(2,350)
State. . . e e - (5) {80)
Total current expense (benefity .. .............. ... .......... — (1,444)  (2,430)
Deferred:
Federal . ... o e 1,555 (2,096) 1,381
SatE . . o 368 (1,072) . 253
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ................ 1,923 (3,168) 1,634
Total income tax expense (benefit) .. ................. $1,923  $(4,612) $ (796)

Significant components of the Corporation’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2605
Deferred income tax assets:
Rehabilitation tax credit .. .. ... ... $ 6144 3 6324
Allowance forloan losses . .. ....... ... ... ... . .. ... 6,978 4,444
Deferred compensation ... ... ... .. i e 4,076 2,858
Net operating loss carryforwards . . ...... ... . ... ... ... ... 13,147 972
Alternative minimum tax credit carryover. . . ... ... .., e 1,034 646
Purchase accounting basis differences . ........ ... ... ... .. ... 2,936 L=
Unrealized 1088 01 SECUMLIES . . . . ..ottt i e it e et e e ea 1,157 1,696
L0 11 11 2,085 1,71]
Total deferred income tax assets .. ........ ... ... oL 37,557 18,651
Less: valuation allowance on net operating loss carryforwards .. .. ... .. ... o (1,207) —
Deferred income 1ax liabilities:
Difference in book and tax basis of premises and equipment. .. .......... 5,060 3,046
Excess purchase price and intangibles . ... . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .. 5,784 —
Other .. e 107 766
Total deferred income tax liabilities ........... ... ... ....... 10,951 3,812

Net deferred income tax assel. .. .. ...\t $25,399  $14.839

Management assesses the need for a valuation allowance against the Corporation’s deferred tax assets in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The Corporation’s determination of the realization
of deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowances) is based upon management’s judgment of various future events
and uncertainties, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, the timing and amount of
future income earned by the Corporation’s subsidiaries and the implementation of various tax planning strategies to
maximize realization of the deferred tax assets. A portion of the amount of the deferred tax asset that can be realized
in any year is subject to certain statutory federal income tax limitations. The Corporation believes that its
subsidiaries will be able to generate sufficient operating eamings to realize the deferred tax benefits. The
Corporation evaluates quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and, if necessary, adjusts any valuation
allowance accordingly.

In 2006, due to limitations on the wse of net operating losses acquired in the merger with Community, a
valuation allowance of $1,207,000 has been established as of December 31, 2006 against such deferred income tax
assets in purchase accounting. Any subsequently recognized income tax benefits relating to this valuation
allowance will be reflected as a reduction of goodwill related to the acquisition.
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The effective tax rate differs from the expected tax using the statutory rate. Reconciliation between the
expected tax and the actual income tax expense (benefit) follows (in thousands}):

2006 2005 2004

Expected tax expense {benefit) at statutory rate of income (loss) before
72 (2 $2,353  $(3,535) $133
Add (deduct):

Rehabilitation tax credit. . .. ... .. ... . . i e — — (725)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit . . ... .. ... . .... 243 (711} il4
Effect of interest income exempt from Federal income taxes....... (251) (191) (178)
Basis reduction . ... ... .. ... . ... e — — 247
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance ... ............ (537 (493)  (559)
AMOMZALION . . . .. ottt ettt e e e e e e 97 97 97
Travel and entertainment . . ... ...ttt 34 28 85
Other IeMS — DL . . o v et et e e e e e et e et et (16) 193 {10
Income tax expense (benefit) . . .. ... ... ... .. L $1,923 $(4,612) 35(796)
Federal statutory rate. . . ............... e e e e 34% 34% 34%

The Corporation’s unused net operating loss carryforwards and expiration dates are as follows (in thousands):

Year of expiration: Federal Alabama Florida
2000 . .. e e $ —  $16,387 § —
2010, . e e — 12,806 —
1 — 6,521 —
2023 e 6,690 — —
2024 e e 13,040 — 2,538
2026 . . e e e 5,955 — —
202 e e e 6,175 —_ —

$31,860 $35,714  $2,538

The Corporation has available a1 December 31, 2006 unused rehabilitation tax credits that can be carried
forward and utilized against future Federal income tax liability. Unused credits and expiration dates are as follows
(in thousands):

Year of expiration:

200 L e e $1,734
2009 ..l e e 738
2020 . e e e s 1,261
202 e 522
202 e e e 366
75 960
202 e e 564

$6,145

This credit was established as a result of the restoration and enhancement of the John A. Hand Building, which
is designated as an historical structure and serves as the corporate headquarters for the Corporation. This credit is
equal to 20% of certain qualified expenditures incurred by the Corporation prior to December 31, 2005. The
Corporation is required to reduce its tax basis in the John A. Hand Building by the amount of the credit.

Applicable income tax (benefit) expense of $-0-, $(351,000) and $(27,000) on investment securities (losses)
gains for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, is included in income taxes.

77




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

13. Income Taxes — (Continued)

The Corporation recognized a $600,000 tax benefit in 2005 related to the exercise of nenqualified stock
options. This benefit was recognized as a credit to stockholder’s equity as additional surpius.

The Corporation’s federal and state income tax returns for the years 2001 through 2005 are open for review and
examination by governmental authorities. In the normal course of these examinations, the Corporation is subject to
challenges from governmental authorities regarding amounts of taxes due. The Corporation has received notices of
proposed adjustments relating to state taxes due for the years 2002 and 2003, which include proposed adjustments
relating to income apportionment of a subsidiary. Management believes adequate provision for income taxes has
been recorded for all years open for review and intends to vigorously contest the proposed adjustments. To the
extent that final resolution of the proposed adjustments results in significantly different conclusions from
management’s current assessment of the proposed adjustments, the effective tax rate in any given financial
reporting period may be materially different from the current effective tax rate,

14. Derivatives

The Corporation maintains positions in derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk and
facilitate asset/liability management strategies. The fair value of derivatives are recorded in other assets or other
liabilities.

Interest Rate Swaps

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had interest rate swap positions with notional amounts of $46,500,000
related to brokered CDs (See Fair Value Hedges below). Hedge accounting was discontinued on $36,500,000 of
these swap positions during the fourth quarter of 2006 because the instruments no longer qualified as an effective
fair value hedge under SFAS 133. Therefore, all changes in fair value were recognized in earnings during the period
of the change. The net cash settlement of these derivatives was included in noninterest income during the fourth
guarter of 2006. As of December 31, 2006, these CID> swaps had a recorded fair value of ($713,000) and a weighted
average life of 8.99 years, respectively. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 4.92% and the
weighted average variable rate (paying rate} was 5.33% (LIBOR based).

Fair Value Hedges

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation had entered into $46,500,000 notional amount of swaps (“CD
swaps’™) to hedge the interest rate risk inherent in certain of its brokered certificates of deposits (“brokered CDs™).
The CD swaps are used to convert the fixed rate paid on the brokered CDs to a variable rate based upon three-month
LIBOR. Prior to the first quarter of 2006, these transactions did not qualify for fair value hedge accounting under .
SFAS 133 (see Note 1). During the first quarter of 2006, the Corporation designated these CD swaps as fair value
hedges. As fair value hedges, the net cash setilements from the designated swaps are reported as part of net interest
income. In addition, the Corporation will recognize in current earnings the change in fair value of both the interest
rate swap and related hedged brokered CDs, with the ineffective portion of the hedge relationship reported in
noninterest income. The fair value of the CD swaps is reported on the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition in other liabilities and the change in fair value of the related hedged brokered CD is reported as an
adjustment to the carrying value of the brokered CDs. Hedge accounting was discontinued on $36,500,000 of these
swap positions during the fourth quarter of 2006 because the instruments no longer qualified as an cffective fair
value hedge under SFAS 133(see Interest Rate Swaps above). As of December 31, 2006, the amount of CD swaps -
designated as fair value hedges totaled $10,000,000 and had a recorded fair value of ($84,000) and a weighted
average life of 3.87 years. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate} was 4.13% and the weighted average
variable rate (paying rate) was 5.38% (LIBOR based).
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Interest Rate Floors

During the fourth quarter of 2006 the Corporation entered into certain interest rate floor contracts that have not
been qualified for hedge accounting treatment and will be used as an economic hedge. An interest rate floor is a
contract in which the counterparty agrees to pay to the difference between a current market rate of interest and an
agreed rate multiplied by the amount of the notional amount. The Corporation entered into $50,000,000 interest rate
floor contracts for a 3-year period with a 4.25% floor on the 3-month LIBOR rate. The Corporation paid a $248,000
premium. These economic hedges will be carried at {air value in other assets or other liabilities and changes in the
fair value of these derivatives and any payments received will be recognized in noninterest income. The floors had a
positive fair value of $215,000 as of December 31, 2006.

Commitments 1o Originate Mortgage Loans

During the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into certain commitmenis with customers in
connection with residential mortgage loan applications. Such commitments are considered derivatives under the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 149, Amendment to Statement 133 on Derivatives
Instruments and Hedging Activities, and are therefore required to be recorded at fair value. The aggregate amount of
these mortgage loan origination commitments was $28,733,000 at December 31, 2006. The net unrealized gain of
the origination commitments were $51,000 at December 31, 2006. The fair values are calculated based on changes
in market interest rates after the commitment date. '

i5. Related Party Transactions

The Corporation has entered into transactions with its directors, executive officers, significant stockholders
and their affiliates (related parties). Such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially
the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for
comparable transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than
normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features. The aggregate amount of loans 1o such related parties at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $11,064,000 and $6,805,000, respectively. Activity during the year ended
December 31, 2006 s summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance . : Balance
December 31, Other December 31,
2005 Advances Repayments Changes 2006
56,805 $4,285 5973 $947 $11,064

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the deposits of such related parties in the subsidiary bank amounted 10
approximately $23,793,000 and $32,084,000, respectively.

An insurance agency owned by one of the Corporation’s directors received commissions of approximately
$166,876, $180,567, and $180,400 from the sale of insurance to the Corporation during 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. S

The Corporation believes that all of the foregoing transactions were made on terms and conditions reflective of
arm’s length transactions.
16. Commitments and Contingencies

The consolidated financial statements do not reflect the Corporation’s various commitments and contingent
liabilities which arise in the normal course of business and which involve elements of credit risk, interest rate risk
and liquidity risk. These commitments and contingent liabilities are commitments to extend credit and standby
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16. Commitments and Contingencies — (Continued)

letters of credit. The following is a summary of the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit loss for loan
commitments and standby letters of credit (in thousands):

December 31
2006 " 2005
Commitments to extend credit . . . ... ... . . $361,523 $215,95]
Standby letters of credit. .. .. ... ... . .. e 23,630 23,591

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in the event
of nonperformance by the customer. The Corporation’s credit policies and procedures for credit commitments and
financial guarantees are the same as those for extension of credit that are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial condition. Because these instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many of them expire without
being drawn upon, they do not generally present any significant liquidity risk to the Corporation.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Corporation settled various litigation matters. The Corporation is also a
defendant or co-defendant in various lawsuits incidental to the banking business. Management, after consultation
with legal counsel, betieves that liabilities, if any, artsing from such litigation and claims will not result in a material
adverse cffect on the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation.

The Corporation is constructing or has plans to construct various new branch locations. In that regard, the
Corporation has entered into commitmenis as of, or subsequent to, December 31, 2006 for the construction of these
branch locations totaling approximately $4,396,000.

17. Branch Sales

On February 6, 2004, the Corporation’s banking subsidiary sold its Morris, Alabama branch, which had assets
of approximately $1.037,000 and liabilities of $8,217,000. The Corporation realized a $739,000 pre-tax gain on the
sale,

18. Regulatory Restrictions

A source of funds available to the Corporation is the payment of dividends by its subsidiary. Regulations limit
the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of the subsidiary’s regulatory agency. Approx-
imately $9,800,000 in retained earnings are available to be paid as dividends by the subsidiary at December 31,
2006.

D'uring the fourth quarter of 2005 the Corporation became a unitary thrift holding company and, as such, is
subject to regulation, examination and supervision by the OTS.

Simultaneously, the Corporation’s subsidiary bank’s charter was changed to a federal savings bank charter and
is also subject to various regulatory requirements administered by the OTS. Prior to November 1, 2005 the
Corporation’s banking subsidiary was regulaied by the Alabama Banking Department and the Federal Reserve.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporation’s and its subsidiaries
tinancial condition and results of operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the subsidiary bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the its assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The subsidiary bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and its
subsidiary bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of tangible and core capital
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18. Regulatory Restrictions -~ (Continued)

(as defined in the regulations) to adjusted total assets (as defined), and of total capital (as defined) and Tier 1 capital
to risk weighted assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, that the Corporation
and its subsidiary meet all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, the most recent notification from the subsidiary’s primary regulators
categorized the subsidiary as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. The
table below represents the Corporation’s and the subsidiary’s regulatory and minimum regulatory capital require-
ments at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

To Be Well

For Capital Capitalized
Adequacy Under Prompt
Actual . Purposes Corrective Action
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2006
Tier 1 Core Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets)

Corporation .. . . ... v v v, $170,513 743% $ 91,768  4.00% $114,710 5.00%

SuperiorBank ....................... 174,084 7.64 91,080 4.00 113,863 5.00
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Corporation. ... ..................... 188,688 10.40 145,198 8.00 181,498 10.00

SuperiorBank ... .......... ... ....... 192,259  10.69 143,843  8.00 179,803 10.00
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Comporation. .. ... ..o viu i, 170,513 9.39 N/A N/A 108,899 6.00

Superior Bank . .. ........... ......... 174,084 9.68 . N/A  N/A 107,882 6.00
Tangible Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets)

SuperiorBank . ...................... 174,084 7.64 34,159 1.50 N/A N/A
As of December 31, 2005
Tier 1 Core Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets)

Corporation. . .. ......ooiuniunnen .. $115,852 830% $ 55810 4.00% $ 69,763 5.00%

Superior Bank . ......... .. ... ... .. .. 110,929 802 - 55332 400 69,165 5.00
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Corporation. ........................ 126444 1108 91,295 8.00 114,119 10.00

Superior Bank . ...................... 121,521 10.76 90,347 B8.00 112,934 10.00
Tier t Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

Corporation., . ..............civrun.. 115,852  10.15 N/A  N/A 68,471 6.00

Superior Bank . . ....... ... ..o L. L. 110,929 9.82 N/A  N/A 67,760 6.00
Tangible Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets)

Superier Bank....................... 110,929 8.02 20,749 1.50 N/A N/A

19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating fair values of financial
instruments as disclosed herein:

Cash and short-term instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments, including
interest-bearing deposits in other banks, federal funds sold and short-term commercial paper, approximate their fair
value.

Investment securities available for sale. Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market
prices. The carrying values of stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank approximate fair values,

Tax lien certificates. The carrying amount of tax lien certificates approximates their fair value.
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19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments — {Continued)

Morigage loans held for sale.  The carrying amounis of mortgage loans held for sale approximate their fair
value.

Net loans.  Fair values for variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit
risk are based on carrying values. Fair values for all other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses
using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair
values for impaired loans are estimaled using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where
applicable.

Accrued interest receivable. The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable approximate their fair
values.

Deposits.  The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on
demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term
money market accounts and certificates of deposit (“CDs”) approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair
values for fixed-rate CDs are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently
being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Advances from FHLB. Rates currently available to the Corporation for debt with similar terms and remaining
maturities are used to estimate fair value of existing debt.

Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements. The carrying amount of federal funds
borrowed and security repurchase agreements approximate their fair values.

Notes pavable. The carrying amount of notes payable approximates their fair values.

Subordinated debentures. Rates currently available to the Corporation for preferred offerings with similar
terms and maturities are used to estimate fair value.

herest rate swaps.  Fair values for interest rate swaps are based on quoted market prices.

Limitations. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point of time and are based on relevant market
information, which is continuously changing. Because no quoted market prices exist for a significant portion of the
Corporation’s financial instruments, fair values for such instruments are based on management’s assumptions with
respect to future economic conditions, estimated discount rates, estimates of the amount and timing of future cash
flows, expected loss experience, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature involving uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment; therefore, they cannot be determined with precision. Changes in the
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments — {Continued)

The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying
Amount Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousands)

Financial assets:

Cash and due frombanks . ........... $ 49783 $ 49783 § 35088 § 35,088
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks. . 10,994 10,994 9,772 9,772
Federal fundssold . ................ 25,185 25,185 — —
Securities available forsale. .. ... ... .. 354,716 354,716 242,306 242,306
Tax lien certificates . ............... 16,313 16,313 289 289
Mortgage loans held forsale. .. .. ... .. 24,433 24,433 21,355 21,355
Netloans . ........... ... v.... 1,639,528 1,634,782 951,242 949,177
Stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve

Bank .......... ... .. ... ... ... 12,382 12,382 10,966 10,966
Accrued interest receivable . ... .. ... .. 14,387 14,387 7,081 7,081

Financial liabilities:

Deposits. . ... . L. 1,870,841 1,868,121 1,043,696 1,041,177
Advances from FHLB. . .. ........... 187,840 189,628 181,090 184,188
Federal funds botrrowed and security

repurchase agreements ............ 23,415 23,415 33,406 33,286
Notes payable. . ................... 5,545 5.545 3,755 3,755
Junior subordinated debentures owed to

unconsolidated subsidiary trusts. ... .. 44 006 47,481 31,959 33,980
Interest rate swaps . . ............... 798 798 953 953

Note 20 — Pension Plan

As a result of its merger with Community, the Corporation became the sponsor of a defined benefit pension
plan (the “Pension Plan™) and a nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan (the “Benefit Restoration
Plan™). Both plans were frozen by Community effective December 31, 2003. As long as the plans remain frozen, no
employees become eligible to participate in the plans and no participants accrue any additional benefits. Benefits
accrued as of the date of the freeze will be paid to participants in accordance with the terms of the plans,

Benefits under the Pension Plan depend upon a participant’s years of credited service and his or her average
monthly earnings for the highest five consecutive years out of the participant’s final 10 years of employment. The
number of years of credited service and average monthly earnings for cach participant were fixed as of Decem-
ber 31, 2003. Normal retirement age under the Pension Plan is age 65. A participant with 10 years of service is
eligible to receive early retirement benefits beginning at age 55. The Corporation is required to make contributions
to the Pension Plan in amounts sufficient to satisfy the funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act, as amended. Pension Plan assets are held in a trust and consist primarily of corporate stock and bonds.

The Benefit Restoration Plan was designed to provide certain key executives of Community with benefits
which would have been paid to them under (he Pension Plan except for certain limitations imposed by the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. A participant’s benefit under the Benefit Restoration Plan is equal to the
difference between his benefit under the Pension Plan calculated without regard to such limitations less the benefit
payable to him from the Pension Plan. Benefit Restoration Plan benefits are unfunded.
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Note 20 — Pension Plan — (Continued)

The following tables set forth the funding status and the amount recognized for both the Pension Plan and the
Benefit Restoration Plan in the Corporation’s consolidated statement of condition and consolidated statement of
operations.

Pension Plan:

December 31, 2006
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation as of November 7, 2006 . . . . ... ... ... ... . . 0. $ 10540
1] oty G 1 L+ 97
Benefits paid (including expenses) .. ....... ... .. . . .. 73
Actuarial (gain) 108s . . . .. . e e e (263)
Benefit obligation at end of year. .. ......... ... . ... .. ... ... ... . ..., $ 10,301
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as of November 7,2006 . ... ..................... $ 9915
Actual return on plan assets . . . ... ... e 254
Benefits paid (including expenses) . . . ... ... ... ., {73)
Fair value of plan assetsatendof year . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 10,096
Fundedstatusatend of year . .......... ... ..o\,
Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition (after SFAS 158) .. ... $ (205)
Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Condition consist of:
ASSCLS e e e $ —
Liabilities . . . o e e e e e e (205)
Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition (after SFAS 158) ... .. $ (205)

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in
accumulated other comprehensive income:

Transition (Obligation) COSt. .. ... vt ittt e e e $ —
Prior service (CostY Credit . . .o v e e e e e e —
Net (Joss) Bain . ..o e e e e e e 404
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (AOCI) ................... - 404
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost. .. ... .. (609)
Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition .................. h (205)
Change in Accumulated other comprehensive income due to application

of SFAS 158

Additional minimum liability (before SFAS 158) ... ..... ..., - § —

Intangible assets offset (before SFAS 158) ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... .. . —

AQCI (before SFAS 158) . . .. ... ... —

Net increase {decrease) in AOCI dueto SFAS 158 ... ... ... ... ... ... . .... 404
Additional year-end information for pension plans with accumulated '

benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:

Projected benefit obligation .. .. ... ... . ... ... . . . ... . e $ 10,301
Accumulated benefit obligation ........... ... .. ... . ... e e $ 106,301
Fairvalueof plan assets. . .. . .. ... . o e $ 10,09
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Note 20 — Pension Plan — (Continued) .
December 31, 2006
(In thousands)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic
benefit obligations

Projected benefit obligation . ........ ... ... . . ... . . 5.84%
Rate of compensation incréase . ...... P e N/A
Expected Cash Flows
Expected return of assets to employer innext year .. ...................... $ —
Expected employer contribution for next fiscal year ... .. ... ... ... oo.L. $ —
Expected benefit payments
Year ending December 31,2007........... ... ........ e $ 490,616
Year énding December 31,2008 . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... S 531,713
Year ending December 31,2009, ... ... ... . v . 536,653
Year ending December 31, 2010. . ... ... ... ... .. e 550,656
Year ending December 31, 2001 . .. .. ... . . e e 574,716
O A 3,264:616
Compenents of Pension Plan net periodic benefit cost: ‘.
Components of net periodic benefit cost (11/7/06 — 12/31/06) ' .
IOEresSt COSE . . . oot e e 97
Expected return on plan assets ... .. ...t i e Ll O (113)
Net periodic benefit Cost. ... .. ... ... ... ... ‘.$ (16)

Weighted-average assumptions wsed to determine net periodic
benefit cost

Discount rate . . ... .. 5.65%
Expected long-term return on plan assets. . .. ... e A 7.00%
Rate of compensation inCrease .. ... ..ottt e S N/A

The long-term expected rate of return for determining net periodic Pension Plan cost for the period ending
2006 (7.00%) was chosen by the Corporation from a best estimate range based upon the anticipated long-term
returns and long-term volatility for asset categories based on the target asset allocation of the Pension Plan.

The Corporation’s Pension Plan weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2006:

Percentage of

Pension Plan
Assets at
December 31, Long-term
, 2006 target Range
Asset Category: ‘
Cashandequivalents ... ......... ... ... . .. ... 0., . 3.0% 5.0% 1-15%
Equity securities. . ............ S 63.0 60.0 50-65
Debt securilies . . . .. .. ... e 34.0 - 35.0 30-50
Total ... .. . . 100.0% 100.0%

The overall investment objective of the Pension Plan is to meet the long-term benefit obligations accrued under
the Pension Plan through investment in a diversified mix of equity and fixed income securities. The investment
portfolio will be diversified to comply with fiduciary standards set forth under ERISA.

Long-term asset allocation targets and ranges are based on historical risk and retumn characteristics of the
capital markets, plan objective and plan investment time horizon. Shorter term asset allocation strategies, executed
within the guidelines of the investment policy take into consideration plan liquidity needs and current and expected
market conditions.
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Note 20 — Pension Plan — (Continued)

The investment portfolio utilizes mutual funds to facilitate investment in each of the asset classes and sectors.
The fixed income mutual funds currently utilized in the portfolio have objectives and exhibit characteristics in
aggregate of intermediate and short-term maturity/duration securities. Certatn individual issues within these funds
will have a maturity/duration longer than what is typically considered short-term or intermediate.. Over the long
term, the fixed income portfolio would be expected to exhibit characteristics of the aggregate bond market.

Benefit Restoration Plan: ) o .

~ December 31, 2006
(In thousands}

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation as of November 7, 2006 . .. ................. e $ 2802

Interest COSL. . . o oottt e e e e [ 26

Benefits paid (including expenses) . .. ... ... ... ... PRI . (am

Actuarial (gaim) 1oss .. . ... . .. “@n

Benefit obligation at end of year. . . ... ... .. ... ... o ce $ 2,771
Change in plan assets .

Fair value of plan assets as of November 7, 2006 . .............. e - 3 —

Actual returnon plan assets . .. .. ..... ... ... ..., (P —

Employer contribution . . .. ... ... e . 10

Benefits paid (including expenses) . . ... .. .. i e (10

Fair value of plan assetsatend of year. . . ......... ... .. ... ... . ... ... $ —
Funded status at end of year . ... ... e PR .

Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition (after SFAS 158) .. ... $ (277D
Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Condition consist of:

A LS & o i i e e e e e e $

Current Habilities . . .................. e e e e (161)

Noncurrent liabilities . ... ... PR S S S . (2,610)

Net amount recognized in statement of ﬁnanc1a1 posmon (after SFAS 138) ...... $ 77

Amounts not yet reflected in net perlodlc benefit cost and mcluded in
accumulated other comprehensive income:

Transition (Oblgation) CoSt. . . . vt it it e e e e b —
Prior service {cost) credit. .. ... . i e —
Net (loss) gain............. L O 47
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI)y .................., 47
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost. ... . ... (2,818).
Net amount recognized in stalement of financial condition .. ..............., $ 277D
Change in Accumulated other comprehensive income due to application '
of SFAS 158 o
Additional minimum liability (before SFAS 158) ......... ... .. ... ... ..... $ —

Intangible assets offset (before SFAS 158) .............. P —
AOCI(before SFAS 158) ... ........ .« ... ... L. [ e —
Net increase (decrease) in AOCl due to SFAS 158 . ... . ... ... .. ... ... ..... 47

.
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Note 20 — Pension Plan — (Continned)
December 31, 2006
(In thousands)
Additional year-end information for pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets: -

Projected benefit obligation .. ... ... .. . . $ 2771
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ... .. ... ... L L e 5 2771
Fair value of plan assets. . . ... ... . . i A —
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit
obligations
Projected benefit obligation .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. 5.84%
Rate of compensation INCIEASE . . . ... ..ttt it et N/A
Components of Benefit Restoration Plan net periodic benefit cost:
Components of net periodic benefit cost (11/7/06 — 12/31/06)
INLEIESL COSE . o o ottt e e e e e ey e e e e e e e 26
Net periodic benefit COSL. . . .. ... . i e e 3 26
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
Discount rate . . .. ... . e 5.65%
Expected long-term return on plan assets. . . .. ... ... ... . i N/A
Rate of compensation inCrease . ............ i N/A
Expected Cash Flows :
Expected return of assets to employer innextyear ...................... 3 —
Expected employer contribution for next fiscal year. . .................... 161,443
Expected benefit payments
Year ending December 31, 2007 . ... ... ... . L $ 161,443
Year ending December 31,2008 . .. ... ... ... ... e 263,641
Year ending December 31,2000 . ... .. ... ... .. L L 260,501
Year ending December 31, 2010 . .. ... .. ... ... . L 256,974
Year ending December 31, 2011 .. .. ... .. L L 253,069
Next five Years. . . ... ... e 1,191,436

21. Other Noninterest Expense

Other noninterest expense consisted of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Professional fees . . . . ... .. $ 2593 $2745 §$ 3,344
Directors fees . .. ..o i e 345 380 191
Insurance and asSESSMENES . . . . . . . v ittt it e, 1,898 2,344 2,410
Postage, stationery and supplies .. ... ... ... ... . . ... 1,251 997 1,013
Advertising . . . ... ... . e 1,348 857 657
Foreclosure 10sSes . . .. ... . . . .. 210 796 967
Other operating eXPense. . . . ... v it ae et 6,546 6,250 5,534
Total . . e $14,191  $14,369 514,116
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22. Concentrations of Credit Risk

All of the Corporation’s loans, commitments and standby letters of credit have been granted to customers in the
Corporation’s market areas. The concentrations of credit by type of loan or commitment are set forth in Notes 4
and 16, respectively.

The Corporation maintains cash balances and federal funds sold at several financial institutions. Cash balances
at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”} up to $100,000. At
various times throughout the year, cash balances held at these institutions will exceed federally insured limits.
Superior Bank’s management monitors these institutions on a quarterly basis in order to determine that the
institutions meet “well-capitalized” guidelines as established by the FDIC.

23. Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic net income (loss) per common share and diluted net
income (loss) per common share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2006 2005 2004
Numerator:

o Netineome (1088). - - - - ot i it e e e e $ 4997 $(5,786) $ 1,187
Less preferred dividends. .. . ......... ... ... ... ... ...... —_ (305) (440)
Less conversion of preferred stock . ........ ... .......... — (2,006) _
For basic and diluted, net income (loss) applicable to common

stockholders. .. ... .. e $ 4997 $(8,097) § 741
Denominator:
For basic, weighted average common shares outstanding . . ... .. 23,409 19,154 17,583
Effect of dilutive stock options . . .. ...... ... .. ... .. ...... 625 — 232
Average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution . ... ... 24,034 19,154 17,815
Basic net income (loss) per common share . . ... ... e $ 021 § (42) $§ 04
Diluted net income (loss) per common share .. ............... $ 021 § (42) § .04

Basic net income (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing net income (loss), less dividend
requirements on outstanding convertible preferred stock, by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for the period.

Diluted net income (loss) per common share takes into consideration the pro forma dilution assuming
outstanding convertible preferred stock and certain unvested restricted stock and unexercised stock option awards
were converted or exercised into common shares. Options on 620,301 shares of common stock and the weighted
average effect of 382,192 shares of convertible preferred stock prior to conversion were not included in computing
diluted net (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2005, and for the year ended December 31, 2004, the
effect of 775,000 shares of convertible preferred stock was not included because their effects were anti-dilutive, No
shares of convertible preferred stock remained outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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24. Parent Company

The condensed financial information (unaudited) for Superior Bancorp (Parent Company only} is presented as
foltows (in thousands):

December 31,

2006 2005
Statements of financial condition
Assets: .
Cash . e e $ 1,318 § 2070
Investment in subsidiaries . ........ ... ... . .. e 308,061 127,361
Intangibles, net . ... ... . e 214 214
Premises and equipment —met. . ... .. ... . L o e 6,713 7.763
Other assets. ... .. R 19,220 8,964
$335,526  $146,372
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . .......................... $ 0888 $ 5593
Notes payable . . ... ... e e e 5,543 3,755
Subordinated debentures .. .. ... . ... ... 44,006 31,959
Stockholders’ equity . ... i it e 276,087 105,065

$335,526  $146,372

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Statements of operations
Income: _
Dividends from subsidiaries . ... ........ ... ... .. ... ... .. $1,750 % 2,585 $2576
Interest . ... ... . e 100 15 13
Otherincome. . ... .. ... .t 431 852 3,397
2,281 3,452 5,986
Expense:
Directors’ fees...... A 276 270 74
Salaries and benefits ........ ... ... .. . ... . o, 708 10,831 3,219
OCCupancy eXPense ... ..o et et i e s 512 897 615
INterest EXPenSe . . . . . ..ottt e 3,566 3,142 2,653
Other. . ... . 886 2,257 937
. 5,948 17,397 7,498
Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed earnings of

subsidiaries . . ... ... ... e (3.667)  (13945)  (1,512)
Income tax benefit. . . ... ... 1,409 6,445 1,822

-(Loss) income before equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries . .......... e e (2,258)  (7,500) 310
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries . .............. 7,255 1,714 877
Netincome (1088) ... ... i e e e $4997 $ (5,786) §$ 1,187
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

24. Parent Company — (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Statements of cash flows
Operating activities
Net INCOME (J0SS) .« vttt e e e e e $4997 $ (5,786) $ 1,187
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used by
operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation expense. . ... ... ... ... 245 257 213
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries. ... .. ........ (7,255) {1,714) (877)
Other increase (decrease) . ... vttt i i e e 1,392 (B68) (2,276)
Net cash used by operating activities . . . ............. (621) (8,111  (1,733)
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment . . .............. 947 19 —
Purchases of premises and equipment. .. .................... (35) — (2,117)
Net cash paid in business combinations . .................... (3,855) — —
Net cash used in investing activities. . .. ............. (2,913) 19 (2,117
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock. . ... ... ... ... ... 992 10,542 203
Proceeds from note payable . . ... ... ... . o i it 2,000 — 2,250
Principal payment on note payable. .. ............ ... ... ... (210) (210) (210)
Cashdividendspaid. . ...... ... ... . i i, — (305) (447)
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ........... 2,782 10,027 1,796
Net (decrease) increase incash .. .................. (752) 1,935 (2,074)
Cash at beginming of year .. .. ... ... ... ...... 2,070 135 2,200
Cashatendofyear. ....... ... ..vvvieian.. $1318 § 2070 $ 135
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

25, Selected Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

A summary of the unaudited results of operations for each quarter of 2006 and 2005 follows (in thousands,

except per share data):

2006
Total interest income . . .. ... .t ran e
Total interest expense . ......................
Net interest inCome . . ... .ot ieen e onnnnn.nn
Provision forloan losses . . ...................
Securities (losses) gains. . ........ .. ...
Changes in fair value of derivatives ... ....... ...
Income before income taxes. . .........vvvvnonn
Netincome ............ ...t ineiininn.n.
Basic net income per commoen share ... ... ... ...

* Diluted net income per common share . .. ........

2005
Total iNerest iNCOME . .+« v vveeereneen e
Total interest eXpense . ... ...........c..o.n...
Net interest iInCOME . . . .. . ... coveneenne...
Provision for loan losses .. ...................
Securities (losses) gains. .. .. ... ..............
Changes in fair value of derivatives . ............
(Loss) income before i income AXES . ooeee
Net (loss}income ..........................
Basic net (loss) income per common share . . ... .. .
Diluted net (loss) income per common share ... ...

26. Segment Reporting

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 21,640 $23,608 $27,458 $36,062
11,645 13,195 16,543 20,000
10,004 10,413 10,915 16,062
600 700 550 - . 650

70 (33) 6 331
1,100 1,880 979 2,961
850 1,274 813 2,060
0.04 0.06 0.04 0.07
0.04 0.06 0.04 0.06

$ 18,186 $18957 $19.479  $20,658
8,579 9,108 10,005 10,563
9,607 9,849 9474 10,095
750 1,500 500 750
{909) (68) — 29
(230) 933 (863) (165)
(13218) 1,560 (127) 1,387
(8,161) 1,148  ° 137 1,090
(.44) (.06} .01 06
(.44) (.06) .01 .05

The Corporation has two reportable segments, the Alabama Region and the Florida Region. The Alabama
Region consists of operations located throughout-the state of Alabama. The Florida Region consists of operations
located in the Tampa Bay area and panhandle of Florida. The Corporation’s reportable segments are managed as
separate business units because they are located in different geographic areas. Both segments derive revenues from
the delivery of financial services. These services include cormnerc1al loans, mongage loans, consumer loans,

deposit accounts and other financial services.

The Corporation evaluates performance and allocates resources based on profit or loss from operations. There
are no material intersegment sales or transfers. Net interest revenue is used as the basis for performance evaluation
rather than its components, total interest revenue and total interest expense. The accounting policies used by each

91.

x

f




SUPERIOR BANCORP.-AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

26. Segment Reporting — (Continued)

reportable segment are the same as those discussed in Note 1. All costs have been allocated to the reportable
segments. Therefore, combined segment amounts agree to the consolidated totals. g

Alabama Florida
Region Region Combined
{In Thousands)

2006 : . :
Net interest income . . . . ... ........ e, e $ 31,736 $ 15658 $§ 47394
Provision for loan losses . ..., ........ e e e 280 - 2,220 2,500
NORNINETESt INCOME . . . o o o o e e e e e e 10,723 1,088 11,811
Noninterest expense(2) . ... ... it e 43,000 6,785 49,785
Income tax (benefit} expense .......................... PP (1,307 3,230 1,923
Net (loss) income . ...... .. ........ P (1,734 - 6,731 4,997
Total assets . . ............. e e e e 1,897,611 543,379 2,440,990
2005 "
Net interest income . ... ... e % 27272 $ 11,753 % 39,025
Provision for loan losses . . . ... .. i e 3,455 45 3,500
Noninterest income(1) . . . .. e e 13,426 1,271 14,697
Noninterest expense(2)(3) ....... e e e 56,462 4,158 60,620
Income tax (benefit) expense . .. ... ... ... ... . .. o i (7,144) 2532 (4,612)
Net {Ioss) iNCOIME . . ...t ittt e e ettt i e e ’ (12,075) 6,289 (5.786)
Total assets . . . . . . S 1,112,700 302,769 1,415,469
2004 ) ’
Net Interest iNCOME . . . . ...ttt ittt ie e iiaene $ 27, 362 $ 10675 $§ 38,037
Provision for loan Josses ... ... r i i e e e ' 3, 223" (2,248) | 975
Noninterest income . . ...t e .. 9922 1,344 11,266
Noninterest expense(2) . ... .ottt R . 40,876 7,061 47,937
Income tax expense (benefit) . . ........... ...t " (3,739) 2,943 (796)
Net ineome (10SS) . . - o .o oo et et e e (3,076) 4,263 1,187

Total assels . . . o oot e e 1,160,747 262,381 ° 1,423,128

(1) Alabama Region includes proceeds from insurance settlernent of $5, 114 000.

(2) Noninterest expense for the Alabama Reglon mcludes all expenses for the holding company and otherl
administrative expenses, which have not been prorated to the Florida region.

(3) Alabama Region includes management separation costs of $15,467,000.

1

27. Preferred Stock

‘Effective June 30, 2005, 62,000 shares of the ‘Corporation’s convertible preferred stock were converted into
775,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $8.00 per share. As a result of such conversion, the excess
of the market value of the common stock issued at the date of conversion over the aggregate issue price is reflected
as a reduction in retained earnings with a corresponding increase in surplus, thereby reducing net income applicable
to commoen stockholders for purposes of calculating earnings per common share. This non-cash charge did not
affect total stockholders’ equity.

28. Management Separation Costs and Insurance Settlement

On July 21, 2005, the Corporation announced that it had bought out the employment contracts of its Chief
Financial Officer and its General Counsel, effective June 30, 2005. Under these agreements, in lieu of the payments
to which they would have been entitled under their employment agreements, the Corporation paid a total of
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28. Management Separation Costs and Insurance Settlement — (Continued)

$2,392,343 on July 22, 2005. In addition, these officers became fully vested in stock options and restricted stock
previously granted to them and in benefits under their deferred compensation agreements with the Corporation. .

In May 2005, the Corporation received $5,000,000 (approximately $3,200,000 after-tax, or $.17 per common
share) to resolve its insurance claims relating to fraud losses which occurred in previous periods.

On January 24, 2005, the Corporation announced that it had entered into a series of executive management
change agreements. These agreements set forth the employment of C. Stanley Bailey as Chief Executive Officer and
a director of the Corporation and chairman of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary, C. Marvin Scott as President of
the Corporation and the Corporation’s banking subsidiary, and Rick D. Gardner as Chief Operating Officer of the
Corporation and the Corporation’s banking subsidiary, These agreements also provided for the purchase by
Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scott and Mr. Gardner, along with other investors, of 925,636 shares of common stock of the
Corporation at $8.17 per share. The Corporation also entered into agreements with James A. Taylor and James A.
Taylor, Jr. under which they would continue to serve as Chairman of the Board of the Corporation and as a director
of the Corporation, respectively, but would cease their employment as officers of the Corporation and officers and
directors of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary. Mr. Taylor, Jr. subsequently resigned as a director of the
Corporation effective September 28, 2005 to pursue other business opportunities.

Under the agreement with Mr. Taylor, in lieu of the payments to which he wouild have been entitled under his
employment agreement, the Corporation paid Mr. Taylor $3,940,155 on January 24, 2005 and $3,152,124 in
December 2005, and $784,541 in December 2006. The agreement also provides for the provision of certain
insurance benefits to Mr. Taylor, the transfer of a “key man” life insurance policy to Mr. Taylor, and the maintenance
of such policy by the Corporation for five years {with the cost of maintaining such policy included in the above
amounts), in each case substantially as required by his employment agreement. This obligation to provide such
payments and benefits to Mr. Taylor is absolute and will sutvive the death or disability of Mr. Taylor.

Under the agreement with Mr. Taylor, Jr., in lieu of the payments to which he would have been entitled under
his employment agreement, the Corporation paid Mr. Taylor, Ir., $1,382,872 on January 24, 2005. The agreement
also provides for the provision of certain insurance benefits to Mr. Taylor, Jr. and for the immediate vesting of his
unvested incentive awards and deferred compensation in each case substantially as required by his employment
agreement. This obligation to provide such payments and benefits to Mr. Taylor, Jr. is absolute and will survive the
death or disability of Mr. Taylor, Jr.

In connection with the above described management separation transactions, the Corporation recognized pre-
tax expenses of $15,467,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2006 and 20035, the
Corporation had $416,000 and $1,164,000, respectively of accrued liabilities related to these agreements.

29. Subsequent Event

On January 18, 2007, the Corporation announced that it had signed a definitive agreement to merge with
People’s Community Bancshares, Inc. (*People’s”). People's is the holding company for People’s Community Bank
of the West Coast, a Florida state bank with three branches in Sarasota and Manatee Counties in Florida. Under the
terms of the merger agreement, the Corporation will issue 2.9036 shares of the Corporation’s common stock for
each share of People’s stock or approximately 6,650,000 shares. Based on recent closing prices per share for the
Corporation’s common stock, the transaction would be valued at approximately $77.1 million. The actual value at
consummation will be based on the Corporation’s share price at that time. Completion of the merger is subject to
approval by the stockholders of People’s, to the receipt of required regulatory approvals, and to the satisfaction of
usual and customary closing conditions.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls And Procedures
Officer Certifications

Appearing immediately following the Signatures section of this report are Certifications of cur Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and our Chief Accounting Officer, who is currently our principal financial officer
(“PFO”). The Certifications are required to be made by Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. This Item contains the information about the evaluation that is referred to in the-Certifications, and the
information set forth below in this Item should be read in conjunction with the Certifications for a more complete
understanding of the Certifications.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information required to be disclosed in
our Exchange Act reports is made known to the officers who centify our financial reports and to other members of
our senior management and our Board of Directors.

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2006, our Chief Executive Officer and our Principal Financial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

QOur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Under the supervision and with
the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Principal Financial Officer, our
management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission, as of December 31, 2006. Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2006.

During 2006, we acquired Kensington and Community as described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. Management has excluded these businesses from its evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. These businesses represented approximately 40% of our
consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2006, and approximately 8% percent of our consolidated net interest
income for the vear then ended. :

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2006 has been audited by Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in its report, which is set forth below.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
Superior Bancorp

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Superior Bancorp (formerly, The Banc Corporation) and subsidiaries
maintained effective internat control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established
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in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission {COS0). Superior Bancorp’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evajuating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the .circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal contro! over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include an
assessment of the internal controls over financial reporting of Kensington Bankshares, Inc. and Community
Bancshares, Inc., the financial statements of which are included in the 2006 consolidated financial statements of
Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries and constituted approximately 40 percent of the Company’s consolidated total
assets as of December 31, 2006, and approximately 8 percent of the Company’'s consolidated net interest income for
the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries also
did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Kensington Bankshares, Inc. and
Community Bancshares, Inc. ’

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in frternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO}. Also in our opinion, Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. based on criteria
established in Imternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO). )

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated statements of financial condition of Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated
March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion.

fsf  Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

Dothan, Alabama
March 16, 2007
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recent fiscai
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Itern 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART 111

Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant; Executive
Compensation; Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qwners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters; Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions; and Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management,” “Nominees for Director,” “Executive Officers,” “Certain Information Concerning the Board of
Directors and Its Committees,” “Stockholder Communications with the Board,” “Director Compensation,” “Code
of Ethics,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Executive Compensation and Other
Information,” “Certain Transactions and Relationships” and “Relationship with Independent Public Accountants”
included in our definitive proxy statement to be filed no later than April 30, 2007, in connecuon with our 2007
Annual Meetmg of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference. '

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Schedules.

(I) The consolidated financial statements of Superior Bancorp and its subsidtaries filed as a part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K are listed in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is hereby
incorporated by reference herein.

(2) All schedules to the consolidated financial statements of Superior Bancorp and its subsidiaries have been
omitted because they are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, or because the
required information has been provided in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits.

The exhibits required by Regulation S-K are set forth in the following list and are filed either by incorporation
by reference from previous filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or by attachment to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K as indicated below. Prior to May 2006, Superior Bancorp was named “The Banc Corpo-
ration”. Many of the following exhibits accordingly reference “The Banc Corporation”.

(3)-1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Superior Bancorp, filed as Exhibit 3 to Superior Bancorp’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 18, 2006, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

(3)-2 Bylaws of Superior Bancorp, filed as Exhibit 3 to Superior Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
October I, 2006, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

(4)-1 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as of September 7, 2000, by and among State Street
Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, as Institutional Trustee, The Banc
Corporation, as Sponsor, David R. Carter and James A. Taylor, Jr., as Administrators, filed as Exhibit(4)-1
to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.
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4)-2

(4-3

(4-4

(#)-5

(4)-6

-7

(4)-8

(4)-9

4)-10

(4)-11

(4)-12

(4)-13

(10)-1

(10)-2

(10)-3

(10)-4

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2000, by and between The Banc Corporation and State
Street Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, filed as Exhibit(4)-2 to The Banc
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3§, 2000. is hereby
incorporated herein by reference. ‘

Indenture, dated as of September 7, 2000, by and among The Banc Corporation as issuer and State Street
Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, as Trustee, filed as Exhibit(4)-3 io The
Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Placement Agreement, dated as of August 31, 2000, by and among The Banc Corporation, TBC Capital
Statutory Trust 1I, Keefe Bruyette & Woods, Inc., and First Tennessee Capital Markets, filed as
Exhibit(4)-4 to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as of July 16, 2001, by and among The Banc
Corporation, The Bank of New York, David R. Carter, and James A. Taylor, Ir. filed as Exhibit(4)-5 to The
Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-69734) is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2001, by The Banc Corporation and The Bank of New York
filed as Exhibit(4)-6 to The Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration
No. 333-69734) is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2001, by The Banc Corporation and The Bank of New York filed as
Exhibit(4)-7 to The Banc Corporation’s Registration Statemeni on Form S-4 (Registration
No. 333-69734} is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Placement Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001, among TBC Capital Statutory Trust I1l, and The Banc
Corporation and Sandler O'Neill & Partners, L.P. filed as Exhibit(4)-8 to The Banc Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-69734) is hereby 1ncorp0r'|ted herein by
reference.

Indenture, dated March 23 2000, by and between Community Bancshares, Inc. and The Bank of New
York filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Community Bancshares’ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated March 23, 2000, by and among The Bank of New York
(Delaware), The Bank of New York, Community Bancshares, Inc. and Community (AL} Capital Trust |
filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Community Bancshares’ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Guarantee Agreement, dated March 23, 2000, by and between Community Bancshares, Inc. and The
Bank of New York filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Community Bancshares’ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2000, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporation and the investors
named therein, filed as Exhibit 4-1 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form §-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporation and the investors
named therein, filed as Exhibit 4-2 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form §-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Third Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Banc Corporation, filed as Exhibit (10)-1
to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Commerce Bank of Alabama Incentive Stock Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit(4)-3 to The Banc
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, dated February 22, 1999 (Registration
No. 333-72747), is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, filed as
Exhibit (10)-1 to The Banc Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for quarter ended
March 31, 2002 is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, filed as
Exhibit (10)-2 to The Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-l1 (Registration
No. 333-67011), is hereby incorporated herein by reference.
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(10)-5
(10)-§
(10)-7
(10)-8
(10)-9
(10)-10
(10)-11
(|6)-12
(10)-13
(10)-14
(10)-15
(10)-16

(10)-17
(10)-28

(21}
(23}
(31)
(32)

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and the individuals
listed on Schedule A attached thereto filed as Exhibit (10)-11 to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, is hereby incorporated hercin by reference.
Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between Superior Bank and the individuals listed on
Schedule A attached thereto filed as Exhibit (10)-11 to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.
Agreement dated as of June 30, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporation and David R. Carter, filed as
Exhibit 10-3 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 10-K dated July 21, 2005, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2005, by and between The Banc¢ Corporation and F. Hampton
McFadden, Jr., filed as Exhibit 10-4 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
July 21, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, Sr., filed as
Exhibit 10-3 1o The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2003, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference. .

Agrcement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, Jr,, filed as
Exhibit 10-4 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2005, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporatlon, The Bank and
C. Staniey Bailey, fited as Exhibit 10-5 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2003, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporation, The Bank and
C. Marvin Scott, filed as Exhibit 10-6 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporation, The Bank and
Rick D. Gardner, filed as Exhibit 10-7 to The Banc Corporation’s.Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Kensington Bankshares, Inc. and The Banc Corporation, dated
March 6, 2006, filed as Exhibit 10 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 6,
2006, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Community Bancshares, Inc. and The Banc Corporation, dated
April 29, 2006, filed as Exhibit 2.01 to The Banc Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the
quarter ended March 31, 2006, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between People’s Community Bancshares, Inc. and Supenor Bancorp,
dated January 18, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10 to Superior Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 18, 2007, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Change in Control Agreement between The Banc Corporation and James C. Gossett dated April 1, 2002,
Agreement between Superior Bank and William H. Caughran, dated August 31, 2006, filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 1 to Superior Bancorp’s Registration Statement on Form 5-4
(Registration No. 333-136419) is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Subsidiaries of Superior Bancorp.

Consent of Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 US.C.
Section 1350.

(¢} Financial Statement Schedules.

The Financial Statement Schedules required to be filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed under
“Financial Statement Schedules” in Part IV, {tem 15(a)(2) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and are
incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

SUPERIOR BANCORP

By /s/  C. Stanley Bailey

C. Stanley Bailey
Chief Executive Officer

March 16, 2007

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints C. Stanley Bailey and James C. Gossett, and each of them, the true and lawful agents and his attorneys-in-
fact with full power and authority in either of said agents and attorneys-in-fact, acting singly, to sign for the
undersigned as Director or an officer of the Corporation, or as both, the Corporation’s 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and to sign any amendment or amendments to such Annual Report, including an Annual
Repeort pursuant to 11-K to be filed as an amendment to the Form 10-K; hereby ratifying and confirming all acts
taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact as herein authorized.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ C. Stanley Bailey Chairman of the Board and Chief March 16, 2007
C. Stanley Bailey Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) and Director
/s/  James C. Gossett Chief Accounting Officer (Principal March 16, 2007
James C. Gossett Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/  Roger Barker Director March 16, 2007

Roger Barker

/s/ Glynn C. Debter Director March 16, 2007
Glynn C. Debter

/s/ K. Eari Durden Director ) March 16, 2007
K. Earl Durden

/s{  Rick D. Gardner Director March 16, 2007
Rick D. Gardner

/s/  Roy B. Jackson Director March 16, 2007
Roy B. Jackson

/s/ _Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr. Director March 16, 2007
Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr.

/s/  James Mailon Kent, Ir. Director March 16, 2007
James Mailon Kent, Ir.
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Signature

/s/  James M. Link

James M. Link

/st D. Dewey Mitchell

D. Dewey Mitchell

/s/  Barry Morton

Barry Morton

/s Robert R. Parrish, Jr.

Robert R. Parrish, Ir.

/s/  C. Marvin Scott

C. Marvin Scott

Is/ Michael E. Stephens

Michael E. Stephens

/s/  James C. White, Sr.

James C. White, Sr.

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

March 16, 2007

March 16, 2007
March 16, 2007
March 16, 2007
March 16, 2007
March 16, 2007

March 16, 2007




BOARD OF DIRECTORS & SENIOR MANAGEMENT

C. Stanley Bailey
Superior Bancom
Birmingham, Alabama

Roger D. Barker
Buffalo Rock Company
Birmingham, Alabama

Glynn C. Debter
Debter Hereford Farms
Horton, Alabama

Board of Directors

K. Earl Durden
Rail Management Consulting Corp.
Panama City, Florida

Rick D. Gardner
Superior Bancorp
Birmingham, Alabama
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Roy B. Jackson
{Retired) Jackson Farm & Garden Center
Minor Hill, Tennessee

Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr.
Marathon Corporation
Birmingham, Alabama

James Mailon Kent, Jr.
Mailon Kent Insurance Agency
Birmingham, Alabama

James M. Link
Teledyne Brown Engineering, Inc.
Huntsville, Alabarna

D. Dewey Mitchell
Prudential Tropical Realty
Tampa, Florida

Barry Morton
The Robins & Morton Group
Birmingham, Alabarna

Robert R. Parrish, Jr.
Parrish Group, Inc.
Tallahassee, Florida

C. Marvin Scott
Superior Bancorp
Birmingham, Alabama

Michael E. Stephens
S Enterprises, inc.
Birmingham, Alabama

James C. White, Sr.
Banks, Finley, White & Co.
Bimmingham, Alabama

Our plans for the near future include:

> Growing to $3 - $4 billion in assets through growih within
the franchise and possibly one more acquisition.

> Creating a partnership with People’s Community Bank in
Sarasota, Bradenton, and Venice, Florida, that will create
$325 million in additional assets with the expectation to
double in three years.

Senior Management

Stan Bailey
Chigf Executive Officer

Marvin Scott
President

Rick Gardner
Chief Operating Officer

Duane Bickings
Chief Credit Officer

Fox deFuniak
Birmingham Market President

George Hall
Forida President

David Hiden
Chief Information Officer
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EXISTING & PLANNED OFFICES

v/
o U
7 %cﬁ't's‘v.ine

> Alabama at a Glance

A ;

@ Current Superior Offices: 38

O Future Superior Offices: 7

A 1st Comm. Credit Offices: 15

A Superior Financial Services Offices: 4
® Loan Production Office: 1

Current Superior Offices Future Superior Offices
Albertville Arab
Andalusia Birmingham/Greystone
Athens Cullman
Birmingham Montgomery
Blountsville Trussville
Boaz Huntsville/Harnpton Cove
Childersburg Madison
Cleveland
Decatur 1st Comm. Credit Corp.
Elkmont Offices
Falkille Albertville
Frisco City
Arab
Gadsden Ahens
Gardendale/Mt Olive
. Boaz
Guntersvilte
Cullman
Gurley
Haleyville Decatur
, Fort Payne
Hamitton
Gadsden
Hartselle
. Hartselle
Huntsulke Huntsville (2)
Huntsville/Jones Valley
. Jasper
Kinstan
) Oneonta
- Madison .
. Pelt City
Meridianvilie
. Talladega
As we actively move forward Monroevitle
with our plans for growth, r:xn!:?:eBmok Western Superior Financial Services
ffice
we can truly say that we are Onconta (2 Offices
ON OUR WAY > o puale
Rainbow City Cullman
. - Rogersville Jasper
Samson Oxford
Snead
Sylacauga Lean Production Office
Unigntown Montaome
Warrior gomery
Warrior/West Blount



N
Pensacola

©

> Florida at a Glance

® Current Superior Offices: 22
O Future Superior Offices: 4

® Loan Production Offices: 2
A People’s Community Bank: 3*

* Contingent on completion of the merger with
People's Community Bank of Sarasota, Floriga.

Current Superior Otfices

Altha

Apalachicola

Barclay

Blountstown

Bristol

Carrabelle

Carrallwood
Clearwater

Mexico Beach

New Paort Richey/Trinity
Palm Harbor

Panama Gity

Port Richey/Regency
Port St. Joe

Spring Hill

Sun City Center (4)
Tallahassee Kiliearn Centar
Tampa

Wesley Chapel

Future Superior Offices

Brooksvilte
Marianna
Tallahassee (2)

Loan Production Offices
Marianna
Tallahassee

* People’s Community Bank
Offices

Bradenton
Sarasola
Venice




Corporate Data

Corporate Address
Superior Bancorp

17 North Twentieth Street
Birmingham, AL 35203
205-327-1400

Transfer Agent
Computershare
250 Royall Street
Canton, MO 02021
1-800-568-3476

Independent Accountants
Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC
Montgomery, AL 36117

NASDAQ Symbol: SUPR

The company's common stock trades
on the NASDAQ Global Market under
the symbol: SUPR

Notice of Annual Meeting
Superior Bancorp's Annual Meeting
of Stockholders will be held at:

17 North Twentieth Street
Birmingham, AL 35203

May 16, 2007
10:00 a.m. {CDT)

For Information

Superior Bancorp provides raports to stockholders without
charge. For additional copies of this Annual Report to
Stockholders, quarterly information and the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K {without exhibits),
stockholders may forward a written request addressed to
Carol Murcks, Investor Relations,

17 Narth Twentieth Street,

Birmingham, AL 35203

NOTICE: This annual repert contains forward-looking
statements. Pleasa refar to page 44 of the enclosed
Form 10-K for important information about these

forward-lcoking statements.



